



Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Telemedicine/PRIME-LC Facility Project

University of California, Irvine Campus & Environmental Planning 750 University Tower Irvine, California 92697-2325 Alex S. Marks, AICP, Associate Planner 949.824.8692

P&D Consultants

Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Telemedicine/PRIME-LC Facility Project

Prepared for: University of California, Irvine Campus & Environmental Planning 750 University Tower Irvine, California 92697-2325 Alex S. Marks, AICP, Associate Planner 949.824.8692

Prepared by: P&D Consultants 999 Town and Country Road, 4th Floor Orange, California 92868 Jerry Flores, Project Manger 714.835.4447

May 2007

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION

PAGE

1.0	PROJECT DESCRIPTION	I-I
1.1	Introduction	1-1
1.2	Project Location	1-1
1.3	Site Description	1-1 1 1
1.4	Objectives	1-1 1 (
1.5	Proposed Project/Site Preparation	1-0
1.6	Project Approval	1-/
	1.0.1 University of California	1-/
17	1.0.2 Sania Ana Regional water Quality Control Board	1-/
1./	Consistency with the LRDP and LRDP EIR	1-/
	1.7.1 Relationship to the 1989 LRDP	l-/
	1.7.2 Relationship to the Draft 2007 LRDP	1-8
	1.7.3 Relationship to the 1989 LRDP EIR and the Draft 2007 LRDP EIR	1-8
2.0	DO JECT INFORMATION	A 1
2.0	PROJECT INFORMATION	2-1
3.0	ENVIDONMENTAL FACTODS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED	3_1
3.0	Determination	3 1
5.1		5-1
4.0	EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS	4-1
41	Purpose of the Initial Study	4-1
4 2	Response Column Heading Definitions	4-1
4.3	Environmental Checklist	4-2
5.0	DISCUSSION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES	5-1
5.1	Aesthetics	5-1
5.2	Agriculture Resources	5-6
5.3	Air Quality	5-6
5.4	Biological Resources	-10
5.5	Cultural Resources	-11
5.6	Geology and Soils	-12
5.7	Hazards and Hazardous Materials	-14
5.8	Hydrology and Water Quality	-16
5.9	Land Use and Planning	-18
5.10	Mineral Resources	-19
5.11	Noise	-19
5.12	Population and Housing	-22
5.13	Public Services	-22
5.14	Recreation	-23
5.15	Transportation/Traffic	-24
5.16	Utilities and Service Systems	-28
5.17	Mandatory Findings of Significance	-30
5.18	California Department of Fish and Game Determination	-32

6.0	REFERENCES	·1
7.0	LIST OF PREPARERS7-	-1

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1	Regional Location Map	1-2
Figure 2	Vicinity Map	1-3
Figure 3	Concept Site Plan	1-4
Figure 4	Site Photo	1-5
Figure 5	Building Elevation Looking North	5-2
Figure 6	Building Elevation Looking East	5-3
Figure 7	Building Elevation Looking South	5-4
Figure 8	Building Elevation Looking West	5-5

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1	Surrounding Land Uses	1-1
Table 2	Telemedicine/PRIME-LC Facility Space Breakdown (ASF)	1-6
Table AQ-1	Air Pollutant Emissions from Construction Activities (lbs/day)	
Table AQ-2	Operational Emissions (lbs/day)	
Table T-1	Project Trip Generation	
Table T-2	Road Segment Daily Levels of Service - 2009 Without the Project	
Table T-3	Road Segment Daily Levels of Service – 2009 With the Project	
Table T-4	Intersection Levels of Service – 2009 Without the Project	
Table T-5	Intersection Levels of Service – 2009 With the Project	
Table M-1	UCI Projects Under Construction or Approved/Planned for Near Future	5-31

APPENDICES

- A. Air Quality Calculations
- B. Geotechnical Data Report
- C. Traffic Impact Study

1.0 PROJECT DESCRIPTION

1.1 INTRODUCTION

The University of California, Irvine (UCI) is proposing the development of an academic building to house new programs within the UCI School of Medicine (SOM): Telemedicine and PRIME-LC. The project will consist of an approximately 39,000 assignable square feet (ASF) four story building. This facility would support new initiatives and technologies in teaching and health care delivery in UCI's SOM.

1.2 PROJECT LOCATION

The project site is located within the UCI campus, which is located in central/coastal Orange County in the southern portion of the City of Irvine (see Figure 1, Regional Location Map). The UCI campus is bordered by the Cities of Irvine (north and east) and Newport Beach (south and west). More specifically, the proposed project is located within the Health Sciences Complex adjacent to Irvine Hall (building number 835; see Figure 2, Vicinity Map).

1.3 SITE DESCRIPTION

The 0.5 acre project site is located in the existing Irvine Hall Plaza area directly south of Irvine Hall (see Figure 3, Concept Site Plan). The site is a relatively flat paved plaza area with landscaping at the perimeter. There are no existing structures on this site. Service access to the project site would occur via an existing service road located between Irvine Hall and Sprague Hall (building 839) which ultimately connects to Bison Avenue. Figure 4 provides a photograph of the existing plaza/project site.

North	Irvine Hall
South	Sprague Hall
East	Health Sciences Mall
West	Irvine Hall

TABLE 1 SURROUNDING LAND USES

Source: UCI, 2007.

1.4 **OBJECTIVES**

In support of the SOM academic goals, two initiatives have been implemented: PRIME-LC and new educational, research, and clinical activities in telemedicine. PRIME-LC is one of the signature programs of UCI's SOM and a model for meeting the health care needs of a growing statewide Latino population. Telemedicine involves the use of teleconferencing facilities and technology to facilitate interactive medical training and clinical consultation between distant parties.

Space assignments in the SOM are at a maximum capacity, preventing SOM programs from providing the state-of-the-art facilities and technologies necessary to provide contemporary health care delivery and training for both the PRIME students and the general medical student enrollment. Currently, the SOM is unable to provide the facilities needed to add simulated clinical experiences to its curriculum, although this type of instruction is rapidly becoming one of the foundations of modern and safe medical training. Existing instructional laboratory facilities are already overcrowded and overscheduled, and the addition of



Source: P&D Consultants, 2007.

Figure 1 Regional Location Map



Source: UCIrvine, 2007.

Figure 2 Vicinity Map



Figure 3 Concept Site Plan



Source: P&D Consultants, 2007.

Figure 4 Site Photo

PRIME-LC students are contributing to these space needs. Research and office space is also fully occupied; in some cases, three to four staff members share an office.

In order to accommodate the needs of the SOM's new educational, research, and clinical activities in telemedicine and PRIME-LC, additional space is required. The proposed project will address these needs by providing interactive tele-video and telemedicine "virtual care" consultation space, instructional and research space, and academic and administrative offices to support these programs.

1.5 PROPOSED PROJECT/SITE PREPARATION

Implementation of the proposed project would result in the construction of a new Telemedicine/PRIME-LC facility that is approximately 65,000 gross square feet (GSF). This building would provide approximately 39,000 ASF of new space for the SOM. The proposed project would generate 60 additional students (48 from PRIME-LC enrollment and 12 from the master's level), 13 faculty, and approximately 80 staff members. The proposed space type and associated assignable square footage would be grouped into the following four categories (see Table 2 for breakdown).

- *Instructional Space* includes all spaces whose primary function is to support basic and/or applied teaching activities (classrooms, clinical labs, etc.).
- *Research Space* includes all spaces whose primary function is to support basic and/or applied research activities (dry laboratories and research offices).
- *Office and Support Spaces* includes all offices for faculty and administrative staff, as well as all support spaces (mail/copy rooms, file rooms, workrooms, etc.).
- *Surge Space* (future expansion space for the SOM).

Snace Type	ASE
Instructional Space	1101
Instructional Space	7,315
Simulation Center	2,743
Clinical Skills Center	6,587
Research Space	
Research Space	5,842
Office and Support Spaces	
General Offices	1,718
Medical Education Administrative Suite	3,000
Admissions/PRIME-LC/Outreach/Financial Aid Suite	2,832
Surge Space	8,963
Total	39,000

TABLE 2 TELEMEDICINE/PRIME-LC FACILITY SPACE BREAKDOWN (ASF)

Source: Telemedicine/PRIME-LC Project Program, 2007.

The proposed project will have a footprint of approximately 17,000 square feet and will consist of approximately four floors and a partial basement. Project construction activities would involve demolition of the existing plaza improvements, site grading, utilities, site improvements, building construction and landscaping. A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) will be prepared in

conformance with National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) requirements to address erosion control and stormwater quality for all areas that will be disturbed by constructions.

Grading and site drainage will remain generally consistent with existing conditions. Existing utility systems serving Irvine Hall will be extended to serve the proposed project. Project implementation may require the relocation of some existing on-site underground utilities including sewer and storm drainage. The irrigation system will use reclaimed water to irrigate drought tolerant plants.

The adjacent buildings will remain in place and fully operational during construction. The proposed project is scheduled to begin the design and construction documents phases later in 2007, and construction is expected to be complete as early as the last quarter of 2009.

1.6 PROJECT APPROVAL

1.6.1 UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA

The Board of Regents of the University of California (The Regents) is the Lead Agency under California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and is responsible for reviewing and certifying the adequacy of the environmental document and approving the proposed project. This Initial Study (IS) was prepared pursuant to the requirements of Section 15063 of the CEQA Guidelines. This IS has been prepared to determine if any significant environmental effects would be introduced with implementation of the proposed project (construction and operation) and to determine whether to prepare an environmental impact report (EIR) or a negative declaration. The analysis contained in this IS supports the conclusion that the proposed project, with mitigation incorporated, will not result in any potentially significant environmental effects. The IS and Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) will be circulated for public review and comment prior to the certification of the IS/MND and project approval. It is anticipated that The Regents will consider the proposed project for approval in the later part of 2007.

1.6.2 SANTA ANA REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD

Prior to commencing construction, UCI will prepare a Storm Water Pollution and Prevention Plan (SWPPP) and file a Notice of Intent with the Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB), pursuant to their authority to issue a General Construction Permit under Section 402 of the federal Clean Water Act. This permit shall comply with all applicable National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) regulations during and after construction and identify best management practices for the proposed project.

1.7 CONSISTENCY WITH THE LRDP AND LRDP EIR

Each University of California campus is required to prepare a Long Range Development Plan (LRDP) that sets forth concepts, principles, and plans to guide future growth of that campus. The Regents adopted UCI's current LRDP in 1989. A comprehensive LRDP update and associated LRDP Program EIR is currently being prepared and will be considered for certification/approval by The Regents in the latter part of 2007.

1.7.1 RELATIONSHIP TO THE 1989 LRDP

The proposed project would be located in the Health Sciences Complex of the UCI campus and would be consistent with the current LRDP land use designation. The proposed project would add 65,000 GSF to the Health Sciences Complex, which is currently comprised of approximately 397,727 GSF. With

implementation of the proposed project, the Health Sciences Complex would have 462,727 GSF of building space, which is within the 1,439,100 GSF identified for the Health Sciences Complex by the 1989 LRDP. The proposed project would not conflict with any goals or objectives of the 1989 LRDP. Even with the students that would be accommodated by the proposed project, total enrollment on the UCI campus would be below the level projected in the 1989 LRDP.

1.7.2 RELATIONSHIP TO THE DRAFT 2007 LRDP

A comprehensive update to the LRDP (Draft 2007 LRDP) is currently underway to address UCI's development needs through the horizon year 2025-26. The Draft 2007 LRDP is anticipated to be generally consistent with the 1989 LRDP and would accommodate the proposed project without exceeding space allocations within the Health Sciences Complex. Therefore, the proposed project is anticipated to be consistent with the 2007 LRDP.

1.7.3 RELATIONSHIP TO THE 1989 LRDP EIR AND THE DRAFT 2007 LRDP EIR

This IS/MND is an independent CEQA analysis and is not tiered from either the 1989 LRDP EIR, as amended, or the Draft 2007 LRDP EIR currently being prepared. It should be noted that this IS/MND has been prepared based upon studies and analyses performed for the 1989 LRDP EIR for background and setting information applicable to the project. The 1989 LRDP EIR, as amended, is hereby incorporated by reference into this IS/MND. Technical studies performed for the Draft 2007 LRDP EIR are also relied upon for some of the impact analyses for this project. However, all of the potential impacts and mitigation associated with the proposed project are discussed in this IS/MND. It is projected that construction of the proposed project will occur after the 2007 LRDP Update has been considered by The Regents for approved.

2.0 **PROJECT INFORMATION**

University of California

Campus: Irvine

Project No. 991970

Project title:

Telemedicine/PRIME-LC Facility

Lead Agency Name and Address:

University of California, Irvine Office of Campus & Environmental Planning 750 University Tower Irvine, California 92697-2325

Contact Person and Phone Number:

Alex S. Marks, AICP, Associate Planner, 949.824.8692

Project location:

The project site is located within the UCI campus, which is located in central/coastal Orange County in the southern portion of the City of Irvine. The UCI campus is bordered by the Cities of Irvine (north and east) and Newport Beach (south and west). More specifically, the proposed project is located within the Health Sciences Complex adjacent to Irvine Hall.

Project Sponsor's Name and Address:

University of California, Irvine Office of Campus & Environmental Planning 750 University Tower Irvine, California 92697-2325

Custodian of the Administrative Record for this Project:

Alex S. Marks, AICP, Associate Planner Office of Campus & Environmental Planning 750 University Tower Irvine, California 92697-2325

3.0 ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED

The environmental factors checked below would be potentially affected by this project, involving at least one impact that is a "Potentially Significant Impact" as indicated by the checklist on the following pages.

Aesthetics		Agriculture Resources		Air Quality
Biological Resources		Cultural Resources		Geology/Soils
Hazards & Hazardous Materials		Hydrology/Water Quality		Land Use/Planning
Mineral Resources		Noise		Population/Housing
Public Services		Recreation		Transportation/Traffic
Utilities/Service Systems	П	Mandatory Findings of Sign	ifica	nce

3.1 DETERMINATION

 $\left[\cdot \right]$

On the basis of the initial evaluation that follows:

- I find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and a NEGATIVE DECLARATION would be prepared.
- I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, there would not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been made by or agreed to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION would be prepared.
- I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required.
 - I find that the proposed project MAY have a "potentially significant impact" or "potentially significant unless mitigated" impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has been adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2) has been addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached sheets. A TIERED ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain to be addressed.
 - I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, because all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures that are imposed upon the proposed project, no further environmental document is required.

INDINGS consistent with this determination would be prepared. Signatu 5.15.07 merijan Printed Name Date

4.0 EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS

4.1 PURPOSE OF THE INITIAL STUDY

This IS evaluates the proposed project, the potential environmental effects associated with its construction, operation, and measures that may be taken to mitigate any potentially significant environmental effects identified in the IS. The analysis contained in this IS supports the conclusion that the proposed project, with mitigation incorporated, will not result in any potentially significant environmental effects. The IS/MND will be circulated for public review and comment prior to consideration of the IS/MND and any public comments and responses, and approval of the proposed project by The Regents. It is anticipated that The Regents will consider the proposed project for approval in August 2007.

4.2 **RESPONSE COLUMN HEADING DEFINITIONS**

The next section of the IS contains a detailed checklist consisting of questions associated with a variety of environmental parameters. The questions form the basis for assessing the environmental consequences of the proposed project and determining whether such consequences could be significant and can be adequately addressed based on current information, or would require further analysis. Responses for each item are noted under one of four column headings, each defined as follows.

- A. **Potentially Significant Impact** is appropriate if there is substantial evidence that an effect may be significant. If there are one or more "Potentially Significant Impact" entries when the determination is made, an EIR is required.
- B. Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated applies where the incorporation of mitigation measures has reduced an effect from "Potentially Significant Impact" to a "Less Than Significant Impact."
- C. Less Than Significant Impact applies where the project creates no significant impacts, only Less than Significant impacts.
- D. No Impact applies where a project does not create an impact in that category.

4.3 ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
1. A	ESTHETICS				
Woul	d the project:				
a	. Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?				\square
t	. Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state scenic highway?			\boxtimes	
c	. Substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of the site and its surroundings?			\boxtimes	
ć	. Create a new source of substantial light or glare which would adversely affect day or nighttime views in the area?			\boxtimes	
2. <i>A</i>	GRICULTURE RESOURCES				
Woul	d the project:				
a	. Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use?				
t	. Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract?				\boxtimes
c	. Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, could result in conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use?				\boxtimes
3. A	IR QUALITY				
Woul	d the project:				
a	. Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan?				\boxtimes
t	. Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air quality violation?			\boxtimes	
c	. Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is non- attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard (including releasing emissions which exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone precursors)?				
ć	. Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations?			\boxtimes	
e	. Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people?			\boxtimes	

			Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
4.	BIC	DLOGICAL RESOURCES				
Wo	ould t	he project:				
	a.	Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?				\boxtimes
	b.	Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Game or US Fish and Wildlife Service?				
	c.	Have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means?				\boxtimes
	d.	Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites?				
	e.	Conflict with any local applicable policies protecting biological resources?				\boxtimes
	f.	Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or other applicable habitat conservation plan?				
5.	CU	LTURAL RESOURCES				
Wo	ould t	he project:				
	a.	Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource as defined in §15064.5?				\boxtimes
	b.	Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to §15064.5?				
	c.	Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic feature?		\boxtimes		
	d.	Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of formal cemeteries?			\boxtimes	

			Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
6.	GE	OLOGY AND SOILS				
Wot	uld t	he project:				
	a.	Expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving:				
		i. Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist- Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on other substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer to Division of Mines and Geology Special Publication 42.				
		ii. Strong seismic ground shaking?			\boxtimes	
		iii. Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction?			\boxtimes	
		iv. Landslides?				\square
	b.	Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?				\square
	c.	Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a result of the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction, or collapse?			\boxtimes	
	d.	Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code (1994), creating substantial risks to life or property?			\boxtimes	
	e.	Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative waste water disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of waste water?				
7.	HA	ZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS				
Wo	uld t	the project:				
	a.	Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials?			\boxtimes	
	b.	Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment?			\boxtimes	
	c.	Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school?				\boxtimes
	d.	Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant hazard to the public or the environment?				

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
e.	For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result in a safety hazard for people residing or working in the project area?				
f.	For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the project result in a safety hazard for people residing or working in the project area?				\boxtimes
g.	Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan?				
h.	Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death involving wildland fires, including where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas or where residences are intermixed with wildlands?				
8. HY Would t	DROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY <i>the project:</i>				
a.	Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge				
b.	Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge such that there would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of the local groundwater table level (e.g., the production rate of pre-existing nearby wells would drop to a level which would not support existing land uses or planned uses for which permits have been granted)?				
c.	Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river, in a manner which would result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site?			\boxtimes	
d.	Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river, or substantially increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on- or off-site?			\boxtimes	
e.	Create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned storm water drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff?				
f.	Otherwise substantially degrade water quality?				\boxtimes
g.	Place housing within a 100-year flood hazard area as mapped on a federal Flood Hazard Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation map?				
h.	Place within a 100-year flood hazard area structures which would impede or redirect flood flows?				

			Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
	i.	Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death involving flooding, including flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam?				
	j.	Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow?				\boxtimes
9.	LA	ND USE AND PLANNING				
Wou	ıld t	he project:				
	a.	Physically divide an established community?				
	b.	Conflict with any applicable land use plan, policy, or regulation of an agency with jurisdiction over the project (including but not limited to the LRDP, general plan, specific plan, local coastal program, or zoning ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect?				
	c.	Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or natural community conservation plan?				\boxtimes
10.	MI	NERAL RESOURCES				
Wou	ıld t	he project:				
	a.	Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region and the residents of the state?				
	b.	Result in the loss of availability of a locally-important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local general plan, specific plan, or other land use plan?				\boxtimes
11.	NO	ISE				
Wou	ıld t	he project result in:				
	a.	Exposure of persons to or generation of noise levels in excess of standards established in any applicable plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies?				
	b.	Exposure of persons to or generation of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels?		\boxtimes		
	c.	A substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above levels existing without the project?			\boxtimes	
	d.	A substantial temporary or periodic increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above levels existing without the project?			\boxtimes	
	e.	For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels?				
	f.	For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the project expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels?				

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
12. PO	PULATION AND HOUSING				
Would t	he project:				
a.	Induce substantial population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of roads or other infrastructure)?			\boxtimes	
b.	Displace substantial numbers of existing housing, necessitating the construction of replacement housing elsewhere?				\boxtimes
c.	Displace substantial numbers of people, necessitating the construction of replacement housing elsewhere?				\boxtimes
13. PU	BLIC SERVICES				
a.	Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities or the need for new or physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times, or other performance objectives for any of the public services: Fire protection? Police protection? Schools? Parks? Other public facilities?				$\boxtimes \boxtimes \boxtimes \Box$
14. RE	CREATION				
a.	Would the project increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated?				\boxtimes
b.	Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment?				\boxtimes
15. TR	ANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC				
Would t	he project:				
a.	Cause an increase in traffic which is substantial in relation to the existing traffic load and capacity of the street system (i.e., result in a substantial increase in either the number of vehicle trips, the volume to capacity ratio on roads, or congestion at intersections)?			\boxtimes	
b.	Exceed, either individually or cumulatively, a level of service standard established by the county congestion management agency for designated roads or highways?				\boxtimes
с.	Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either an increase in traffic levels or a change in location that results in substantial safety risks?				\boxtimes

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
d.	Substantially increase hazards due to a design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or				\boxtimes
	incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)?	_	—		
e. f	Result in inadequate parking canacity?				
1. 	Conflict with applicable policies plans or programs				
g.	supporting alternative transportation (e.g., bus turnouts, bicycle racks)?				\boxtimes
16. UT	ILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS				
Would t	the project:				
a.	Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable Regional Water Quality Control Board?			\boxtimes	
b.	Require or result in the construction of new water or wastewater treatment facilities or expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental effects?			\boxtimes	
c.	Require or result in the construction of new storm water drainage facilities or expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental effects?			\boxtimes	
d.	Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project from existing entitlements and resources, or are new or expanded entitlements needed?			\boxtimes	
e.	Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may serve the project, that it has adequate capacity to serve the project's projected demand in addition to the provider's existing commitments?			\boxtimes	
f.	Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted capacity to accommodate the project's solid waste disposal needs?			\boxtimes	
g.	Comply with applicable federal, state, and local statutes and regulations related to solid waste?				
17. MA	ANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE				
a.	Does the project have the potential to degrade the quality of the environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal, or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory?				
b.	Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable? ("Cumulatively considerable" means that the incremental effects of a project are considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of other current projects, and the effects of probable future projects)?				

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
c. Does the project have environmental eff would cause substantial adverse effects beings, either directly or indirectly?	ects which on human				\boxtimes

5.0 DISCUSSION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES

5.1 **AESTHETICS**

Would the project:

a. Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?

No impact. The proposed project is located in a highly urbanized academic area of campus (Health Sciences Complex), and the project site is not part of any scenic vista. Therefore, no significant impacts to a scenic vista would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

b. Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state scenic highway?

Less Than Significant Impact. There are no structures on the project site and those that surround it do not have characteristics which would qualify them as a resource of historic significance. In addition, there are no rock outcroppings or any other unique and scenic natural features within or adjacent to the proposed project site. Implementation of the proposed project would require the removal of several ornamental trees and shrubs. These ornamental trees and shrubs are common elements and are not considered scenic resources. The removal and replacement of these trees and shrubs is not considered to be a significant impact. Therefore, impacts to scenic resources, including trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings would be less than significant and no mitigation measures would be required.

c. Substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of the site and its surroundings?

Less Than Significant Impact. The proposed project is located on the UCI campus within the Health Sciences Complex adjacent to Irvine Hall, a highly urbanized portion of the campus. The project site is a relatively flat concrete/brick area (hardscape) with a landscaped perimeter in the vicinity of several existing multi-level buildings. To the north of the proposed project site is Irvine Hall, a one-story building, and to the south is Sprague Hall, a three-story building. The proposed project would thus be of similar height and scale as surrounding structures. Pursuant to the University's current design practices, the building materials, architectural design elements, colors and geometric rhythms will be similar and/or complementary to the characteristics of the Health Sciences Complex. Beyond those parameters, more specific visual features will be determined during the design/build phase of this project. Therefore, the proposed project would be visually compatible with the surrounding structural elements and would not degrade the existing visual character or quality of the site and its surroundings (see Figures 5-8 on next page). Impacts would be considered less than significant and no mitigation measures would be required.

d. Create a new source of substantial light or glare that would adversely affect day or nighttime views in the area?

Less Than Significant Impact. Implementation of the proposed project would contribute additional lighting within the project area. The project site is located within an urban area of campus that presently generates similar lighting sources. Illumination is provided by a variety of building and pole-mounted outdoor lighting on the project site and its immediate vicinity. The proposed project will incorporate external lighting for visibility and safety; however, the project site is internal to the



Figure 5 Building Elevation Looking North



Figure 6 Building Elevation Looking East



Figure 7 Building Elevation Looking South



Figure 8 Building Elevation Looking West

campus and is not located adjacent to housing or other land uses considered sensitive to night lighting. In addition, night lighting would generate illumination within a confined area and would not create glare beyond the immediate project site. Windows and other glazing building elements would be consistent with the University's current design practices which would not allow the use of reflective materials that could cause daytime glare. In addition, lighting design will be consistent with the Illuminating Engineering Society of North American Lighting Handbook (Ninth Edition). Therefore, impacts related to substantial light or glare would be considered less than significant and no mitigation measures would be required.

5.2 AGRICULTURE RESOURCES

Would the project:

- a. Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use?
- b. Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract?
- c. Involve other changes in the existing environment, which, due to their location or nature, could result in conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use?

No Impact (a, b, and c). The project site is in a fully urbanized academic area of campus and is not located in an area designated as Farmland. According to the State Department of Conservation, Division of Land Resources Protection, the entire UCI campus is designated as "Urban and Built-Up" or "Other Land," neither of which is considered Farmland. There is no Williamson Act contract affecting the project site or any adjacent site that potentially could be impacted by project implementation. The proposed project would not introduce any changes that would result in conversion of Farmland. Therefore, no significant impacts to Farmland would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

5.3 AIR QUALITY

Would the project:

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan?

No Impact. The project was evaluated against screening thresholds established for construction and operational phase activities by the South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD)¹. These construction and operational phase screening thresholds assist in implementation of the Air Quality Management Plan's goal of bringing the air basin into compliance with state and federal ambient air quality standards by identifying which projects would result in significant levels of air pollution. The proposed project was below the screening thresholds established for the construction and operational phase of the project, and would therefore, not result in a significant impact to air quality. Based on the relatively small magnitude of air pollutant emissions associated with the project, the proposed project would not result in any conflict with, or obstruction of, the objectives or implementation of the SCAQMD Air Quality Management Plan. No impact would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

¹ South Coast Air Quality Management District, <u>CEQA Air Quality Handbook</u>, November 1993.

b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air quality violation?

Less Than Significant Impact. The SCAQMD has established significance thresholds for construction which were used to evaluate potential impacts associated with the proposed project. Construction source emissions were calculated using the URBEMIS2002 (version 8.7) emissions inventory model originally developed by the California Air Resources Board (CARB).

Implementation of the project components, including demolition and construction activities, would generate construction-related emissions resulting from engine exhaust and fugitive dust. Analysis of the potential air quality impacts of the project was conducted for the construction phase, assumed to begin in November 2007 for a period of two years, or 24 months, based on the following activities: (1) demolition operations; (2) travel by construction workers to the site; (3) delivery and hauling of construction materials and supplies to and from the project site; (4) fuel combustion by on-site construction equipment; and (5) haul truck used in demolition debris removal.

The air quality analysis evaluated the demolition and removal of the existing concrete/brick area and landscaped perimeter. As depicted in Phase 1 of Table AQ-1, demolition would not generate emissions above the SCAQMD construction emission thresholds. The project's grading and building construction phases including asphalt and architectural coatings, as depicted in Table AQ-1 (Phases 2 and 3), would also result in emissions below the SCAQMD thresholds . Therefore, construction of the proposed project would not result in emissions that are above the SCAQMD construction emissions threshold for criteria pollutants, specifically carbon monoxide (CO), reactive organic gases (ROG), sulfur oxides (SO_x), nitrogen oxides (NO_x), and particulate matter (PM_{10}) during construction. Therefore, the construction of the proposed project would not result in significant air quality impacts.

The SCAQMD has also established significance thresholds, which were used to evaluate potential impacts associated with operation of the proposed project. Operation source emissions were calculated using the URBEMIS2002 (version 8.7) emissions inventory model originally developed by the CARB. Operation of the proposed project would increase vehicle emissions generated by mobile sources as well as emissions generated by stationary sources, including natural gas and electricity consumption. Mobile source emissions related to trips to and from the project site were calculated using the ITE Trip Generation (7th Edition, 2003) at 2.38 daily trips per student for 311 students for a total daily trip generation of 740 daily trips. It should be noted that the proposed project would only generate 60 additional students, 13 faculty, and approximately 80 staff members. The 311 students represents a worse case scenario based on the building square footage (refer to Section 5.15 for a detailed discussion). Mobile and stationary source emissions for the proposed project would result in a net increase in CO, ROG, SO_x, NO_x, and PM_{10} , as shown in Table AQ-2 and detailed in Appendix A. As indicated in Table AQ-2, the net increase in pollutants would be below the SCAQMD daily thresholds for the operations of the proposed project. As such, the resulting stationary and mobile source emissions generated during operation of the proposed project would not result in a significant impact on air quality and no mitigation measures would be required.

	СО	ROG	NO _x	PM_{10}	SO _x	
Daily Emissions ¹ (lbs/day)						
Phase 1 (Demolition)						
Fugitive Dust				0.52		
Off-Road Diesel	20.15	2.72	20.78	0.93		
On-Road Diesel	0.31	0.08	1.82	0.04	<1	
Worker Trips	0.55	0.02	0.06	0.00	<1	
Maximum Total	21.01	2.82	22.66	1.49	<1	
Phase 2 (Site Grading)						
Fugitive Dust				5.00		
Off-Road Diesel	46.63	5.84	39.62	1.59		
On-Road Diesel	0.03	0.01	0.20	0.04	0	
Worker Trips	1.74	0.08	0.16	0.01	0	
Maximum Total	48.40	5.93	39.98	6.60	0	
Phase 3 (Building Construction)						
Bldg Const Worker Trips	0.66	0.05	0.03	0.01	<1	
Arch Coating Off-Gas		48.12				
Arch Coating Worker Trips	2.52	0.10	0.26	0.02	<1	
Asphalt Off-Gas		0.06				
Asphalt Off-Road Diesel	27.25	3.34	21.74	0.82		
Asphalt On-Road Diesel	0.05	0.01	0.24	0.01		
Asphalt Worker Trips	1.10	0.04	0.11	0.01		
Maximum Total	48.40	51.68	22.35	0.86	<1	
SCAQMD Daily Threshold	550	75	100	150	150	
Significant?	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO	

TABLE AQ-1AIR POLLUTANT EMISSIONS FROM CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES2(LBS/DAY)

Source: P&D Consultants, April 2007.

Note: Results in the table represent the largest emission estimates generated per phase per year. Worse case conditions for all phases would result in 2007.

TABLE AQ-2 OPERATIONAL EMISSIONS (LBS/DAY)

	СО	ROG	NO _x	PM ₁₀	SOx
Mobile Sources ³	59.62	8.80	5.73	6.44	0.04
Stationary Sources ⁴					
(Electricity/natural gas consumption)	0.89	0.52	0.28	0.00	0.00
Total	60.52	9.32	6.01	6.44	0.04
SCAQMD Standard	550	55	55	150	150
Significant Operational Emissions?	NO	NO	NO	NO	NO

Source: P&D Consultants, April 2007.

Note: Any apparent discrepancies between the subtotals for area sources and vehicles sources and the totals are due to rounding.

² Emissions based on the CARB URBEMIS2002 model.

³ Vehicle emissions based on the CARB URBEMIS2002 model.

⁴ Emission from energy consumption based on methodologies established in the SCAQMD <u>CEQA Air Quality Handbook</u>, 1993. Emissions from energy consumption were less than a pound for each criteria pollutant.

Though construction of the proposed project is not expected to result in significant adverse short-term impacts to criteria air pollutants, the following mitigation measures have been included to reduce the generation of air pollutants to the extent feasible:

- AQ-1 The contractor shall use low Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC) content architectural coatings (e.g. "Green Label") during the construction of the project and shall use it in accordance with SCAQMD regulations and guidelines.
- AQ-2 During construction, the contractor shall comply with Rule 402 Nuisance, Rule 403 Fugitive Dust and Rule 1403 Asbestos Emissions from Demolition/Renovation Activities. Under Rule 403, the site shall be subject to the following requirements:
 - The contractor shall prevent visible emissions beyond the property line and shall prevent emissions from vehicular-related traffic from exceeding 20 percent opacity (Rule 403 Implementation Handbook establishes procedures for measuring opacity);
 - Conduct watering for all sources of dust (demolition, paved and unpaved roadways, trenching, and grading);
 - Upwind and downwind simultaneous samples shall not exceed 50 μ g/m³ of PM10;
 - Street sweeping shall be initiated if visible dust is deposited upon public paved roadways due to the project.
- AQ-3 All unpaved construction areas shall be watered at least twice a day during excavation and construction to reduce dust emissions and meet SCAQMD Rule 403, which prohibits dust clouds to be visible beyond the project site boundaries.
- AQ-4 All clearing, grading, or earthmoving activities shall be discontinued during periods of high winds (i.e., greater than 25 mph), so to prevent excessive amounts of dust.
- AQ-5 All materials transported off-site shall be watered sufficiently and maintain a minimum of six inches of freeboard between the transported materials and the top of the trailer to prevent excessive amount of dust in accordance with the requirements of California Vehicle Code Section 23114.
- AQ-6 Contractors shall maintain and operate construction equipment to minimize exhaust emissions.
- AQ-7 On-site construction vehicle speeds shall be limited to a maximum of 15 mph.

c) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard (including releasing emissions, which exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone precursors)?

No Impact. Pollutants generated by the proposed project would be below the SCAQMD thresholds for construction activities. These thresholds are designed to identify those projects which may result in significant levels of air pollution and to assist the region in attaining the applicable state and federal ambient air quality standards. Because the project would not exceed these thresholds, its emissions

are not cumulatively considerable or significant. No impacts would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations?

Less Than Significant Impact. As stated previously, the proposed building site is located within a highly urbanized portion of the UCI campus, open lawn areas and walkways are located to the south and east, and Irvine Hall to the north and west. As previously discussed, construction and operation of the proposed project would not exceed the SCAQMD construction or operational screening thresholds with the incorporation of mitigation measures, and therefore, would not result in any significant air pollution conditions. Consequently, the proposed project would not expose sensitive receptors to significant air pollution concentrations. No significant impacts would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

e) Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people?

Less Than Significant Impact. The proposed project would not create unusual or objectionable odors. Odors may be associated with the operation of diesel engines during site preparation and building construction; however, these odors are typical of urbanized environments and would be subject to construction and air quality regulations, including proper maintenance of diesel engines to minimize engine emissions. These emissions would also be of short duration and would be quickly dispersed into the atmosphere. Therefore, the proposed project would not create objectionable odor impacts that would affect a substantial number of people. No impacts would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

5.4 **BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES**

Would the project:

a. Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

No Impact. The project site is within an urbanized area of campus and has been previously disturbed. The project site consists of a paved plaza with ornamental landscaping, and has no existing structures. As a result, the project site contains minimal habitat value and does not support sensitive wildlife or plant species. No candidate, sensitive, or special status species occupy the project site. Therefore, the proposed project would not result in any substantial adverse effects to federal or state listed or other sensitive designated species and no mitigation measures would be required.

b. Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community identified in local or regional plans, policies, and regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

No Impact. As noted in the previous response, the project site is completely developed, with ornamental landscaping elements that have negligible habitat value. No riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community is present on or adjacent to the project site. Therefore, there is no potential for adverse effects on riparian habitat or other sensitive natural communities and no mitigation measures would be required.

c. Have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means?

No Impact. There are no legally defined wetlands on or near project site, so construction activities would not occur on any federally protected wetlands. Therefore, no potentially significant impacts related to federally protected wetlands would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

d. Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites?

No Impact. The project site is located in an urbanized part of campus, where there is no water body or other wildlife habitat that could support movement of native fish or wildlife species. There is no native wildlife nursery on the project site. Therefore, the proposed project would not interfere with the movement of any native or established resident or migratory fish or wildlife species, or impede with the use of native wildlife nursery sites. No significant impact would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

e. Conflict with any local applicable policies protecting biological resources?

No Impact. The project site is within an urbanized part of campus and has been previously disturbed. Because of the urban nature of the site, there are no biological resources of significant value on the project site. Implementation of the proposed project would not conflict with local policies protecting biological resources. No impact would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

f. Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or other applicable habitat conservation plan?

No Impact. The proposed project location does not contain biological resources that are managed under any conservation plans. Therefore, the project would not result in any conflicts with conservation plans. No impact would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

5.5 CULTURAL RESOURCES

Would the project:

a. Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource as defined in §15064.5?

No Impact. As part of the 1989 LRDP EIR, the UCI campus was surveyed to identify significant and potentially significant cultural resources in the planning area. No historic resources were found on or near the proposed project site and the structures in its vicinity do not have any characteristics that would qualify them as historical resources. There is no historical resource value associated with the site itself. Therefore, implementation of the proposed project would not affect historical resources and no mitigation measures would be required.

b. Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to §15064.5?

No Impact. According to the 1989 LRDP EIR, twenty archaeological sites within the LRDP planning area have been identified, most of which have been discovered by previous surveys. None of these sites are known to exist within the project site or vicinity. There is no evidence to suggest that project-related grading activities could have any impact on an archeological resource. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated and no mitigation measures are required.

c. Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic feature?

Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated. The project site is within an urbanized area of campus and has been previously disturbed. However, according to the 1989 LRDP EIR, majority of the UCI campus, including the project site, was identified as part of a "high-sensitivity" area for paleontological resources. Therefore, there is a possibility that paleontological resources could be found in native soil materials during the grading/excavation phase. Any adverse impacts related to paleontological resources would be reduced to less than significant with the incorporation of the following mitigation measure.

CR-1 A qualified paleontologist shall be retained to perform periodic project-specific inspections of the excavations and to salvage exposed fossils. The paleontologist shall be allowed to divert or direct grading in the area of an exposed fossil in order to facilitate evaluation and, if necessary, salvage the exposed fossil. Due to the small nature of the fossils present, fine mesh screens shall be used at the discretion of the paleontologist at project-specific inspections to collect matrix samples for processing. Provisions for preparation and identification of any fossils collected shall be made before donation to a suitable repository. All fossils collected shall be donated to an institution with a research interest in the materials.

d. Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of formal cemeteries?

Less Than Significant Impact. According to the 1989 LRDP EIR, cultural resources survey and previous surveys revealed that no human remains are known to exist within the campus planning area. Therefore, human remains are unlikely to be encountered or disturbed during the grading/excavation phase. In the unlikely event that human remains are uncoveredduring grading operations, the contractor would be required to notify the County Coroner, in accordance with Section 7050.5 of the CHSC who must then determine whether the remains are of forensic interest. If the coroner, with the aid of supervising archaeologist determines that the remains are or appear to be of a Native American, he/she would contact the Native American Heritage Commission for further investigation.

5.6 GEOLOGY AND SOILS

Would the project:

- a. Expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving:
 - i. Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on other substantial evidence of a known fault?

No Impact. As stated in the Geotechnical Data Report (Appendix B) that was prepared for the proposed project, there are no active or potentially active faults currently mapped on or projected towards the project site. An active fault, by definition, is one that has ruptured in Holocene time (within the last [ten] thousand years). The project site has not been placed into an Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zone, as designated by the California Division of Mines and Geology (Geobase, Inc. 1998). The Newport-Inglewood fault (type B fault) is located about eight kilometers from the project site. The closest postulated blind thrust fault to the site is the San Joaquin Hills fault, which is postulated to be responsible for the Quaternary uplift of the San Joaquin Hills. It should be noted that the proposed project would be constructed in accordance with applicable state requirements, including Uniform Building Code seismic safety requirements. The likelihood of a direct surface fault rupture at the project site is considered remote. Implementation of the proposed project is not anticipated to expose people or structures to fault rupture hazards during a seismic event. Therefore, no impact would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

ii. Strong seismic ground shaking?

Less Than Significant Impact. The project site is located in seismically active Southern California and prone to earthquakes, which may generate various levels of seismic ground shaking on-site. The nearest known fault to the project site is the offshore segment of the Newport-Inglewood fault. The potential severity of ground shaking depends on many factors, including distance from the originating fault, the earthquake magnitude, and the nature of the earth materials below the project site. Although implementation of the proposed project has the potential to result in the exposure of people and structures to strong ground shaking during a seismic event, this exposure is no greater than exposure present in other areas throughout the Southern California region. The proposed project would be designed and constructed in accordance with the current Uniform Building Code seismic safety requirements, which is anticipated to minimize the potential for damage. As a result, seismic ground shaking would not present a significant hazard and no mitigation measures would be required.

iii. Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction?

Less Than Significant Impact. According to the Geotechnical Data Report, the project site is not located within a State and County designated Seismic Hazard Zone for liquefaction potential. In addition, the State of California Seismic Hazards Zones map (2001) that covers the campus planning area indicates that the project site lies outside of any landslides or other potential permanent ground displacement hazards. Therefore, there is low potential for seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction at the project site. No significant impact would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

iv. Landslides?

No Impact. As stated in the preceding response, the project site lies outside of any landslide hazard zones mapped by the State of California, pursuant to Chapter 7.8, Division 2, of the California Public Resources Code (Seismic Hazards Mapping Act). The slope, soil, and moisture conditions that could produce a landslide do not exist on project site. Therefore, no impact would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

b. Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?

No Impact. There is no native topsoil within the fully-developed project site. The proposed project could result in a minimal amount of soil erosion during construction activities. However, impacts would be reduced by implementation of a system of erosion and water quality BMPs identified in the
project SWPPP. Therefore, impacts related to soil erosion or the loss of topsoil would not occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

c. Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a result of the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction, or collapse?

Less Than Significant Impact. As previously noted in the responses to items a (iii) and a (iv), there are no known liquefaction or landslide hazards in or adjacent to the project site. There are no indications of potential ground instability and no reported problems at the project site involving unstable ground conditions. Any unstable materials that may be encountered during routine geotechnical investigations and the grading phase would be removed and replaced with properly engineered, compacted materials, in accordance with the recommendations in the design-level geotechnical report and routine construction practices. Through this standard practice, potentially significant impacts involving unstable geologic or soil materials will be avoided. Therefore, impacts to geologic units or soil that are unstable or become unstable would be less than significant and no mitigation measures would be required.

d. Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code (1994), creating substantial risks to life or property?

Less Than Significant Impact. Expansive soils shrink and swell in response to dry and moist conditions and can result in cracking and structural failure of pavement and foundations. Design-level geotechnical report to be conducted in accordance with standard campus design and construction practices will determine the expansive characteristics of underlying soils and identify measures to mitigate such conditions. Recommendations pertaining to expansive soils will be incorporated into grading and foundation plans. Mitigation of expansive soils is typically achieved through removal and overexcavation of those soil materials and placement of engineered fill. Adherence to the site-specific recommendations identified in the design-level geotechnical report would ensure that any areas containing expansive soils would be properly mitigated. Therefore, impacts resulting from expansive soils would be less than significant and no mitigation measures are required.

e. Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative waste water disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of waste water?

No Impact. The project site is served by sewers and no septic tanks or other alternative waste water disposal systems are proposed. All waste water generated in the proposed facilities would be conveyed via local sewer lines to the existing UCI sanitary sewer system. Therefore, no impact would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

5.7 HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

Would the project:

- a. Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials?
- b. Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment?

Less Than Significant Impact (a and b). There is no evidence or record that hazardous substances or waste materials have ever been produced, stored, or disposed of on-site. The construction and operation of the proposed project would not involve the routine storage, transport, use, or disposal of a significant amount of hazardous materials. The small amount of hazardous materials that would be used during construction will be transported, used, stored, and disposed of, according to city, state, and federal regulations. Therefore, implementation of the proposed project would not result in a significant impact and no mitigation measures would be required.

c. Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school?

No Impact. There are no private or public schools within a quarter-mile of the project site, except those that are part of the UCI campus educational facilities. As discussed in previous responses, this project would not involve handling of hazardous or acutely hazardous materials and would not generate any significant hazardous emissions, and no mitigation measures would be required.

d. Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant hazard to the public or the environment?

No Impact. A search of hazardous waste sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 was conducted for the project site. The project site was not found during a review of sites containing hazardous materials. Therefore, the proposed project would not be located on a site that is included on a list of hazardous materials sites and no mitigation measures would be required.

- e. For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result in a safety hazard for people residing or working in the project area?
- f. For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the project result in a safety hazard for people residing or working in the project area?

No Impact (e and f). The UCI campus is approximately three miles from John Wayne Airport, which is the only public use airport in Orange County. The project site is outside of the airport land use plan area. There are no private airstrips within the vicinity of the project site. Therefore, implementation of the proposed project would not expose people or structures to air traffic hazards and no mitigation measures would be required.

g. Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan?

No Impact. The project would not impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response or evacuation plan. All construction-related activities would be contained within and immediately around the building footprint area. Road closures would be minimal during construction and would be limited to days of concrete pours and delivery of materials. The standard contractor specifications imposed by UCI include a requirement to ensure that roadways surrounding the project site remain accessible to emergency vehicles and crews, and open for emergency evacuations, if necessary.

UCI has an Emergency Management Plan that addresses the campus community's planned response for various levels of emergencies, including fires, hazardous spills, earthquakes, flooding, and explosions. Therefore, the proposed project would not impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan and no mitigation measures would be required.

h. Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death involving wildland fires, including where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas or where residences are intermixed with wildlands?

No Impact. There are no wildland areas in or near this highly urbanized part of the campus. Therefore, the proposed project would not expose people or structures to potential fire hazards associated with wildland and urban interfaces and no mitigation measures would be required.

5.8 HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY

Would the project:

a. Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements?

Short-Term (Construction) Impacts

No Impact. There is the potential for short-term surface water quality impacts to occur during the grading and construction phases, including runoff of loose soils and/or a variety of construction wastes and fuels that could be carried off-site in surface runoff and into local storm drains and streets that drain eventually into water resources protected under federal and state laws. These water quality impacts would be avoided through compliance with the NPDES regulations set forth under Section 402 of the federal Clean Water Act. Pursuant to the NPDES regulations, the contractor will need to file a Notice of Intent for a General Construction Permit with the RWOCB. To obtain this permit, the contractor would prepare a SWPPP that specifies BMPs to ensure that the proposed project does not violate any water quality standards or any waste discharge requirements during the construction phases. BMPs would include erosion and sediment controls such as silt fences and/or straw wattles or bails, runoff water quality monitoring, means of waste disposal, implementation of approved local plans, prevention and containment of accidental fuel spills or other waste releases, inspection requirements, etc. This permit would cover the entire grading footprint area of the proposed site, along with the adjacent staging area. Compliance with the approved permit would ensure that the proposed project does not violate any water quality standards or any waste discharge requirements during the construction phases. Therefore, implementation of the proposed project would not violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements and no mitigation measures would be required.

Long-Term Impacts

No Impact. Waste Discharge Requirements are issued by the RWQCB under the provisions of Division 7, Article 4 of the California Water Code. These requirements regulate "point source" discharges of wastes to surface and groundwaters, such as septic systems, sanitary landfills, dairies, etc. All waste water produced within the proposed project would be discharged into the campus sewer network that serves the UCI campus. Therefore, the proposed project would have no point sources of waste water discharge and thus would have no direct effect upon surface or groundwaters.

As the project site is already covered by impervious surfaces, including concrete and brick, the composition of surface runoff from the developed project site would be similar to existing conditions. Operation of the proposed project would not violate any water quality standards or any waste

discharge requirements. Therefore, no impact would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

b. Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge such that there would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of the local groundwater table level (e.g., the production rate of pre-existing nearby wells would drop to a level which would not support existing land uses or planned uses for which permits have been granted)?

No Impact. All water demand for the proposed project would be met through UCI's existing piped water system. No wells would be drilled or operated. The proposed project would not have the potential to directly change the rate or flow of groundwater because it would not interfere with any known aquifers. Therefore, no impact to groundwater supplies or recharge would be expected to occur and no mitigation would be required.

- c. Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river, in a manner that would result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site?
- d. Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river, or substantially increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a manner that would result in flooding on- or off-site?

Less than Significant Impact (c and d). There are no rivers, streams, or drainage channels on or adjacent to the developed project site. Grading and storm drainage for the project site will be kept the same as it currently exists. The proposed project is not anticipated to result in an increase in impervious surfaces. Depending on the finished floor plan of the proposed project, it is likely that the roof drains can be piped to the existing 12-inch ACP storm drain. The existing six-inch sewer line will be rerouted to serve the proposed project. Given the small scale of this project and the developed character of this part of campus, runoff would be minor and would not result in off-site erosion, siltation, or flooding. Therefore, impacts would be considered less than significant and no mitigation measures would be required.

e. Create or contribute runoff water, which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned storm water drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff?

No Impact. As mentioned in the preceding response, the project is not anticipated to result in an increase of impervious surfaces. Construction and operation of the proposed project would not alter the amount of impervious surfaces on the project site relative to existing conditions. Runoff from the project site is not expected to increase substantially and it would not exceed the capacity of the existing or planned storm water drainage facilities. Although the proposed project has the potential to result in additional sources of polluted runoff during construction activities, any adverse impacts related to polluted runoff from the project site would be reduced by implementation of BMPs identified in response 5.8, a) above. Therefore, no impact would occur and mitigation measures would be required.

f. Otherwise substantially degrade water quality?

No Impact. The proposed project would not involve any additional water quality impacts beyond those discussed in the preceding responses. Therefore, no degradation of water quality would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

g. Place housing within a 100-year flood hazard area as mapped on a federal Flood Hazard Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation map?

No Impact. Since the project site is neither located within a flood hazard area or include the development of residential units, it would not increase the exposure of people or structures to flood hazards. No impact would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

h. Place within a 100-year flood hazard area structures which would impede or redirect flood flows?

No Impact. As stated in checklist response 5.8, g) above, the project site is not located within a designated flood hazard area. The proposed project would not place structures within a 100-year flood hazard area and therefore would not impede or redirect flood flows. No impact would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

i. Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death involving flooding, including flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam?

No Impact. As stated in checklist response 5.8, g) above, the project site is not located within a designated flood hazard area. There are no levees or dams within the vicinity of the project site and the site does not lie within any potential dam or levee inundation areas. The development of the proposed project would not expose people or property to water-related hazards over current conditions. No impact would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

j. Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow?

No Impact. The project site is neither located near a large body of water that would be subject to tsunamis or seiches, canyons, slopes, drainage courses, or other natural features on or near the project site that that would generate mudflows during heavy rainstorms. No impact would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

5.9 LAND USE AND PLANNING

Would the project:

a. Physically divide an established community?

No Impact. The project site is located within an urbanized part of the campus (Health Sciences Complex) with infrastructure in place. The proposed project would not physically affect the configuration of any surrounding sites or buildings of the campus, beyond the project site. The proposed project will not place any structures in an established community that would physically divide that community and thereby prevent interaction between members of the community. Therefore, no impact would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

b. Conflict with any applicable land use plan, policy, or regulation of an agency with jurisdiction over the project (including but not limited to the LRDP, general plan, specific plan, local coastal program, or zoning ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect?

No Impact. The proposed project is located in the Health Sciences Complex of the UCI campus and would be consistent with the current LRDP land use designation (Academic/Support) and is not expected to conflict with the Draft 2007 LRDP Update that is currently underway to address UCI's

development needs through the horizon year 2025-26. Therefore, no conflict would exist with any applicable land use plan, policy, or regulation of an agency with jurisdiction over the project site and no mitigation measures would be required.

c. Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or natural community conservation plan?

No Impact. The proposed project site is located in a highly urbanized area of the campus and is not in or adjacent to any habitat conservation or natural community conservation areas. Therefore, no significant impacts to applicable habitat conservation or natural community conservation plans would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

5.10 MINERAL RESOURCES

Would the project:

- a. Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region and the residents of the state?
- b. Result in the loss of availability of a locally important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local general plan, specific plan, or other land use plan?

No Impact (a and b). According to research conducted for the 1989 and/or 1995 LRDP EIRs, no mineral resources are known to exist on or adjacent to the project site. Therefore, the proposed project would not result in loss of availability of any mineral resource that would be of future value to the region. No impact would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

5.11 NOISE

Would the project result in:

a. Exposure of persons to or generation of noise levels in excess of standards established in any applicable plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies?

Construction Phase

Less Than Significant Impact. The construction of the proposed project would require various types of construction equipment, such as a wheel loader, a backhoe/loader, a water truck, a cycle of dump trucks (export soil), and other standard construction equipment needed during the interior phase of construction which have the potential to create temporary significant noise impacts. Temporary noise impacts would occur during the approximately two-year construction period (late 2007 to late 2009).

- Mobilization and Site Grubbing, one month;
- Rough Site Grading/Soil Export, one month;
- Pile Drilling and Placement, two months;
- Foundation Forming and Placement, two months;

- Structural Frame, eight months;
- Exterior Skin, three months;
- Interior Build-Out, six months;
- Site Improvements/Landscaping, two months.

Noise levels during construction would vary with the type of equipment and machinery in use. Construction generated noise levels for the phases noted above would be higher than the existing ambient noise environment and will be restricted to occur mainly during weekdays, in daylight hours. It may be necessary to work on one or more weekends to maintain the project construction schedule. If that occurs, noise impacts would be less than significant, since there are no sensitive receptors such as housing units and there would be less people present than on weekdays. Construction noise increase would be most audible to people in the immediate vicinity, including construction crews, pedestrians, bicyclists, and students in adjacent buildings. The construction crews routinely work in a noisy environment and are not considered sensitive receptors. The experience of construction noise by passing pedestrians and bicyclists would be momentary and thus less than significant. UCI administrative offices responsible for operations will work collaboratively to coordinate scheduling to avoid conflicts between testing schedules and heavy construction periods. Students that are in adjacent buildings constructed with concrete walls and sealed windows are not expected to be exposed to significant construction noises. Therefore, exposure of persons to or generation of noise levels in excess of standards would be less than significant and no mitigation measures would be required.

Operational Phase

The noise level generated by the normal operation of the proposed project is not expected to result in a significant increase in the ambient noise level. Deliveries to and/or pickups from this facility and maintenance of this facility may result in increased noise during operation but would not be considered significant. Noise generated by rooftop mechanical equipment (air conditioning/heating) would not be audible beyond the project site, with typical sound attenuation features to be included in the project design. Due to the small volume of traffic associated with the operation of the proposed project, project-related traffic noise is not expected to result in any substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity. Therefore, exposure of persons to or generation of noise levels in excess of standards would be less than significant and no mitigation measures would be required.

b. Exposure of persons to or generation of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels?

Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated. The proposed project will not require the need to perform pile driving but it will require the need to drill for the piles in order to reach suitable materials for foundation support. The pile holes will be drilled by a track-mounted drill rig and a steel reinforced pile cage will be lowered into the hole and then filled with concrete. However, implementation of the proposed project will require the removal of the concrete/brick plaza which will require the use of jackhammers resulting in groundborne vibration. This phase of construction would generate intermittent groundborne vibration and increase ambient noise levels in the project vicinity. The vibration sensitive equipment in Irvine Hall could be effected intermittently during the early phases of construction. Any adverse impacts related to excessive groundborne vibration or

groundborne noise levels would be reduced to less than significant with the incorporation of the following mitigation measure.

- N-1 Demolition of the existing concrete/brick plaza will be scheduled to occur during off hours or on the weekends.
- N-2 The UCI Project Manager shall notify Irvine Hall occupants of construction commencement ten working days prior to such activities taking place. Construction schedule updates will be provided to Irvine Hall occupants on a monthly basis.

c. A substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above levels existing without the project?

Less Than Significant Impact. The primary source of noise that would be generated by the project is related to vehicle trips to and from the site. Due to the small volume of traffic associated with the operation of the project, related traffic noise is not expected to result in substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity. Deliveries to and/or pickups from this facility and maintenance of this facility may result in a minimal increase in daily ambient noise levels but would be considered less than significant. Noise generated by rooftop mechanical equipment (air conditioning/heating) would not be audible beyond the project site, with typical sound attenuation features to be included in the project design. The present noise environment in the project vicinity is typical of conditions throughout the UCI campus. Therefore, implementation of the proposed project would not result in a substantial permanent increase of ambient noise levels. Impacts are considered less than significant and no mitigation measures would be required.

d. A substantial temporary or periodic increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above levels existing without the project?

Less Than Significant Impact. Please refer to response 5.11, a) above.

e. For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels?

No Impact. The project site is not located within an airport land use plan. The project site is also not within two miles of a public airport or public use airport. Therefore, the project would not expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels and no mitigation measures would be required.

f. For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the project expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels?

No Impact. The proposed project is not located in the vicinity of any private airstrips. Therefore, the project would not expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels and no mitigation would be required.

5.12 **POPULATION AND HOUSING**

Would the project:

a. Induce substantial population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of roads or other infrastructure)?

Less Than Significant Impact. The proposed project is intended to accommodate the SOM's new educational, research, and clinical activities in telemedicine and PRIME-LC. The proposed project will address these needs by providing interactive televideo and telemedicine "virtual care" consultation, instructional, and research space, and academic and administrative offices to support these programs. The additional students, faculty, and staff to be accommodated by the proposed project would be within the totals foreseen by the 1989 LRDP. The increased area would house instructional space (classrooms and clinical laboratories), research space (dry laboratories and research offices), office and support spaces (mail/copy rooms, file rooms, and workrooms), and surge space. The project does not propose the development of new homes or businesses and would not extend or increase infrastructure (road extensions). New faculty/staff and students that would occupy the proposed project may include a number of persons who do not currently reside on or near the campus or in Orange County, and who may, therefore, relocate to more convenient housing on- or off-campus. This would result in a less than significant impact on the housing stock of Orange County and the surrounding region, and is not expected to require the construction of any new housing developments or infrastructure that are not already planned as part of the region's anticipated growth. Therefore, the proposed project would not induce substantial population growth in the surrounding area. Impacts are considered less than significant and no mitigation would be required.

- b. Displace substantial numbers of existing housing, necessitating the construction of replacement housing elsewhere?
- c. Displace substantial numbers of people, necessitating the construction of replacement housing elsewhere?

No Impact (b and c). The project site is a relatively flat concrete/brick area (hardscape) with a landscaped perimeter and no existing. Therefore, implementation of the proposed project would not displace existing housing units or households. No impact would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

5.13 **PUBLIC SERVICES**

a. Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities or the need for new or physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times, or other performance objectives for any of the following public services?

Fire protection?

Less Than Significant Impact. As part of the proposed project, a new waterline serving both domestic and fire service would be connected to the existing 10-inch water main that serves Irvine Hall. Two existing fire hydrants occur on the project site and an evaluation would be condutect during project design to determine if additional fire hydrants are required. Any additional hydrants

required will be installed as a part of the project. Therefore, implementation of the proposed project would create less than significant impacts on fire protection and no mitigation measures would be required.

Police protection?

Less Than Significant Impact. UCI campus police provide primary police protection on the UCI campus. The proposed project would not represent a unique land use within the UCI campus that would attract or stimulate criminal activities and would not require new police protection services or facilities. It would not significantly affect the level of police protection service provided to the campus. Therefore, impacts related to police protection would be less than significant and no mitigation measures would be required.

Schools?

No Impact. The proposed project would not generate a significant increase in the school population since no residential land uses are proposed. The project will not result in the need to alter the existing or construct new schools of which could result in significant impacts on the physical environment. The proposed project would accommodate the needs of UCI's SOM through additional education, research, clinical, and surge space. The proposed project would benefit and support students and faculty by creating additional capacity within the Health Sciences Complex and for UCI's SOM. Therefore, the proposed project would have no impacts on schools and no mitigation measures would be required.

Parks?

No Impact. The project site is a relatively flat concrete/brick area (hardscape) with a landscaped perimeter and no existing structures. This site does not support any parks or recreation activities and is not planned for such uses in the LRDP. The proposed project consists of construction of a new facility that would support new initiatives and technologies in teaching and health care delivery in UCI's SOM and does not include any residential units. Therefore, population growth is not expected to be significant because of the project, and demand for additional public park facilities is not expected to rise. No impact would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

Other public facilities?

No Impact. The proposed project is not expected to adversely affect any other public facilities located on- or off-campus. Therefore, no impact to public facilities would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

5.14 **RECREATION**

Would the project:

a. Increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated?

No Impact. The proposed project would provide more building space to support new initiatives and technologies in teaching health care delivery in UCI's SOM. No parks or recreational facilities occur within or adjacent to the project site. The recreational needs of the building's occupants are met

elsewhere on campus by existing facilities. Therefore, no impact to parks or other recreation facilities would result from the proposed project and no mitigation would be required.

b. Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment?

No Impact. Implementation of the proposed project does not include outdoor parks or recreational facilities. Currently, the UCI campus provides recreational areas and facilities in various parts of the campus which is based on the campus-wide needs and LRDP policies. Therefore, the proposed project does not include the development of recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment. No impact would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

5.15 TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC

Would the project:

a) Cause an increase in traffic that is substantial in relation to the existing traffic load and capacity of the street system (i.e., result in a substantial increase in either the number of vehicle trips, the volume to capacity ratio on roads, or congestion at intersections)?

Less Than Significant Impact. According to the Traffic Impact Study prepared by P&D Consultants (Appendix C), the proposed project will generate approximately 740 daily trips, with 65 trips occurring during both the A.M. and P.M. peak hours. It should be noted that even though the proposed project would only generate 60 additional students, 13 faculty, and approximately 80 staff members, the 740 daily trips were based on the building square footage, which would represent a worse course case scenario. Table T-1 shows the trip generation rates for a University/College land use based on the number of students (311 worse case scenario). It should be noted that this trip generation rate based on the number of students, support staff (faculty members and administrative employees), and visitors.

Land Use	ITE					Trij	p Genera	tion			
	Code	Size	Daily		A.M. Peak Hour			P.M. Peak Hour			
			In	Out	Total	In	Out	Total	In	Out	Total
University/ College	550	311 STU ^[1]	370	370	740	53	12	65	19	46	65

TABLE T-1PROJECT TRIP GENERATION

Source: P&D Consultants (2007).

^[1] STU: students.

As shown in Table T-2, all study road segments will operate at acceptable Level of Service (LOS) C or better in 2009 without the proposed project. California Avenue between University Drive and Bison Avenue will have the worst volume-to-capacity (V/C) ratio of 0.800 and will operate at LOS C.

Road Segment	Section Limits	Street Classification	Lane Configuration	Daily Volume	Capacity	V/C	LOS
California Avenue	University Drive to Bison Avenue	Commuter	2 Undivided	10,400	13,000	0.800	С
	MacArthur Boulevard to SR 73 southbound ramps	Major Arterial	6 Divided	15,477	54,000	0.287	А
Bison	SR 73 northbound ramps to California Avenue	Primary Arterial	4 Divided	24,098	32,000	0.753	С
Avenue	California Avenue to Health Sciences Road	Primary Arterial	4 Divided	17,089	32,000	0.534	А
	Health Sciences Road to Peltason Drive	Primary Arterial	4 Divided	16,937	32,000	0.529	А

 TABLE T-2

 ROAD SEGMENT DAILY LEVELS OF SERVICE – 2009 WITHOUT THE PROJECT^[1]

Source: P&D Consultants (2007).

^[1] 2009 without the Project, includes existing traffic and ambient growth (concurrent growth), but without the proposed project traffic.

As shown in Table T-3, all study road segments will operate at acceptable LOS D or better in 2009 with the proposed project. California Avenue between University Drive and Bison Avenue will have the worst V/C ratio of 0.805 and will operate at LOS D.

 TABLE T-3

 ROAD SEGMENT DAILY LEVELS OF SERVICE – 2009 WITH THE PROJECT^[1]

Road Segment	Section Limits	Street Classification	Lane Configuration	Daily Volume	Capacity	V/C	LOS
California Avenue	University Drive to Bison Avenue	Commuter	2 Undivided	10,468	13,000	0.805	D
	MacArthur Boulevard to SR 73 southbound ramps	Major Arterial	6 Divided	15,545	54,000	0.288	А
Bison	SR 73 northbound ramps to California Avenue	Primary Arterial	4 Divided	24,285	32,000	0.759	С
Avenue	California Avenue to Health Sciences Road	Primary Arterial	4 Divided	17,344	32,000	0.542	А
	Health Sciences Road to Peltason Drive	Primary Arterial	4 Divided	17,022	32,000	0.532	А

Source: P&D Consultants (2007).

^[1] 2009 with the Project includes existing traffic, ambient growth (concurrent growth), and the proposed project traffic.

All road segments will operate at an acceptable LOC with the proposed project and will not require an additional peak hour V/C analysis. Therefore, implementation of the proposed project will not impact the road segments.

According to the traffic impact study, all study intersections will operate at acceptable LOS D or better except for the intersection of California Avenue at University Drive during the A.M. peak hour and the intersection of California Avenue at Bison Avenue during the P.M. peak hour. California Avenue at University Drive has an Intersection Capacity Utilization (ICU) of 0.940 and will operate at LOS E during the A.M. peak hour in 2009 without the proposed project. California Avenue at Bison Avenue has an ICU of 0.927 and will operate at LOS E during the P.M. peak hour in 2009 without the proposed project. Table T-4 summarizes the intersection LOS.

Index	Intersection	A.M. Peal	k Hour	P.M. Peak Hour	
	inter section	ICU	LOS	ICU	LOS
1	California Avenue at University Drive	0.940	Е	0.861	D
2	MacArthur Boulevard at Bison Avenue	0.793	С	0.770	C
3	SR 73 southbound ramps at Bison Avenue	0.527	А	0.402	A
4	SR 73 northbound ramps at Bison Avenue	0.615	В	0.643	В
5	California Avenue at Bison Avenue	0.692	В	0.927	E
6	Health Sciences Road at Bison Avenue	0.326	А	0.364	A
7	Peltason Drive at Bison Avenue/Physical Sciences Road	0.584	А	0.647	В

 TABLE T-4

 INTERSECTION LEVELS OF SERVICE – 2009 WITHOUT THE PROJECT^[1]

Source: P&D Consultants (2007). **Bolded** items indicate which intersections will operate at below-standard LOS. ^[1] 2009 without the Project, includes existing traffic and ambient growth, but without the proposed project traffic.

As shown in Table T-5, all study intersections will operate at acceptable LOS D or better except for the intersection of California Avenue at University Drive during the A.M. peak hour and the intersection of California Avenue at Bison Avenue during the P.M. peak hour. California Avenue at University Drive has an ICU of 0.946 and will operate at LOS E during the A.M. peak hour in 2009 with the proposed project. California Avenue at Bison Avenue has an ICU of 0.937 and will operate at LOS E during the P.M. peak hour in 2009 with the proposed project.

 TABLE T-5

 INTERSECTION LEVELS OF SERVICE – 2009 WITH THE PROJECT^[1]

Index	Intersection	A.M. Peal	k Hour	P.M. Peak Hour		
Index	Intersection	ICU	LOS	ICU	LOS	
1	California Avenue at University Drive	0.946	Е	0.867	D	
2	MacArthur Boulevard at Bison Avenue	0.795	С	0.772	С	
3	SR 73 southbound ramps at Bison Avenue	0.535	А	0.405	А	
4	SR 73 northbound ramps at Bison Avenue	0.623	В	0.651	В	
5	California Avenue at Bison Avenue	0.701	С	0.937	Е	
6	Health Sciences Road at Bison Avenue	0.327	А	0.380	А	
7	Peltason Drive at Bison Avenue/Physical Sciences Road	0.591	A	0.651	В	

Source: P&D Consultants (2007). **Bolded** items indicate which intersections will operate at below-standard LOS. ^[1] 2009 with the Project, includes existing traffic, ambient growth, and the proposed project traffic.

All intersections will operate at an acceptable LOS with the proposed project, except for the intersection of California Avenue at University Drive during the A.M. peak hour and the intersection of California Avenue at Bison Avenue during the P.M. peak hour. However, the increase in ICU is less than 0.02 when rounded to the nearest hundredth for these two intersections; therefore, these two intersections are considered to have acceptable LOS and will not be significantly impacted.

It should be noted that the widening of California Avenue to four lanes and related intersection improvements is proposed to be constructed in late 2007 pending final City of Irvine plan reviews and approvals. Completion of these improvements would improve the 2009 LOS at the California Avenue intersections.

No mitigation measures are required because no study road segment or intersection will be impacted by implementation of the proposed project.

b) Exceed, either individually or cumulatively, a level of service standard established by the county congestion management agency for designated roads or highways?

No Impact. As discussed in the immediately preceding response, the proposed project would result in an increase in daily trips that would have a less than significant impact on the LOS of study road segments and intersections. According to the traffic impact study, a Congestion Management Program (CMP) traffic analysis was not conducted because the proposed project is exempt. A CMP traffic analysis is required when a proposed project generates more than 2,400 daily trips, or more than 1,600 daily trips with direct access to a CMP highway. The CMP highways in the vicinity of the project site are State Route 73, Jamboree Road, and MacArthur Boulevard. Therefore, the proposed project does not directly access a CMP highway. Given the less than significant volume of traffic that would be generated (740 daily trips), the proposed project traffic would not exceed any LOS standards established for the CMP. No impact would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

c) Results in a change in air traffic patterns, including either an increase in traffic levels or a change in location that results in substantial safety risks?

No Impact. No airports are located in the project vicinity. Due to the nature and size of the proposed project, it would not have the potential to affect air traffic. No impact would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

d) Substantially increase hazards due to a design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)?

No Impact. The proposed project does not require alterations to existing streets or highways and would not introduce hazardous design features such as sharp curves or dangerous intersections or provide incompatible uses. Access to the project site will be from an existing service drive which is located between Irvine Hall and Sprague Hall. Implementation of the proposed project would not result in safety hazards from design features or incompatible uses. No impact would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

e) Result in inadequate emergency access?

No Impact. Construction of the proposed project would require limited road closures during days of concrete pours and delivery of materials. It should be noted that the standard contractor specifications imposed by UCI include a requirement to ensure that roadways surrounding the project site remain accessible to emergency vehicles and crews and open for emergency evacuations. As previously noted, the proposed project does not include any new or alterations to existing vehicular access or driveways. Once the project is completed, the ability of fire or emergency vehicles to respond to the project site will remain the same as it currently exists. No impact would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

f) Result in inadequate parking capacity?

No Impact. Although not intended as a parking facility, stalls have never been designated, at times portions of the existing plaza are used as such by the SOM and/or UCI Facilities Management. Once construction of the proposed project begins, parking at the project site will no longer be available and faculty and staff will need to park at an alternative site. According to UCI's Parking and Transportation Services, an adequate number of spaces are available in the Health Sciences Complex parking lots to accommodate these faculty and staff as well as the additional students, faculty, and

staff associated with proposed project. Therefore, there will be adequate parking spaces to accommodate the proposed project. No impact would occur and no mitigation measures would be required.

g) Conflict with adopted policies, plans, or programs supporting alternative transportation (e.g., bus turnouts, bicycle racks)?

No Impact. No changes to the existing alternative transportation systems are planned as a part of the proposed project. The proposed project would not result in the elimination of existing bus or bicycle facilities. The project site is accessible to bike and foot traffic via a system of sidewalks, pathways, and Bison Avenue in the project vicinity. These facilities would provide access to and from the project site. Therefore, the proposed project would not result in any conflicts with policies, plans, or programs that support alternative transportation and no mitigation measures would be required.

5.16 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

Would the project:

a. Exceed waste water treatment requirements of the applicable Regional Water Quality Control Board?

Less Than Significant Impact. The existing six-inch sewer line that runs through the Irvine Hall plaza and to a manhole at the edge of the lawn area will need to be rerouted to provide service to the proposed project. The waste water would consist primarily of sanitary sewage from the proposed project and is not expected to exceed waste water treatment requirements pursuant to the RWQCB, as overseen by the Orange County Sanitation District. Therefore, this impact is considered less than significant and no mitigation measures would be required.

b. Require or result in the construction of new water or waste water treatment facilities or expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental effects?

Less Than Significant Impact. The proposed project is consistent with the planned land uses and intensities set forth in the LRDP. Therefore, the water demand and waste water generation would be within existing planning projections for both water and waste water treatment. No new or modified mainline water or waste water facilities would be required for the proposed project. A new waterline serving both domestic and fire service for the proposed project would be connected to the existing 10-inch water main that loops around the Irvine Hall building. Construction of the local connections would result in less than significant environmental impacts and no mitigation measures would be required.

c. Require or result in the construction of new storm water drainage facilities or expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental effects?

Less Than Significant Impact. Grading and storm drainage improvements to serve the project will result in only minor changes to existing conditions. The proposed project is not anticipated to result in a significant increase in impervious surfaces. Depending on the finished floor plan of the proposed project, it is likely that the roof drains can be piped to the existing 12-inch ACP storm drain. In addition, the existing six-inch sewer line that runs through the Irvine Hall plaza and to a manhole at the edge of the lawn area will need to be rerouted to provide service to the proposed project. Therefore, the proposed project would not require or result in construction of new storm water drainage facilities or the expansion of existing facilities, which could cause significant environmental

effects. Impacts would be considered less than significant and no mitigation measures would be required.

d. Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project from existing entitlements and resources, or are new or expanded entitlements needed?

Less Than Significant Impact. Construction activity would not be expected to require a significant amount of water for dust control activities, and this demand would not be expected to have a significant impact on the local or regional water supplies. As previously noted, the proposed project is consistent with the LRDP and would not exceed the development intensity levels established for the Health Sciences Complex. Development of this project and the water demand associated with the completed facilities would be consistent with projected demands based on LRDP buildout. The proposed project would have a minimal effect on Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) water supply resources, and would not require any new or expanded water supply entitlements. Sufficient water supplies would be available to serve the project from existing entitlements and resources. Therefore, impacts are considered less than significant and no mitigation measures would be required.

e. Result in a determination by the waste water treatment provider, which serves or may serve the project that it has inadequate capacity to serve the project's projected demand in addition to the provider's existing commitments?

Less Than Significant Impact. Since the proposed land uses and intensities are consistent with the current LRDP Land Use Element, the increased waste water generation resulting from the proposed project would be consistent with projected demands based on LRDP buildout. It should be noted that the IRWD plans to expand the capacity of the Michelson Water Reclamation Plant from 18 million gallons per day (mgd) to 33 mgd by the year 2025. The proposed project's increased waste water generation would be consistent with previous forecasts for this part of the campus, based on the LRDP. Development of the proposed project would have a minimal impact on the capacity of IRWD's waste water treatment facilities and would not result in the need for any new or expanded facilities. Therefore, impacts are considered less than significant and no mitigation measures would be required.

f. Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted capacity to accommodate the project's solid waste disposal needs?

Less Than Significant Impact. With the exception of construction debris, the proposed project would not result in generation of significant amounts of solid waste. Construction activities would consist of grading, foundation construction, utility connections, and building construction. The total construction period is expected to last approximately two years. Relatively minimal construction debris would be generated and to the extent feasible construction waste would be reduced, reused, and/or recycled. The amount of debris generated would not be expected to significantly impact landfill capacities. Operation of the proposed project would generate the same types of solid wastes as those generated by the other campus facilities. In addition, the proposed project would comply with UCI's solid waste management program and recycle daily waste to the extent feasible. The proposed project would not result in the need for new solid waste facilities in the County of Orange. Therefore, impacts are considered less than significant and no mitigation measures would be required.

g. Comply with applicable federal, state, and local statues and regulations related to solid waste?

No Impact. In accordance with UCI's standard construction practices, all contractors must properly dispose of construction wastes in accordance with applicable statutes and regulations. Operation of the proposed project would generate the same types of solid wastes as those generated by the other campus facilities. The proposed project would not require any revisions to the UCI solid waste management program and would not result in any violations of or conflicts with state, federal, or local laws governing solid waste disposal and no mitigation measures would be required.

5.17 MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE

a. Does the project have the potential to degrade the quality of the environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below selfsustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal, or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory?

Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated. The project site is within an urbanized area of campus and has been previously disturbed. The site consists of a concrete/brick (hardscape) plaza with ornamental trees on the perimeter, and has no existing structures. The project site contains minimal habitat value and does not support sensitive wildlife or plant species. No candidate, sensitive or special status species occupy the project site and it is not part of any wildlife movement corridor. Therefore, development of the proposed project would not degrade the quality of the environment, substantially reduce the habitat of fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels, or threaten to eliminate a plant or animal.

As discussed in Section 5.5, Cultural Resources, implementation of the proposed project has the potential to significantly impact cultural resources during site grading/excavation. However, with implementation of the mitigation measure previously mentioned (CR-1), significant impacts to cultural resources would be avoided.

As discussed in Section 5.11, Noise, implementation of the proposed project has the potential to result in significant impacts related to intermittent groundborne vibration and increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity. However, with implementation of the mitigation measures previously mentioned (N-1 & N-2), significant impacts related to intermittent groundborne vibration and increase in ambient noise levels would be avoided.

b. Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable? ("Cumulatively considerable" means that the incremental effects of a project are considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of other current projects, and the effects of probable future projects)?

Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated. As shown on Table M-1, below, there are five projects under construction across the UCI campus and two that have been approved and are planned for development in the near future. None of these projects are scheduled to occur on or adjacent the project site during its construction. All of the projects currently under construction or approved for construction have been reviewed for environmental impacts in accordance with the University of California guidelines and rules for Implementation of CEQA. Mitigation measures are being or will be implemented, where required, to avoid or reduce the severity of potential impacts from each project. As previously discussed, the 2007 LRDP update is currently underway to address campus development needs through 2025-26. The CEQA analysis for the 2007 LRDP is currently

being prepared and it can be expected that a campus-wide mitigation and monitoring program (MMRP) will be made available at the time that the 2007 LRDP is considered for approval. Campus projects undertaken after approval of the 2007 LRDP and tiered from the 2007 LRDP EIR would utilize the MMRP developed for the 2007 LRDP EIR to reduce potential individual and cumulative environmental impacts.

Projects Under Construction						
Project Name	Gross Square Feet	Estimated Completion Date				
Engineering Unit 3	122,500 GSF	July 2009				
Biological Sciences Unit 3	147,000 GSF	February 2008				
Anteater Recreation Center Step 3	26,650 GSF	September 2008				
Rowland Hall Seismic	252,000 GSF	January 2008				
Projects Ap	proved/Planned for Near l	Future				
Humanities	83,883 GSF	June 2009				
Social and Behavior Sciences Building	130,000 GSF	August 2009				
California Avenue Widening	NA	Summer 2007				

		TABLE M-1	
UCI	PROJECTS UNDER	CONSTRUCTION OR	APPROVED/PLANNED
		FOR NEAR FUTURE	

Source: UCI, 2007.

Construction

All campus construction projects, including the proposed project, must implement air quality measures to control fugitive dust as required by the SCAQMD. In addition, the proposed project will also be required to implement project-specific controls (Mitigation Measure AQ-1 through AQ-7) to ensure that emissions of reactive organic compounds during the application of architectural coatings and other building sealants do not exceed SCAQMD daily thresholds. Since no other construction projects are currently scheduled in the vicinity of the proposed project, during the same time period, project-related impacts to cultural resources and noise are also not considered cumulative. Given the broad distribution of other ongoing projects and the continued implementation of mitigation measures to minimize impacts to air quality, cultural resources, and noise, no significant cumulative construction impacts would occur as a result of the proposed project.

Operation

The proposed project is consistent with the building space forecasts in the current LRDP and no significant environmental impacts have been identified in this IS/MND. Primary long-term effects resulting from the additional building intensity and increased capacity to accommodate new students, faculty and support staff would include: more building massing within the Health Sciences Complex; consistent in scale and massing with other buildings in the vicinity; increased demand on the campus utility systems without a need to expand the mainline infrastructure facilities; and an increase in the daily and peak period traffic trips. Therefore, the proposed project would not result in cumulatively considerable aesthetic impacts and would not contribute to cumulative impacts involving expansions to utility facilities.

As discussed in the Traffic Impact Study (Appendix C), the proposed project's impacts were evaluated in the context of cumulative growth (ambient growth rate of three percent per year) in volumes through the year 2009. According to Traffic Impact Study and summarized in Section 5.15, the project's traffic impacts would be less than cumulatively considerable and would not require any mitigation measures to achieve acceptable LOS on the studied intersections and road segments. As noted in the response 5.3, b, the project's air emissions during operation would be well below the SCAQMD thresholds, which were established to assess the significance of both project level and cumulative impacts.

The proposed project would not result in significant impacts that cannot be mitigated to a level that is less than significant. The analysis in this IS/MND has determined that the proposed project would not have any individually limited or cumulatively considerable impacts.

c. Does the project have environmental effects which would cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly?

No Impact. Construction and operation of the proposed project would not cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly. The impacts that the project could have on human beings have been reduced to below a level of significance by mitigation measures included in the proposed project. In addition, the proposed project will result in a beneficial impact on the SOM by providing additional needed space for interactive televideo and telemedicine "virtual care" consultation space, instructional and research space, and academic and administrative offices.

5.18 CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND GAME DETERMINATION

Based on the information above, there is no evidence that the proposed project has a potential for a change that would adversely affect wildlife resources or the habitat on which the wildlife depends. The presumption of adverse affect set forth in 14 CCR 153.5(d) has been rebuffed by substantial evidence.

X Yes (Certificate of Fee Exemption)

____No (pay fee)

6.0 **REFERENCES**

California Department of Conservation, Division of Land Resource Protection, Farmland Mapping and Monitoring program, *Orange County Important Farmland*, Vector Digital Data, 2004.

California Department of Conservation Division of Mines and Geology, *State of California Seismic Hazard Zones, Tustin Quadrangle*, January 2001.

California Department of Conservation, Division of Mines and Geology, *Special Publication 42 Fault Rupture Hazard Zones in California Alquist Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Act with Index to Earthquake Fault Zones Maps*, 1999.

Carrier Johnson. Telemedicine/PRIME-LC Facilities Detailed Project Program, March 2007.

Department of Toxic Substances Control http://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/search.asp.

Department of Toxic Substances Control, *Hazardous Waste and Substances Site List- Site Cleanup* (*Cortese List*) <u>http://www.dtsc.ca.gov/SiteCleanup/Cortese List.cfm</u>.

EIP Associates. Draft Environmental Impact Report Long Range Development Plan Circulation and Open Space Amendment, October 1995.

EIP Associates. *Final Environmental Impact Report Long Range Development Plan Circulation and Open Space Amendment*, December 1995.

Geobase, Inc. Preliminary Geotechnical Investigation Irvine Biomedical Research Center 2: Project No. 994105, University of California, Irvine. March 1998.

Kleinfelder. *Geotechnical Data Report Proposed Telemedicine Building University of California, Irvine*. April 2007.

National Register of Historic Places http://www.cr.nps.gov/nr/index.htm.

Office of Historic Preservation http://ohp.parks.ca.gov.

P&D Consultants. Site Visit, April 22, 2007.

Pereira & Associates, et al. Long Range Development Plan, University of California, Irvine. September 1989.

South Coast Air Quality Management District. *CEQA Air Quality Handbook,* November 1993. State of California, *Senate Bill No. 50*, Approved and Filed on August 27, 1998.

STA Planning, Inc. University of California, Irvine, 1989 Long Range Development Plan EIR, (State Clearing House No. 88052512). May 1989.

University of California, Irvine. Campus & Environmental Planning. April 2007.

7.0 LIST OF PREPARERS

LEAD AGENCY

University of California, Irvine Office of Campus & Environmental Planning 750 University Tower Irvine, CA 92697-2325

Alex S. Marks, AICP, Associate Planner 949.824.8692

CONSULTANTS TO THE LEAD AGENCY

P&D Consultants 999 Town & Country Road, 4th Floor Orange, CA 92868 714.835.4447

Jerry Flores, Project Manager Debra Leight, Senior Environmental Planner Namrata Belliappa, Environmental Planner Megan Keith, Environmental Planner Daryl Fisher, Word Processing

APPENDICES

APPENDIX A AIR QUALITY CALCULATIONS

URBEMIS 2002 For Windows 8.7.0

File Name:

 File Name:
 C:\Program Files\URBEMIS 2002 Version 8.7\Projects2k2\UCI Telemedicine Facility.urb

 Project Name:
 UCI Telemedicine Facility

 Project Location:
 South Coast Air Basin (Los Angeles area)

 On-Road Motor Vehicle Emissions
 Based on EMFAC2002 version 2.2

12)

SUMMARY REPORT (Pounds/Day - Summer)

CONSTRUCTION EMISSION ESTIMATES

*** 2007 *** TOTALS (lbs/day,unmitigated)	ROG 51.68	NOx 39.98	CO 48.40	SO2 0.00	PM10 TOTAL 6.60	PM10 EXHAUST 1.59	PM10 DUST 5.01	
*** 2008 *** TOTALS (lbs/day,unmitigated)	ROG 0.05	NOx 0.03	CO 0.61	SO2 0.00	PM10 TOTAL 0.01	PM10 EXHAUST 0.00	PM10 DUST 0.01	
AREA SOURCE EMISSION ESTIMATES							· ·	
TOTALS (lbs/day,unmitigated)	ROG. 0.52	NOx 0.28	CO 0.89	SO2 0.00	PM10 0.00			
OPERATIONAL (VEHICLE) EMISSION (2 CTTM X T P C							
CERTIFICATE (VERTICIES) ENTEDION I	ROG	NOx	co	SO2	PM10			
TOTALS (lbs/day,unmitigated)	8.80	5.73	59.62	0.04	6.44		·	
SUM OF AREA AND OPERATIONAL EMIS	SSION ESTIM	IATES						
TOTALS (lbs/day,unmitigated)	ROG 9.32	NOx 6.01	CO 60.52	SO2 0.04	PM10			

URBEMIS 2002 For Windows 8.7.0

 File Name:
 C:\Program Files\URBEMIS 2002 Version 8.7\Projects2k2\UCI Telemedicine Facility.urb

 Project Name:
 UCI Telemedicine Facility

 Project Location:
 South Coast Air Basin (Los Angeles area)

 On-Road Motor Vehicle Emissions Based on EMFAC2002 version 2.2

DETAIL REPORT (Pounds/Day - Summer)

Construction Start Month and Year: November, 2007 Construction Duration: 24 Total Land Use Area to be Developed: 0.5 acres Maximum Acreage Disturbed Per Day: 0.5 acres Single Family Units: 0 Multi-Family Units: 0 Retail/Office/Institutional/Industrial Square Footage: 28612

CONSTRUCTION EMISSION ESTIMATES UNMITIGATED (lbs/day)

			-		DM1 O	DW1 0	
Source	ROG	NOx	CO	502	TOTAL	PMIU	PM10
*** 2007***				202	IOIAD	DAIMODI	DOPT
Phase 1 - Demolition Emission	ons						
Fugitive Dust	-	-	-	-	0.52	-	0.52
Off-Road Diesel	2.72	20.78	20.15	-	0,93	0.93	0.00
On-Road Diesel	0.08	1.82	0.31	0.00	0.04	0.03	0.01
Worker Trips	0.02	0.06	0.55	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Maximum lbs/day	2.82	22.66	21.01	0.00	1.49	0,96	0.53
-							
Phase 2 - Site Grading Emis.	sions						
Fugitive Dust		-	-		5.00	· –	5.00
OIL-ROAD Diesel	5.84	39.62	46.63	-	1.59	1.59	0.00
Varban freinr	0.01	0.20	0.03	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Maximum lba/dau	0.08	0.16	1.74	0.00	0.01	0.00	0.01
Maximum ibs/day	5.93	39.98	48.40	0.00	6.60	1.59	5.01
Phase 3 - Building Construct	tion					٠	
Bldg Const Off-Road Diesel	0 00	0 00	0 00				
Bldg Const Worker Trips	0.00	0.00	0.00		0.00	0.00	0.00
Arch Coatings Off-Gas	48.12	0.05	0.66	0.00	0.01	0.00	0.01
Arch Coatings Worker Trips	+0.12	0.26	2 52	· -	-		· · · -
Asphalt Off-Gas	0.10	0.20	4.54	0.00	0.02	0.01	0.01
Asphalt Off-Road Diesel	3 34	21 74		. –		-	
Asphalt On-Road Diesel	0 01	0 24	27.25	0 00	0.82	0.82	0.00
Asphalt Worker Trips	0.04	0 11	1 10	0.00	0.01	0.UL	0.00
Maximum lbs/day	51.68	22.35	30 92	0.00	0.00	00	0.00
			50.52	0.00	0.86	0.84	0.02
Max lbs/day all phases	51.68	39.98	48.40	0.00	6.60	1.59	5.01
*** 2008***							
Phase 1 - Demolition Emission	ons						
Fugitive Dust		-	-	2	0.00	-	0 00
Off-Road Diesel	0.00	0.00	0.00	-	0.00	0.00	0.00
On-Road Diesel	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0:00
Worker Trips	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Maximum 1bs/day	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
							,
Phase 2 - Site Grading Emis:	sions						
Fugitive Dust		-	-	-	0.00	-	0.00
On Read Diesel	. 0.00	0.00	0.00	-	0.00	0.00	0.00
Vorkoad Diesel	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	• 0.00
Maximum lbs/days	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Maximum ibs/day	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Phase 3 - Building Construct	tion						
Bldg Const Off-Boad Diegol	0.00						
Bldg Const Worker Tring	0.00	0.00	0.00	-	0.00	0.00	0.00
Arch Costings Off-Cog	0.05	0.03	0.61	0.00	0.01	0.00	0.01
Arch Costings Worker Tring	0.00	-	-		-	-	· _
Asphalt Off-Gag	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Asphalt Off-Boad Diegol	0.00		-	-	-	-	
Asphalt On-Road Diesel	0.00	0.00	0.00	-	0.00	0.00	0.00
Asphalt Worker Tring	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Maximum lbs/day	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
man 100/ day	0.05	0.03	0.61	0.00	0.01	0.00	0.01
Max lbs/day all phages		0 03	0 11				
Loo, day are phases	0.05	0.03	0.61	υ.00	0.01	0.00	0.01

Phase 1 - Demolition Assumptions Start Month/Year for Phase 1: Nov '07 Phase 1 Duration: 0.6 months Building Volume Total (cubic feet): 15625 Building Volume Daily (cubic feet): 1250 On-Road Truck Travel (VMT): 69 Off-Road Equipment No. Type Horsepower Load Factor Hours/Day Other Equipment 1 190 0.620 8.0 1 Tractor/Loaders/Backhoes 79 0.465 8.0 Phase 2 - Site Grading Assumptions Start Month/Year for Phase 2: Nov '07 Phase 2 Duration: 1.2 months On-Road Truck Travel (VMT): 8 Off-Road Equipment No. Type Horsepower Load Factor Hours/Day Graders 1 174^{-1} 0.575 8.0 1 Other Equipment 190 0.620 8.0 1 Rubber Tired Loaders 165 0.465 8.0 1 Tractor/Loaders/Backhoes 79 0.465 8.0 Phase 3 - Building Construction Assumptions Start Month/Year for Phase 3: Dec '07 Phase 3 Duration: 10.2 months Start Month/Year for SubPhase Building: Dec '07 SubPhase Building Duration: 10.2 months Off-Road Equipment No. Туре Horsepower Load Factor Hours/Day Start Month/Year for SubPhase Architectural Coatings: Sep '07 SubPhase Architectural Coatings Duration: 1 months Start Month/Year for SubPhase Asphalt: Sep '07 SubPhase Asphalt Duration: 0.5 months Acres to be Paved: 0.25 Off-Road Equipment No. Type Horsepower Load Factor Hours/Day

190

111

114

0.430

0.530

0.430

8.0

8.0

8.0

12

Page: 3

1

1

1

Cranes

Rollers

Paving Equipment

04/27/2007 4:01 PM

AREA SOURCE EMISSION ESTIMATES Source Natural Gas	(Summer ROG 0.02	Pounds per NOx 0.28	Day, Unmit CO 0.23	igated) SO2 0	PM10 0.00
Hearth - No summer emissions Landscaping	0.10	0 00	0 66	0.00	0 00
Consumer Prdcts	0.00	-	-	-	0.00
Architectural Coatings	0.40	-	· –	-	-
TOTALS(lbs/day,unmitigated)	0.52	0.28	0.89	0.00	0.00

Page: 4 04/27/2007 4:01 PM

e?

UNMITIGATED OPERATIONAL EMISSIONS

University/college (4 yrs	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	PM10
	8.80	5.73	59.62	0.04	6.44
TOTAL EMISSIONS (lbs/day)	8.80	5.73	59.62	0.04	6.44

Does not include correction for passby trips. Does not include double counting adjustment for internal trips.

OPERATIONAL (Vehicle) EMISSION ESTIMATES

Analysis Year: 2009 Temperature (F): 90 Season: Summer

EMFAC Version: EMFAC2002 (9/2002)

Summary of Land Uses:

Unit Type	Acreage	Trip Rate	No. Units	Total Trips
University/college (4 yrs		2.38 trips/students	311.00	740.18
		Sum of Total Total Vehicle Miles Tra	Trips veled	740.18 4,248.63

Vehicle Assumptions:

Fleet Mix:

Vehicle Type	Percent Type	Non-Catalyst	Catalvst	Diesel	
Light Auto	54.90	1.30	98.40	0 30	
Light Truck < 3,750 lbs	s 15.10	2.60	95 40	2.00	
Light Truck 3,751- 5,750) 16.10	1.20	98 10	2.00	
Med Truck 5,751- 8,500	7.30	1 40	95 90	0.70	
Lite-Heavy 8,501-10,000	0 1.10	0 00	91 00	. 2.70	
Lite-Heavy 10,001-14,000	0.30	0.00	61.80	18.20	
Med-Heavy 14,001-33,000)· 1 00	0.00	66.70	33.30	
Heavy-Heavy 33,001-60,000	0 90	0.00	20.00	80.00	
Line Haul > 60.000 lbs		0.00	11.10	88.90	
Urban Bug	0.00	0.00	0.00	100.00	
Motorguale	0.20	0.00	50.00	50.00	
School Pur-	1.60	75.00	25.00	0.00	
SCHOOL BUS	0.10	0.00	0.00	100.00	
Motor Home	1.40	7.10	85.70	7.20	64-
Travel Conditions					

· · · ·	Residential Home- Home- Home-		Commercial			
Urban Trip Length (miles) Rural Trip Length (miles) Trip Speeds (mph) * of Trips - Residential	Work 11.5 11.5 35.0 20.0	Shop 4.9 4.9 40.0 37.0	Other 6.0 6.0 40.0	Commute 10.3 10.3 40.0	Non-Work 5.5 5.5 40.0	Customer 5.5 5.5 40.0

5.0

2.5

92.5

% of Trips - Commercial (by land use)
University/college (4 yrs)

Page: 6 04/27/2007 4:01 PM

Changes made to the default values for Land Use Trip Percentages Changes made to the default values for Construction The user has overridden the Default Phase Lengths Changes made to the default values for Area The hearth option switch changed from on to off. The landscape year changed from 2005 to 2009. Changes made to the default values for Operations

> ر. منظنا

The operational emission year changed from 2005 to 2009.

APPENDIX B GEOTECHNICAL DATA REPORT

GEOTECHNICAL DATA REPORT PROPOSED TELEMEDICINE BUILDING UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, IRVINE IRVINE, CALIFORNIA

Project No. 82780

Prepared for:

University of California, Irvine Design and Construction Services 5201 California Avenue, Suite 250 Irvine, California 92697

Prepared by:

KLEINFELDER. 8 Pasteur, Ste 190 Irvine, California 92618

April 30, 2007

This document was prepared for use only by the client, only for the purposes stated, and within a reasonable time from issuance. Non-commercial, educational and scientific use of this report by regulatory agencies is regarded as a "fair use" and not a violation of copyright. Regulatory agencies may make additional copies of this document for internal use. Copies may also be made available to the public as required by law. The reprint must acknowledge the copyright and indicate that permission to reprint has been received.

82780/IRV7R053 Copyright 2007 Kleinfelder Page i of iii

KLEINFELDER

An employee owned company

April 30, 2007 Project No. 82780

University of California, Irvine

Design and Construction Services 5201 California Avenue, Suite 250 Irvine, California 92697

Attention: Mr. Steven S. Muellers

Subject: Geotechnical Data Report Proposed Telemedicine Building Bison and Health Sciences Road University of California, Irvine Irvine, California

Dear Mr. Muellers:

Kleinfelder is pleased to present this geotechnical data report for the proposed Telemedicine Building located at the University of California, Irvine (UCI) campus in Irvine, California. The purpose of the geotechnical data report is to characterize the soil and bedrock conditions at the site. We understand that this data report will be provided to the design-build teams bidding on the project so that they may develop a design-level geotechnical report that is specific to their building design concept.

This report has been prepared in substantial conformance with our proposal dated April 9, 2007 (Proposal No. IRV7P047). This report was prepared exclusively for UCI for specific application to the subject project according to generally accepted geotechnical engineering practices. We make no other warranty, either express or implied.

We appreciate the opportunity to provide geotechnical engineering services to you on this project. If you have any questions regarding this report, or if we can be of further service, please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned.

Respectfully submitted, **KLEINFELDER WEST** NO. C035386 Ex. Date 9/30/07 Jácques B. Roy, P.E. Brian E. Crystal, P.E. ATE OF CAL Geotechnical Group Manager Senior Geotechnical Engine

Page ii of iii

KLEINFELDER expect more*

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section

Page

1.0	INTR	ODUCTION	1
	1.1	PROJECT DESCRIPTION	1
	1.2	SCOPE OF SERVICES	1
2.0	SITE	AND SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS	5
	2.1	SITE DESCRIPTION	5
	2.2	GEOLOGIC SETTING	6
	2.3	FAULTING AND SEISMICITY	6
	2.4	SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS	7
		2.4.1 Artificial Fill	7
		2.4.2 Terrace Deposits	8
		2 4 3 Topanga Formation	9
	25	GROUNDWATER	9
3.0	EIND	INGS	11
3.0 4 A		INCO	12
4.U E 0			13
D.C	REFI		

MAPS

Site Access Map Site Location Map Boring Location Map

APPENDICES

Appendix AField ExplorationsAppendix BGeotechnical Laboratory TestingAppendix CEnvironmental Analytical Testing

Follows Text Follows Text

2

٠

1.0 INTRODUCTION

This geotechnical data report presents the results of our field explorations and laboratory testing for the proposed Telemedicine Building at the UCI campus. The site is located in the upper courtyard area of the existing Building 835 within the northwestern portion of the UCI Campus, north of Bison Avenue and east of California Avenue. The location of the site is shown on the Site Access Map on the following page.

The purpose of the geotechnical data report is to characterize the soil and bedrock conditions at the site. We understand that the data report will be provided to the design-build teams bidding on the project so that they may develop a design-level geotechnical report that is specific to their building design concept.

1.1 PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Kleinfelder understands that UCI plans to construct a 3-story building that will house classrooms, laboratories, and offices. We understand that the footprint of the building will measure about 140 by 140 feet in plan (approximately 20,000 square feet). No basement level is planned at this time.

1.2 SCOPE OF SERVICES

The scope of our services consisted of subsurface explorations, geotechnical laboratory testing, and preparation of this report. A more detailed description of our scope of services performed for this project follows.

Our report includes a description of the work performed, a discussion of the geotechnical conditions observed at the site, and the results of our subsurface explorations and laboratory testing. The conclusions contained within this report are subject to the limitations presented in Section 4.

Task 1 – Field Exploration. The subsurface conditions at the site were explored by drilling six borings using limited-access hollow-stem-auger drilling equipment to depths of approximately 41½ to 51½ feet below the existing ground surface (bgs). Three hand-auger borings were also excavated to depths of approximately 2 feet bgs to obtain soil



samples for environmental analytical testing. The approximate locations of the borings are presented on the Boring Location Map.

Prior to commencement of the fieldwork, each of our proposed boring locations were cleared for known existing utility lines with participating utility companies through Underground Service Alert (USA) and a geophysical survey. During the field exploration, a Kleinfelder engineer supervised the field operations and logged the borings. Selected bulk and drive samples were retrieved, sealed and transported to our laboratory for further evaluation. The number of blows necessary to drive both Standard Penetration Test (SPT) and modified California-type samplers were recorded. A description of the field exploration and the logs of the borings, including a Legend to the Logs of Borings, are presented in Appendix A.

Task 3 – Laboratory Testing. Laboratory testing was performed on representative bulk and relatively undisturbed samples to substantiate field classifications and to provide engineering parameters for geotechnical design. Laboratory testing consisted of in-situ moisture content and dry unit weight, wash sieve analysis (minus #200 sieve), grain-size distribution, consolidation, direct shear, R-Value, expansion index, Atterberg Limits, maximum density/optimum moisture content, and preliminary corrosion potential tests. A summary of the testing performed and the results are presented in Appendix B. In addition to the geotechnical laboratory testing, three soil samples were obtained for environmental analytical testing. The results of this testing are presented in Appendix C.

Task 4 – Report Preparation. This geotechnical data report summarizes the work performed and data acquired. The following are presented in this report:

- Site Access Map;
- Site Location Map;
- Boring Location Map;
- Logs of borings;
- Results of laboratory tests;
- Discussion of general site conditions;
- Discussion of general subsurface conditions, as encountered in the field explorations;
- Discussion of laboratory test results;
- Findings regarding soil expansion potential;
- Findings regarding groundwater;
- Findings of the environmental testing;
- Findings regarding the corrosion potential of the on-site soils.

2.0 SITE AND SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS

2.1 SITE DESCRIPTION

We understand that the proposed building will be constructed within the upper courtyard area of the Irvine Hall (Building 835). The site presently contains a courtyard/parking lot, and planters and grass areas. The parking lot surface consists of concrete pavers. Based on the geophysical survey performed for utility locations, there is a reinforced concrete slab below the pavers. Boring 4, drilled near the center planter, encountered a 5-inch thick concrete slab underlain by 6 inches of aggregate base below the pavers. The reinforcement observed consisted of #10 welded wire mesh. It should be noted that the reinforcement, concrete thickness and depth of aggregate base may vary.

The center of the site contains a raised planter bordered by 6 feet of concrete enclosing a perimeter storm drain inlet. The planter measures approximately 28 by 28 feet in plan. The paver area is bordered by a 2-foot-wide mow strip followed by a 12-foot-wide strip of grass. Along the outside perimeter of the grass there is another mow strip bordered by a 4-foot-wide raised planter. The planter has been capped with concrete on the north side of the site. Immediately south of the entry stairs from the parking to the Irvine Hall building, there is a rose garden measuring about 10 by 16 feet in plan.

Access to the parking/courtyard area is via a 25-foot wide staircase climbing approximately 10 feet on the east side of the site. The 35-foot-wide driveway on the south side allows entrance and exit of vehicles. The east side and southeast corner of the site overlook a slope that is approximately 8 to 12 feet high and has gradients ranging from about 2:1 to 5:1 (horizontal:vertical).

The site contains underground utilities such as water, sewer, storm drain, and electric lines. We understand that the center of the site was previously used as a fountain and the electric pump may still be in place. We further understand that along the north side of the site, there is a buried facility, the "cyclotron" room that connects to the existing building. The "cyclotron" room may be approximately 24 by 30 feet in plan, based on the geophysical survey performed for underground utility locations.

2.2 GEOLOGIC SETTING

The site is located within the northwestern San Joaquin Hills portion of the Peninsular Ranges geomorphic province of California. The San Joaquin Hills are considered to be the western portion of the Santa Ana Mountain Block of the province. They are bounded on the north by the Tustin Plain, on the east by Oso Creek and on the west and south by the Pacific Ocean.

The Peninsular Ranges are a northwest-southeast oriented complex of mountain ranges and valleys. The mountain ranges are separated by northwest trending strike slip faults. The Peninsular Ranges Geomorphic Province is bound on the north by the eastern Puente Hills and on the west by the Orange County Coastal Plain portion of the Los Angeles Basin. The eastern portion of the Peninsular Ranges Province is bounded by the Elsinore Fault. The Peninsular Ranges continue southward through Imperial County and into Mexico. The site lies between the Elsinore fault zone and is on a tectonically folded block between these two faults.

According to a review of published maps, the site area is underlain by marine terrace deposits. Tertiary age marine sedimentary rocks of the Paularino Member of the Topanga Formation underlay the terrace deposits.

2.3 FAULTING AND SEISMICITY

Our review of geologic maps, including CDMG (2001), indicates that active or potentially active faults are not currently mapped on or projected toward the site. Under the current understanding of regional seismo-tectonics, the largest maximum magnitude event to significantly impact the site may be generated by the Newport-Inglewood fault, having a moment magnitudes of M7.1. The Newport-Inglewood fault is a Type B Fault located about 8 km from the site. Also, recent research indicates that "blind thrust faults" (faults that have not broken the ground surface and display little direct evidence of surface expression) may underlie this part of Orange County and adjacent areas. The closest postulated blind thrust fault to the sight is the San Joaquin Hills fault, which is postulated to be responsible for the Quaternary uplift of the San Joaquin Hills. The ability of the San Joaquin Hills fault has not been clearly defined but it may be able to generate an earthquake similar to other nearby active faults such as the Newport-

Inglewood fault. Its projection to the surface is located approximately 4½ km from the site and has been assigned a magnitude of 6.6.

The CDMG (Web site 2007) indicates a 10% probability of exceedance in 50 years of an acceleration of approximately 0.4g for alluvium and 0.36 for soft rock site within this area. The site is located in Seismic Zone 4 of the 1997 edition of the Uniform Building Code (UBC).

The site is not currently located within a State and County designated Seismic Hazard Zone for liquefaction potential (CDMG, 2001).

2.4 SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS

The site is generally underlain by artificial fill soils over terrace deposits and bedrock of the Topanga Formation. A discussion of the subsurface soils/bedrock encountered is presented below. Detailed descriptions of the soils are provided in the boring logs presented in Appendix A.

2.4.1 Artificial Fill

Fill was encountered in all of the borings drilled within the site area. As observed in our borings, fill soils to a depth of 28 feet below existing grade, were encountered. The fill depth should be expected to vary between and beyond the borings. Based on the USGS Topographic Map, the ground surface formerly sloped to the north, and the fill should be expected to be thicker on the north side of the site. The three borings on the south side of the site confirmed shallower fill thicknesses of less than about 15 feet near the southern margin.

The borings indicate that a large portion of the fill appears to have been derived from local terrace deposits and import from various alluvium sources. Below a thin topsoil layer, the fill observed generally consists of clay, clayey sand, silty sand and sand. Borings B-1, B-2 and B-6 had a clay cap about 5 to 6 feet thick, and Boring B-4 near the center of the site had clay extending to approximately 10 feet. The other borings had clay mixed with the sand. The fill is presumably the result of the previous development for the existing building.

The fill was observed to range from soft to stiff and loose to medium dense, and from slightly moist to wet. The in-situ moisture content test results ranged from about 8 to 31 percent with an average of about 17 percent, as measured from samples obtained from the borings. The corresponding dry unit weights range from 93 to 119 pcf with an average of about 107 pcf. Some of the moisture may be as high as 18 percent above optimum. Three maximum density tests were performed to obtain an indication of the relative compaction of the fill. Based on our interpretation of the data, the relative compaction for the depths of the maximum density tests appears to be generally less than 90 percent. At the time this report was prepared, observation and testing documentation for the fill had not been found. The consolidation test data presented in Appendix B and the blow counts presented on the boring logs should also be reviewed to evaluate the compressibility of the fills.

Based on our visual observation and the Atterberg Limit test results, the clay ranges from low to high plasticity. The two expansion index tests indicated moderate to high expansion potential for the clay soils.

2.4.2 Terrace Deposits

The marine terrace deposits encountered below the fill consisted primarily of dense to very dense silty sand, sand with silt and poorly graded fine-grained sand. The terrace deposits were encountered at depths of about 12 to 27 feet below the existing ground surface. The thickness of the terrace deposits encountered in the borings ranges from approximately 9 to 25 feet.

The laboratory test data indicate moisture contents between about 4½ and 18 percent with an average of about 6½ percent. The corresponding dry unit weights range between 99 and 115 pcf with an average of approximately 104 pcf. The gradation tests indicate predominantly poorly graded fine-grained sand. A friction angle of 37 degree was obtained with the direct shear tests.

The terrace deposits generally ranges from dense to very dense. The blow counts presented on the boring logs should be reviewed to evaluate the compressibility of the terrace deposits. Appropriate correction factors should be used for the blow counts depending upon the type of sampler, depth and other factors.

2.4.3 Topanga Formation

The bedrock was encountered below the terrace deposits at depths ranging from approximately 32 to 37 feet. The bedrock has been assigned to the Paularino Member of the Topanga Formation. The bedrock encountered generally consists of siltstone and sandstone and sedimentary breccia. The Paularino Member is generally relatively weathered within the upper 5 to 10 feet and gradually less weathered with depth except for localized areas where it can be completely weathered (soil-like). Depending upon the degree of weathering, the material can be soil-like or very strong, hard rock.

The laboratory test data indicate moisture contents ranging from about 13 percent for the sandstone to about 39 percent for the siltstone with an average of about 28 percent. The corresponding dry unit weights range between 86 and 112 pcf with an average of approximately 99 pcf.

2.5 GROUNDWATER

Published information indicates that the historic high groundwater level is approximately 10 feet below the ground surface. Groundwater was observed in five of the borings drilled. Groundwater appears to be generally perched near the contact of the bedrock and terrace deposits and follows joints, fractures, and beds within the bedrock.

The groundwater depths encountered during the recent borings are listed in Table 1. Groundwater levels should be expected to vary throughout the year. Elevated zones of perched water and high soil moisture content should be anticipated during and following the rainy season. Irrigation of landscaped areas can also cause fluctuations of local groundwater levels. Local perched water may be encountered within the existing fill.

Location	Boring No.	Groundwater Depth (Feet)	Groundwater Elevation (Feet)	Date
SW Corner of Site	B-2	41	65	4/17/077
NW Corner of Site	B-3	41	65	4/17/077
NW Corner of Planter	B-4	35	72	4/17/077
NE Corner of Site	B-5	35	72	4/17/077
East Side of Site	B-6	45	60	4/17/077

Table 1. Groundwater Levels*

*See Boring Location Map for Locations.

3.0 FINDINGS

Relatively deep artificial fills ranging from sand to fat clay were encountered at the site. The compressibility of the fill was found to range from low to moderately high. The limited testing indicates that the relative compaction may be generally less than 90 percent for the depths tested. The optimum moisture content of the fill samples obtained is generally between 9 and 13 percent while the insitu moistures range predominantly between 8 and 31 percent with an average of about 17 percent.

Laboratory testing indicated that some soils have medium to high expansion potential. The soluble sulfate and chloride contents of the soils tested were found to be low to moderate.

Environmental soil testing did not encounter high concentrations of hazardous wastes and handling, transport, and/or disposal as California hazardous or Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) hazardous wastes is not required for the samples tested. TPH and VOCs were not detected in the samples. The CCR Title 22 Metals concentrations detected in the soil samples were below their respective Preliminary Remediation Goals. The results of the environmental testing are presented in Appendix C.

The bidders should review all field and laboratory data and anticipate variation in soil conditions and properties.

This study may not have disclosed all the various fill and underground facilities. The bidders should review all existing documents for additional information regarding previous excavations and buried facilities.

4.0 LIMITATIONS

This geotechnical data report has been prepared for the exclusive use of UCI and their agents for specific application to the proposed Telemedicine Building located at the University of California, Irvine (UCI) campus in Irvine, California. The findings presented in this report were prepared in accordance with generally accepted geotechnical engineering practice. No other warranty, express or implied, is made. The purpose of the geotechnical data report is to characterize the soil and bedrock conditions at the site. We understand that the data report will be provided to the design-build teams bidding on the project so that they may develop a design-level geotechnical report that is specific to their building design concept.

The scope of our geotechnical services did not include any environmental site assessment for the presence or absence of hazardous/toxic materials in surface water, groundwater or atmosphere, or the presence of wetlands.

The client has the responsibility to see that all parties to the project, including the designer, contractor, subcontractors, etc., are made aware of this report in its entirety. This report contains information, which may be useful in the preparation of contract specifications. However, the report is not designed as a specification document and may not contain sufficient information for this use without proper modification.

This report may be used only by the client and only for the purposes stated, within a reasonable time from its issuance, but in no event later than one year from the date of the report. Land use, site conditions (both on site and off site) or other factors may change over time, and additional work may be required with the passage of time. Any party, other than the client who wishes to use this report shall notify Kleinfelder of such intended use. Based on the intended use of this report and the nature of the new project, Kleinfelder may require that additional work be performed and that an updated report be issued. Non-compliance with any of these requirements by the client or anyone else will release Kleinfelder from any liability resulting from the use of this report by any unauthorized party and the client agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Kleinfelder from any claims or liability associated with such unauthorized use or non-compliance.

5.0 REFERENCES

- California Division of Mines and Geology, 1998, Seismic Hazard Evaluation of the Tustin 7.5-Minute Quadrangle, Orange County, Open File Report 97-20, revised 2001.
- Miller, R.V. and Tan, S.S., Geology and Engineering Geologic Aspects of the South Half Tustin Quadrangle, Orange County, California, California Division of Mines and Geology, 1976





BORING LOCATION MAP

APPENDIX A FIELD EXPLORATIONS

APPENDIX A FIELD EXPLORATIONS

The field exploration consisted of a site reconnaissance and drilling borings. Six borings were drilled to depths ranging between 41.5 and 51.5 feet, using limited-access hollow-stem-auger drilling equipment, on April 17, 2007. Three hand-auger borings were also excavated to depths of about 2 feet on April 18, 2007 to obtain soil samples for environmental analytical testing. At the completion of drilling, the boreholes were backfilled with the excavated soils.

The Logs of Borings are presented as Plates A-2 through A-7. An explanation to the logs is presented as Plates A-1a and A-1b. The Logs of Borings describe the earth materials encountered, samples obtained and show field and laboratory tests performed. The logs also show the boring number, drilling date and the name of the drilling subcontractor. The boundaries between material types shown on the logs are approximate because the transition between different layers may be gradual. Bulk and relatively undisturbed samples of representative earth materials were obtained from the borings.

The Logs of Borings indicate the approximate boring elevations. These elevations are for illustration purpose only since there was no topographic map available with the elevations of the courtyard area at the time the report was prepared.

A Modified California sampler was used to obtain relatively undisturbed samples of the soil encountered. This sampler consists of a 3-inch O.D., 2.4-inch I.D. split barrel shaft that is pushed or driven a total of 18 inches into the soil at the bottom of the boring. The material was retained in seven 1-inch brass rings for laboratory testing. The sampler was driven using a 140-pound automatic hammer falling 30-inches. The total number of blows required to drive the sampler for the last 12 inches is termed blow count and is recorded on the Logs of Borings.

Samples were also obtained using a Standard Penetration Sampler (SPT). This sampler consists of a 2-inch O.D., 1-inch I.D. split barrel shaft that is advanced into the materials at the bottom of the drill hole a total of 18 inches. The sampler was driven using a 140-pound hammer falling 30 inches. The total number of hammer blows required to drive the sampler the final 12 inches is termed the SPT blow count (N) and is recorded on the Logs of Borings. The procedures we employed in the field are

generally consistent with those described in ASTM Standard Test Method D1586. Bulk samples of the soils were retrieved directly from the auger blades.

		Date Drill Drill Logg	e Drille led By ling Me ged By	ed: ; ethod	:	Water Depth: Date Measured: Reference Elevation: Datum:						
Elevation (feet) Depth	Sample	Sample No.	Blow Count (Blows/ft.)	Graphic Log	GEOTI	ECHNICAL DESCRIPTI AND CLASSIFICATION	ON	Dry Density (pcf)	Moisture Content (%)	Additional Tests		
		1	6					108	10	DS, SE		
		2	12							GS		
5				2 - 1 A.								
	(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)								(6)	(7)		
10	10											
	1						.1					
1		15	Gr	anhical re	• <u>INUIES UP</u>	a shown below.	<u>N</u>					
1.	1. SAMPLE - Graphical representation of sample type as shown below. Split Spoon - Standard Penetration Test Sample (SPT)											
	Bulk	Samp	le - Co	tained by	collecting cuttings in a plast	ic bag	X					
2	SAMP	Samp	ne – su) – sum	ole Num	ner lube sample							
3.	BLOWS Samp Drive When SCR/I	S/FT lers in sample a SPT RQD	- Number general we es collected sampler i Sample C	of blows ere driver 1 in buck s used tl ore Reco	required to advance sampler a into the soil at the bottom tet auger borings may be obl he blow count conforms to A very (SCR) in percent (%) an	1 foot (unless a lesser distance of the hole with a standard (tained by dropping non-standard STM D-1586. In Rock Quality Designation (RQ	te is specified). 140 lb) hammer droppi d weight from variable D) in percent (%). RQD	ng a stand heights. is defined	iard 30 as the	inches.		
	perce: are n	ntage o ot con	of core in sidered.	each rur	n which the spacing between	natural fractures is greater tha	n 4 inches. Mechanical	breaks of	the co	re		
4.	GRAP	HIC LI	0G – Sta	indard s	symbols for soil and rock	types, as shown on plate (3-15.					
5.	GEOTE	CHNIC/	AL DESCRIP	TION	wood on the Unified Seil Cla	scification System per ASTM D-	2487 and designations	include co	nsisten	v. maisture.		
	<u>Soll</u> -	and o	ther modifi	iers. Field	l descriptions have been mod	lified to reflect results of labora	itory analyses where de	emed appi	ropriate.			
	<u>Roc</u> k the n where	 Roc nechani appro 	k classifica ical proper priate.	ations ge ties of th	nerally include a rock type, c ne rock. Fabric, lineations, be	color, moisture, mineral constitue dding spacing, foliations, and d	ents, degree of weather egree of cementation a	ing, alterai re also pri	tion, and esented	,		
	Descr	iption	of soil orig	jîn or roc	ck formation is placed in bra	ckets at the beginning of the d	lescription where applica	ble, for e	xample,	Residual Soil.		
6.	DRY	DENSI	TY, MOIST	URE CO	NTENT: As estimated by lo	aboratory or field testing.	(a):					
7.	7. ADDITIONAL TESTS - (Indicates sample tested for properties other than the above): PP - Pocket Penetrometer MAX - Maximum Dry Density SG - Specific Gravity PP - Pocket Penetrometer GS - Grain Size Distribution HA - Hydrometer Analysis WA - Wash Analysis SE - Sand Equivalent AL - Atterberg Limits DS - Direct Shear EI - Expansion Index RV - R-Value CP - Collapse Potential CHEM - Sulfate and Chloride Content, pH, Resistivity CN - Consolidation UC - Unconfined Compression PM - Permeability CU - Consolidated Drained Triaxial T - Torvane											
8.	ATTITI respe	JDES ctively,	- Orientatic preceeded	en of rec Iby α οι	k discontinuity observed in bu ne-letter symbol denoting nat	ucket auger boring or rock core ture of discontinuity as shown b	e, expressed in strike/d elow.	ip and dip	angle,			
		8: B	edding Plar	1e	J: Jointing C: Conta	ct 1: Fault S:	Sugar					
	I,		K 1 8	- 1 N	FFINFR					PLATE		
	EXPLANATION OF LOGS A-10											

	UNIFI	ED SOIL	CLA	SSI	FICATIO	N SYSTE	:M (/	ast m i	D-2487)		
PRI	MARY DIVISIONS		GRC	DUP :	SYMBOLS			SEC	ONDARY DIVISI	ONS	
	W	CLEAN GRAVELS		GW	0000	WELL GRADED GRAVELS, GRAVEL-SAND MIXTURES, LITTLE OR NO FINES					
S	ON DATES	(LESS THAN) 5% FINES		GP		POORLY GRA	DED GRA	WELS OR G	RAVEL-SAND MIXTU	ires, little or no fines	
	GRACII ACCII SCERACII	GRAVEL.		GM		SILTY GRAVE	.S, GRAV	/ELSAND:	SILT MIXTURES		
VE SEC		FINES		GC		CLAYEY GRAV	ÆLS, GR	AVEL-SAND	-CLAY MIXTURES		
	AN S AN S AN S AN S AN S AN S AN S AN S	CLEAN SANDS		SW		WELL GRADED SANDS, GRAVELLY SANDS, LITTLE OR NO FINES					
ARSE ORE #200	COA IEVEN IEVEN IEVEN	(LESS THAN) 5% FINES		SP		POORLY GRA	DED SAN	IDS OR GR	AVELLY SANDS, LITT	LE OR NO FINES	
MATE CO	ALLE #4	SANDS		SM	34	SILTY SANDS	, SAND-	SILT MIXTU	RES		
	A HAL	FINES		SC	XIIII	CLAYEY SAND	DS, SANE	-CLAY MIX	TURES		
N.	R. O	S		ML.		INORGANIC S CLAYEY FINE	ILTS, VE SANDS	RY FINE SA	NDS, ROCK FLOUR,	SILTY OR	
E ^R A T		ANA		CL		INORGANIC C SANDY CLAYS	LAYS OF S, SILTY	CLAYS, LEA	AEDIUM PLASTICITY, N CLAYS	GRAVELLY CLAYS,	
D SC MALF SIZ	ਲ <u>–</u>	<u>ب</u>		٥L		ORGANIC SIL	TS AND	ORGANIC S	ILT-CLAYS OF LOW	PLASTICITY	
SIEVINE SIEVINE	5	F .6		мн		INORGANIC S SILTS, ELAST	ILTS, MIC IC SILTS	CACEOUS O	R DIATOMACEOUS FI	INE SANDS OR	
		AN REAL		CH		INORGANIC C	LAYS OF	HIGH PLA	STICITY, FAT CLAYS	*****	
FIN MOI		0F	ļ	он		ORGANIC CLA	YS OF	MEDIUM TO	HIGH PLASTICITY, C	DRGANIC SILTS	
×	HIGHLY ORGAN	IC SOILS		PT		PEAT, MUCK AND OTHER HIGHLY ORGANIC SOILS					
	SANDSTO	1ES		SS					,	······································	
AL	SILITSTON	ES	ļ	SH							
YPIC	CLAYSTON	IES	ļ	CS							
FOR	LIMESTON	IES		LS							
	SHALE			SL							
	C	ONSISTER	ICY	CR	TERIA	BASED C	ON F	IELD T	ESTS		
									POCKET **		
RELATIVE	DENSITY: COARSE-GRA	INED SOIL		CON: FINE	SISTENCY: GRAINED SC	ЯL		KVANE.	PENETROMETER	* NUMBER OF BLOWS OF 140 POUND HAMMER	
RELATIVE DENSITY	SPT * (# blows/ft)	RELATIVE DENSITY (%)	,	c0	NSISTENCY	SPT (# blows/ft)	UND SI STREN	RAINED HEAR GTH (tsf)	UNCONFINED COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH (tsf)	FALLING 30 INCHES TO DRIVE A 2 INCH O.D. (1 3/8 INCH I.D.) SPLIT BARREL SAMPLER	
Very Loose	<4	0 - 15		V	ery Soft	<2	<	0.13	<0.25	(ASTM-1586 STANDARD PENETRATION TEST)	
Loose	4 - 10	15 - 35			Soft	2 - 4	0.13	- 0.25	0.25 - 0.5	** UNCONFINED	
Medium Dense	10 - 30	35 - 65		Me	dium Stiff	4 - 8	0.25	- 0.5	0.5 - 1.0	COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH IN	
Dense	30 - 50	65 - 85			Stiff	8 - 15	0.5	- 1.0	1.0 - 2.0	IONS/SQ.FT. READ FROM POCKET PENETROMETER	
Verv Dense	>50	85 - 100			Hard	>30	1.0	>2.0	>4.0		
L	1]	L			L	~ 4.14		1	
	MOISTURE	CONTENT			·			C	EMENTATION	N1	

DESCRIPTION	FIELD TEST
Dry	Absence of moisture, dusty, dry to the touch
Moist	Damp but no visible water
Wet	Visible free water, usually soil is below water table

DESCRIPTION	FIELD TEST
Weakiy	Crumbles or breaks with handling or slight finger pressure
Moderately	Crumbles or breaks with considerable finger pressure
Strongly	Will not crumble or break with finger pressure

KLEINFELDER

EXPLANATION OF LOGS

PLATE

A-1b

Date Drilled:	4/17/07	Wate	er Depth:	N/A			
Drilled By:	Cal Pac Drilling	Date	Measured:	N/A	,		,
Drilling Method:	Hollow-Stem Aug	er, 8" Elev	ation:	106 f	eet (a	appro	ox.)
Logged By:	JBK	Datu	<u>m:</u>	MSL			
vation et) aple Type aple Number ws per Foot phic Log		y Density :f)	visture ntent (%)	ditional sts			
Gra Blo Blo Gra							Te: Ad
	FILL Sandy Lean Clay (CI	.): gray to orange br	own, very moist to w	ret, soft		22.1 21.4	WA (60% fines)
	Silty Sand (SM): fine inclusions, moist, medi	to medium-grained, um dense	orange brown, sandy	/ clay	110	14.4	GS (29% fines)
					98	11.3	
$\begin{bmatrix} -90 & 15 \\ -90 & -15 \\ -90 & -16 \\ -90$	MARINE TERRACE Poorly Graded Sand with rusty orange layer	<u>CDEPOSITS</u> with Silt (SP-SM): s 1/16 to 1/4" thick,	fine-grained, greyish dense, slightly moist	n brown	99	6.5	GS (6% fines)
$\begin{bmatrix} 20 \\ -85 \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} -7 \\ -85 \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} 7 \\ -85 \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} 46 \\ -7 \\ -7 \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} -7 \\ -7 \end{bmatrix}$			·			5.1	
8 42/50-5 [*]					100	7.2	WA (7% fines)
9 37 -75 30 9 37						5.8	
35 - 70 35 - 10 38/50-4"		TTON'			100	5.7	
	Sandstone (SP): inter weak cementation, mo	bedded with siltston	e, oxidized pockets,	very			
KLEIN	FELDER	TELEMEDICIN Bison and Health	E BUILDING Sciences Road				PLATE
PROJECT NO. 82780		Irvine, California	RING B-1				A-2a

Elevation (feet) Depth	Sample Type	Sample Number	Blows per Foot	HH [1]] Graphic Log	(Conti	SOIL DESCRIPTION AND CLASSIFICATION inued From Previous Page)	Dry Density (nef)	9. Content (%)	Additional Tests
- 60					Total depth 43 feet Refusal of the auger Hole backfilled No groundwater encou Hole drilled in grass an	intered rea on east side of driveway entrance			
						·			
6									
ED GPJ KA RDLND GDT 5/15/									
RAHOMAN PROJI	ECT	К Г	LE 10. 8	32780	FELDER	TELEMEDICINE BUILDING Bison and Health Sciences Road Irvine, California LOG OF BORING B-1			PLATE A-2b

	Date Drilled: 4/17/07						Water Depth: 41 feet							
	D	rill	ed	By:		Cal Pac Drilling		Date Measured:	4/17/0)7				
	D	rill	ing	g Metl	hod:	Hollow-Stem Aug	er, 8"	Elevation:	106 f	eet (a	appr	ox.)		
	L	ogg	ged	By:		JBR		Datum:	MSL		·····			
3levation	Depth	Sample Type	Sample Number	Blows per Foot	Graphic Log		SOIL DESC AN CLASSIFI	RIPTION D CATION		Dry Density (pcf)	Moisture Content (%)	Additional Tests		
-105	<u>~ H</u>		01		Ŭ//	Topsoil 6" over 6" of s								
		<u> </u>	1 2 3			FILL Sandy Lean Clay (CL): dark brown and orange brown, very moist to wet, soft						WA (41% fines) CHEM WA (60%)		
-100	5	-1111	4	19		Citte C I (CBA), fina	ominad open	as brown and gravish	hroun	107	24.2	CN WA (62% fines)		
	 		5	32		clay inclusions, mottled dense	d reddish brov	wn, fine grained, gray	, medium	107	8.8			
-95	10		6	20		Orange brown lean cla	y inclusions, j	pinhole porosity at 11.	.5 feet	110	15.6	CN WA (30% fines)		
- 90	15-		7	30/50-4'		MARINE TERRACI Poorly Graded Sand orange layers 1/16 to 1	MARINE TERRACE DEPOSITS Poorly Graded Sand (SP): fine-grained, greyish brown with rusty orange layers 1/16 to 1/4" thick, dense to very dense, slightly moist 102							
- 85	20-		8	53							5.4			
- 80	25 -		9	46/50-3						103	5.5			
-75	30-		10	69							6.1			
	35-		11	93		Orange brown sand wi	ith silt and she	ells		115	7.6			
- 65	40-		12	94		TOPANGA FORMA Sandstone interbedd moist, very weakly cer	TOPANGA FORMATION Sandstone interbedded with Siltstone: grey and olive brown, very moist, very weakly cemented, highly weathered							
UB LELEMEL	k		K	LE	LIN	FELDER	TELEMEI Bison and I	DICINE BUILDING Health Sciences Roa	d			PLATE		
HYAI				~~		2	nvine, Cal		•			A-3a		
	ROJ	EC	T]	NO.	82780)	LOG O	F BORING B-2	L					
Dra	ned	ъ	/:	t	xevie	wea by:		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	uunam different call l	01/0P3 P		مسكرسما		

[···					T		
Elevation (feet) Tenth	Sample Type	sample Number	Blows per Foot	Graphic Log	SOIL DESCRIPTION AND CLASSIFICATION (Continued From Previous Page)	Dry Density (pcf)	Moisture Content (%)	Additional Tests
		00	<u>H</u>		TOPANGA FORMATION Sandstone interbedded with Siltstone: grey and olive brown, very moist, very weakly cemented, highly weathered (continued)		32.1	
- ₆₀ 45		13	30/50-5'		Grey siltstone with interbeds of grey sandstone	91	32.1	
- - 50		14	58		Siltstone: olive gray, thin sandstone interbeds, weak, highly weathered, very moist			
			50		Total depth 51.5 feet Hole backfilled		38.9	
					Groundwater encountered at 50 feet and raised to 41 feet after 7 hours Hole drilled in grass area on the west side of the driveway entrance			
					· ·			
5								
TAN WAY				***				
	KLEINFELDER			EIN	NFELDER TELEMEDICINE BUILDING Bison and Health Sciences Road Irvine California			PLATE
PRO	PROJECT NO. 82780			8278	0 LOG OF BORING B-2			A-3b

	D	ate	Dr	illed	:	3/13/07		Water Depth:	41 fe	et		
	D	rill	ed	By:		Cal Pac Drilling		Date Measured:	4/17/	07		
	D	Drill	ing	Met	hod:	Hollow-Stem Aug	ger, 8"	Elevation:	106 f	eet (appr	ox.)
	L	ogg	ged	By:	·	JBR		Datum:	MSL	y		
svation	cet) pth	mple Type	mple Number	ows per Foot	aphic Log		SOIL DESC AN CLASSIFI	CRIPTION ID ICATION		y Density of)	oisture ntent (%)	lditional sts
	<u>Å</u>	Sat	Sar	Ĕ	1 E	Tongoil Att roots						
- 105	-		1 2 3		<u>n u u u</u> u	FILL Silty Sand (SM):fine layers of sandy clay, lo	to medium-gr	ained, orange brown, po m dense, moist to wet MAX=123.5 pcf, Op	ckets and pt=10.5%		9.3 12.7	
- 100 -	5-		4 5	16		wet Tan				105	19.7 17.8	WA (35% fines) MAX
	- 10		6	13						93	16.1	GS (10% fines)
-95 - -			7	15		Brown sandy clay incl	usions			112	17.1	
- 90 -	15-		8	29		Orange brown and gray silty sand, very moist					16.9	
- - 85 -	20-		9	17	<u>ă ă ă ă</u> U <u>u u u u</u> l	Layers of orange and c	dark brown sa	ndy clay			15.5	
- 80 -	25 -		10	19					an east and the book of the book of the	116	13.9	
-75	30 -		11	42		MARINE TERRAC Poorly Graded Sand 1/16 to 1/4" thick, den	E DEPOSITS (SP): greyish se, slightly m	5 1 brown with rusty orang oist	e layers		5.5	WA (4% fines)
TVD:GDT 2/15/02	35-		12	41		TOPANGA FORMA	andetona	115	18.1 11.0	~		
GPJ KA RD	_40-		12	16		and brown siltstone, n	/eathered					
EMED	<u>¥</u>			~~	<u>teed</u>	Shire groy shistone, u	TELEMEI	DICINE BUILDING		.l	.1	PLATE
B TEL	\mathbb{R}		K	LE	LIN	FELDER	Bison and I	Health Sciences Road				
TECH D						-	Irvine, California					A-4a
g PI	PROJECT NO. 82780 LOG OF BORING B-3											

Drafted By:

Elevation (feet) Depth	Sample Type	Sample Number	Blows per Foot	Graphic Log	SOIL DESCRIPTION AND CLASSIFICATION (Continued From Previous Page)	Dry Density (pcf)	Moisture Content (%)	Additional Tests
		14	32/50-5'		TOPANGA FORMATION Sandstone interbedded with Siltstone: orange and gray sandstone and brown siltstone, moist, very weakly cemented, highly weathered (continued) Grey and orange sandstone, very weakly cemented	88	38.2	
- 55 50		15	32		Olive grey sandstone interbedded with siltstone, very weak cementation Total depth 51.5 feet Hole backfilled		32.9	
					Groundwater encountered at 45 feet and measured at 41 feet after 3 hours Hole drilled in landscape in the northwest corner of the site			

					TELEMEDICINE BUILDING Bison and Health Sciences Road			PLATE
PROJ	PROJECT NO. 82780				0 Irvine, California			A-4b

	ate	D	rilled	•	4/17/07		Water Depth:	35 fe	et		
1 E	brill	ed	By:		Cal Pac Drillin	g	Date Measured:	4/17/0	07		
E	brill	ling	g Met	hoc	I: Hollow-Stem A	Auger, 8"	Elevation:	105 f	eet (appr	ox.)
L	og	gec	By:		JBR		Datum:	MSL			
ion	e Type	e Number	per Foot	ic Log	•	SOIL DE	SCRIPTION ND		ensity	ure nt (%)	ional
llevat feet) Jepth	ampl	ampl	lows	iraph	x .	CLASSI	FICATION		Dry D pcf)	Moist	Addit [ests
		<u>s</u>	<u> </u>		Red pavers over 2" FILL Silty Sand (SM):	of sand, over f	5" concrete slab and 6" of a rained, grey, wet	igg base		18.3	GS (14% fines)
-100 5-		2 3 4	9		Sandy Lean Clay medium stiff to stil	(CL): mottled	orange brown and dark bro LL=49 PL=15 MAX=127 pcf, Opt=	own, =11.0%		28.7 23.0	WA (74% fines) AL CHEM EI=90 MAX
- 		5			Orange brown sity	/ sanu layer			105 101	19.9 23.9	CN
-95 10 -	-8	6	33		1				112	19.7	WA (55% fines)
10-		7	16		Silty Sand (SM): layers and pockets	fine to medium of sandy clay, 1	-grained, grey and orange l medium dense, moist	brown,	113	14.1	CN
-90 15-		8	23		Sandy lean clay lay	vers and pocket	S		116	14.5	
- ⁸⁵ 20-		9	22		Layers of orange b	rown sandy lea	n clay			10.5	
- ⁸⁰ 25 -		10	38/50-5		MARINE TERR. Poorly Graded Sa with rusty orange I slightly moist	ACE DEPOSI and with Silt (ayers 1/16 to 1/	TS SP-SM): fine-grained, grey /4" thick, dense to very den	yish brown use,	103	4.9	
- ⁷⁵ 30-		11	55					***		5.1	
00	_				TOPANGA FOR	MATION					
		12	20/50-5		Sandstone interb brown siltstone, v	Sandstone interbedded with Siltstone: gray sandstone and olive brown siltstone, very weakly cemented, very moist, highly weathered					
³ -65 - 40 -		13	44		Grey silty sandstor	ne, very moist					
		K	LE	21	NFELDER	TELEMI Bison and	EDICINE BUILDING d Health Sciences Road				PLATE
PROI	EC	ר ד T	NO. 8	327	80	Irvine, C	alifornia DF BORING B-4				A-5a
Drafted	By	Drafted By: Reviewed By:									l

Elevation (feet) Depth Sample Type Sample Number Blows per Foot Graphic Log	(Cont	SOIL DESCRIPTION AND CLASSIFICATION tinued From Previous Page)	Dry Density (nef)	Moisture Content (%)	Additional Tests
	Total depth 41.5 feet Hole backfilled Groundwater encounte Hole drilled at northw	ered at 35 feet rest corner of center planter	· ·	29.1	
PROJECT NO. 8278	 FELDER 	TELEMEDICINE BUILDING Bison and Health Sciences Road Irvine, California LOG OF BORING B-4			PLATE A-5b

	Date Drilled: 4/17/07		4/17/07		Water Depth:	35 fe	et						
	Drilled By: Cal Pac Drilling			Date Measured:	4/17/07								
		Dı	ill	ing	g Met	hod:	Hollow-Stem Auger, 8" Elevation: 106 feet (app		Hollow-Stem Auger, 8" Elevation: 106 fe		(approx.)		
		Lo	gg	ged	l By:		JBR		Datum:	MSL	1	I	
Elevation	(feet)	Depth	Sample Type	Sample Number	Blows per Foot	Graphic Log		SOIL DESCRIPTION AND CLASSIFICATION		Dry Density (pcf)	Moisture Content (%)	Additional Tests	
- 105	5					<u>II</u> I	Topsoil 6"	*****					
- 100)			1 2 3 4	18		FILL Poorly Graded Sand greyish brown, loose to	with Silt (SI o medium der	P-SM): fine to medium-grase, moist	rained,		11.5 12.8	GS (12% fines)
-	, ,										99	14.1	DS
-				5	22						102	14.3	GS (9% fines)
-95	10)	7	6	9	<u>u u u u</u>	Layers and lenses of or	range brown :	sandy clay			16.2	
- -90 -	13	5		7	19		Mottled yellow brown,	, orange brow	n and grey		110	10.9	WA (10% fines)
-	~						MARINE TERRACI	E DEPOSITS	5				
85 	20) 		8	37		Poorly Graded Sand orange layers 1/16 to 1	(SP): fine-gr /4" thick, der	ained, greyish brown with use to very dense, slightly	h rusty moist		7.0	
- 80	2:	5		9	36/50-3						101	5.7	
-75	3(10	54				·	waaau Aaramma ku ku ku ku ku ku		9.5	
5		******					TOPANGA FORMA	TION					
1 70	<u>-</u> 5	5		11	38/50-5		Sandstone interbedd siltstone, very weakly	ed with Silts cemented, mo	stone: gray sandstone and bist, highly weathered	1 brown	112	14.4	
A 10-05	4	 0		12	44		Grey silty sandstone, v	very weakly c	emented, very moist				
IEMETE.				K	I.F	TN	FELDER	TELEMEI Bison and	DICINE BUILDING				PLATE
Bison and Hear Irvine, Californ				ifornia				A-6a					
	$\frac{RC}{2}$	$) \Pi$	C'	ΓÌ	10. 8	32780)	LOG O	F BORING B-5				
Dra	Drafted By: Reviewed By:												

Elevation (feet) Depth	Sample Type	Sample Number	Blows per Foot	Graphic Log	SOIL DESCRIPTION AND CLASSIFICATION (Continued From Previous Page)	Dry Density (pcf)	Moisture	Additional Tests
- 60					Total depth 41.5 feet Hole backfilled Groundwater encountered at 35 feet Hole drilled in grass area in the northwest corner of the site		22.1	
TOTAL TA								
					TEX EMPERICINE DUIL DINIC			T
PROJ	EC		$\mathbf{L} \mathbf{E}$	3278	I F E L D E R Bison and Health Sciences Road Irvine, California LOG OF BORING B-5			A-6b

Date Drilled:	4/17/07		Water Depth:	45 fe	et		
Drilled By:	Drilled By: Cal Pac Drilling		Date Measured:	4/17/	07		
Drilling Method:	bd: Hollow-Stem Auger, 8" Elevation: 106 feet		iger, 8" Elevation: 106 feet (a		appr	ox.)	
Logged By:	JBR		Datum:	MSL			
levation feet) bepth ample Type ample Number slows per Foot		SOIL DESC AN CLASSIFI	CRIPTION ID ICATION		Dry Density pcf)	Aoisture Content (%)	Additional Cests
	Topsoil 6"	*****				20	4 H
	<u>FILL</u> Sandy Fat Clay (CH)): orange bro	wn and dark brown, stiff, LL=51 PL=16 MAX=119.5 pcf Opt=	vet 12.0%		22.0 24.3 21.8	WA (74%fines) AL CHEM
-100 $5-4$ 5 15					100	30.8	EI =118 WA (79% fines)
	Clayey Sand (SC): la	yers of silty s	and, mottled grey and brow	m,	116	14.5	CN
	medium dense, moist				119	14.5	WA (41% fines) DS
	Orange brown silty sar	nd with sandy	clay inclusions		108	13.6	
-90 15 -8 68 -90 -15 -16 $-$	MARINE TERRACE DEPOSITS Poorly Graded Sand with Silt (SP-SM): fine-grained, greyish brown with rusty orange layers 1/16 to 1/4" thick, dense to very dense, slightly moist			h brown	105	5.8	WA (7% fines) DS
- 85 20 9 48 3 - 48 3 						5.3	
					103	6.8	
						4.9	
855 -70 35 - 12 28/50-5° - 71 12 28/50-5° - 71 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 1	TOPANGA FORMA Sandstone interbedd	ATION led with Silts	tone: orange brown sandst	one and	110	13.2	
	Broy suisione, very we	any contents	a, mons, mgmy weathered				
	FFINFD	TELEMEI	DICINE BUILDING				PLATE
Bison and Health Sciences Road Irvine, California			A-7a				
Drafted By: Review	wed By:	PROJECT NO. 82780 LOG OF BORING B-6 Drafted By: Reviewed By:					

					
Elevation (feet) Depth Sample Type Sample Number Blows per Foot	aoronutario (Con	SOIL DESCRIPTION AND CLASSIFICATION tinued From Previous Page)	Dry Density (pcf)	Moisture Content (%)	Additional Tests
	TOPANGA FORMA Olive grey siltstone w	ATION (continued) vith thin sandstone interbeds		35.9	
	Grey sandstone interb	bedded with olive grey siltstone	109	16.9	
- 55 50 15 52	Fine to coarse sandsto Total depth 51.5 Feet Hole backfilled	one		20.0	
	Groundwater encount Hole drilled in grass a	tered at 45 feet area on the southwest side of the site			
		T			
KIEI KLEI	NFELDER	TELEMEDICINE BUILDING Bison and Health Sciences Road Irvine, California			PLATE A-7b
PROJECT NO. 827	/80	LOG OF BORING B-6			

APPENDIX B GEOTECHNICAL LABORATORY TESTING

APPENDIX B GEOTECHNICAL LABORATORY TESTING

GENERAL

Laboratory tests were performed on selected, representative samples as an aid in classifying the soils and to evaluate physical properties of the soils that may affect foundation design and construction procedures. The tests were performed in general conformance with the current ASTM or California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) standards. A description of the laboratory testing program is presented below.

CLASSIFICATION

Soils were visually classified in accordance with the Unified Soil Classification System (USCS) and/or ASTM D 2488. Several classifications were substantiated with Wash Sieve testing. Soil classifications are indicated on the logs of borings in Appendix A.

MOISTURE AND UNIT WEIGHT

Moisture content and dry unit weight tests were performed on a number of samples recovered from the borings. Moisture contents were determined in general accordance with ASTM Test Method D 2216; dry unit weight was calculated using the entire weight of the samples collected. Results of these tests are presented on the logs of borings in Appendix A.

CONSOLIDATION TEST

The consolidation or volume reduction, of either "undisturbed" or remolded samples under applied stress, is determined in general conformance with procedures outlined in ASTM D2435 test method. The procedures utilize an apparatus that restricts volume change to one dimension, with a test specimen of 2.4 inches in diameter and one inch in height. The stress is applied incrementally, and the sample is permitted to consolidate under each stress increment until the change in sample thickness is less than 0.0001 inches over a one-hour period. Time readings for selected load increments are obtained after the sample has been soaked. Hydroconsolidation and expansion characteristics are also evaluated by monitoring the change in volume with the addition of water while confined under a constant normal stress. The results of consolidation testing are presented graphically in this appendix, Plates B-1 through B-6. For this study, the samples were soaked under a pressure of 2.5 ksf.

MAXIMUM DRY UNIT WEIGHT/OPTIMUM MOISTURE CONTENT TESTS

The maximum dry unit weight and optimum moisture content of a selected soil sample was determined in accordance with ASTM Test Method D1557-02, Method A or B. The results are summarized in Table B-1 and the plot of the maximum density curve is presented on Plates B-7 through B-9.

	Depth		Maximum	Optimum
Boring	(ft)	Soil Classification	Density	Moisture
B-3	4 – 10	Clayey Sand	123.5	10.5
B-4	2 - 5	Sandy Clay	127.0	11.0
B-6	1 - 5	Sandy Clay	119.5	12.0

Table B-1 Maximum Density

GRAIN SIZE DISTRIBUTION

The grain size distribution was determined for selected samples of the materials encountered at the site to aid in their classification. The tests were performed in general accordance with ASTM Test Method D422. The distribution of particle sizes larger than the #200 sieve was determined by sieving. The results of the tests are presented on Plates B-10 through B-13.

DIRECT SHEAR TEST

Direct shear tests are performed on relatively "undisturbed" samples to determine the shear strengths of representative's soil types. The apparatus used in direct shear testing is in conformance with requirements outline in ASTM Test Method D3080. The test specimens are 2.4 inches in diameter, one inch in height, and are subjected to single shear along a plane at mid-height. Each sample is confined by a normal stress applied through a loading frame. The sample is sheared at a constant rate of strain

selected to simulate long-term static loading conditions, or short-term loading conditions associated with seismic excitation. The strain rate used for quick shear tests is 0.04 inch per minute.

The results of several direct shear tests for a selected soil type are typically plotted as peak shear strength versus applied normal stress, and a best-fit straight line through the plotted points is computed. The shear strength is described as the slope of the best-fit line, reported as the friction angle (\emptyset), and the cohesion intercept, reported as the cohesion (C). The shear strength results are presented graphically on Plate B-14 through B-16 in this Appendix.

ATTERBERG LIMITS

Two Atteberg limits tests were performed on soil samples to aid in soil classification and to evaluate the plasticity characteristics of the materials. The tests were performed in general accordance with ASTM Test Method D 4318. The results of the tests are presented in the following Table B-2 and on the Logs of boring.

		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
Boring	Depth (ft)	Liquid Limit	Plastic Limit	Plasticity Index
B-4	4 – 41/2	49	15	34
B-6	21/2 - 3	51	16	35

Table B-2. Atterberg Limits Test Results

EXPANSION INDEX

Two samples of the near-surface soils were tested for expansion in accordance with UBC Standard 18-2 (1997 edition). This test method adds water to a compacted sample to determine the degree of expansion upon change in moisture content. The test results are presented in the following Table B-3.

		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
Boring	Depth (ft)	Soil Classification	Compacted Dry Unit Weight (pcf)	Expansion Index
B-4	4 - 41/2	Sandy Lean Clay	108	90
B-6	21/2 – 3	Sandy Lean Clay	104	118

Table B-3. Expansion Index

The results of the tests may be compared to the table presented below to qualitatively evaluate the expansion potential of the near-surface site soils.

Expansion Index	Potential Expansion
0-20	Very Low
21-50	Low
51-90	Medium
91-130	High
Above 130	Very High

WASH SIEVE TESTS

The percent passing No. 200 sieve of selected soil samples were performed by wash sieving in accordance with ASTM Standard Test Method D 1140. Results of these tests are presented in the following Table B-4, Wash Sieve Test Results.

Boring	Depth (ft)	Percent Passing No. 200 Sieve					
B-1	3½	60					
B-1	6	29					
B-1	16	6					
B-1	26	7					
B-2	2	41					
B-2	31/2	60					
B-2	6	62					
B-2	11	30					
B-2	16	4					
B-3	4	35					

Table B-4. Wash Sieve Test Results

Table B-4. Wash Sieve Test Results (Cont'd)						
Boring	Depth (ft)	Percent Passing No. 200 Sieve				
B-3	8	10				
B-3	31	4				
B-4	2	14				
B-4	31⁄2	74				
B-4	8	55				
B-5	31⁄2	12				
B-5	8	9				
B-5	16	10				
B-6	21/2	74				
B-6	6	79				
B-6	8	41				
B-6	16	7				

R-VALUE TEST

R-value tests are performed to evaluate the material characteristics of subgrade soil or aggregate base for pavement design. One resistance value (R-value) test was performed on bulk soil samples to evaluate the characteristic of the near surface soils for pavement design. Other soil types will have different characteristics and should be tested accordingly if exposed at or near pavement subgrade level. The R-value test was performed in accordance with Caltrans Standard Test Method 301. The results are presented in Table B-5, R-Value Test Results.

Table B-5 R-Value Test Result

Boring	Depth (ft)	Soil Classification	R-Value
B-1	2-5	Sandy Lean Clay	5

SOIL CORROSIVITY TESTS

The potential for soils to adversely affect foundation elements or utilities (concrete and metal elements) can be evaluated from the results of soluble sulfate content, chloride content, pH and resistivity tests. The tests are performed on soils that may become in

82780/IRV7R053 Copyright 2007 Kleinfelder contact with foundations and/or utilities.

The potential for deterioration of Portland cement concrete in contact with soils requires knowledge of the concentration of sulfate ions. The concentrations of water-soluble sulfate ions were determined in accordance with a turbidity procedure, EPA test method 375.4.

The chloride content of soils affects the corrosivity of mild grade steel. The concentration of chloride was determined by titration with mercuric nitrate in the presence of mixed diphenycarbazone – bromophenol blue indicator, EPA test method 325.3.

Soil pH is a measure of acidity/alkalinity of the soil. Sometimes, and in the absence of other factors, soils with a neutral pH (between 5 and 8) are not particularly aggressive, whereas soils with a pH range lower than five tend to be more corrosive to metals and may cause concrete deterioration. The pH was determined electrometrically using a combination electrode, which is calibrated using a series of standard solutions of known pH in accordance with EPA test method 9045C.

The resistivity tests are used for estimating the salt (sulfate and chloride) content of the soils and waters, and for determining the necessity for further analysis for sulfate and chloride content. Electrolytic conductivity is a measure of the ability of a solution to carry an electric current. Also called specific conductance, it is defined as the reciprocal of the resistance in ohms of a 1 CM cube of the liquid at a specified temperature. The specific conductance was measured on a 1:1 water extract by weight by use of a self-contained conductivity meter in accordance with EPA test method 120.1. The results of tests performed are summarized in Table B-6.

TABLE B-0 CORROSION TEST RESOLTS					
Component Analyzed	Method	Unit	B-2 @ 2'	B-4 @ 3½'	B-6 @ 4'
Sulfate (SO ₄)**	375.4	Mg/kg	95	353	402
Chloride Cl**	325.3	Mg/kg	173	209	287
PH*	9045C	pH Unit	7.8	8.4	8.4
Resistivity*	120.1	Ω-cm	2620	2680	827

TABLE B-6 CORROSION TEST RESULTS

*Analyzed on a 1:1 water extract

**Analyzed on a 1:10 water extract

82780/IRV7R053 Copyright 2007 Kleinfelder




























Boring	B-5
Depth (ft)	6
Friction Angle - deg	32
Cohesion (Ksf)	0.20
Dry Density (pcf)	99
Moisture Content (%)	14.6
Description	Silty Sand
Classification	SM

KLEINFELDER	TELEMEDICINE BUILDING Bison and Health Sciences Road Irvine, California	PLATE B-14
PROJECT NO. 82780	DIRECT SHEAR TEST	

DIRECT SHEAR TELEMED OPJ KA RDLND.GDT 4/27/07



KLEINFEL	DER TE Bis Irv
PROJECT NO. 82780	D

ELEMEDICINE BUILDING bison and Health Sciences Road rvine, California

PLATE

B-15

DIRECT SHEAR TEST

B-1

RECT SHEAR TELEMED.GPJ KA RDLND.GDT 4/27/07



PROJECT NO. 82780

IRECT SHEAR TELEMED.GPJ KA RDLND.GDT 4/27/07

DIRECT SHEAR TEST

Bison and Health Sciences Road

Irvine, California

PLATE

B-16

APPENDIX C ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYTICAL TESTING

APPENDIX C ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYTICAL TESTING

SOIL SAMPLING

A total of three discrete soil samples were collected from three boring locations at the site, as shown on the Environmental Boring Location Map enclosed at the end of this Appendix. A soil sample was collected from Boring B-1 at a depth of 1.5 feet below ground surface (bgs), from Boring B-2 at a depth of 1.0 feet bgs and from Boring B-3 at a depth of 1.0 feet bgs. The borings were located in landscaped areas, including a grassy area and a rose garden. Each soil sample was collected from the upper, artificial fill layer encountered in each boring. Odors and/or visual signs of chemical impact were not observed while collecting the three soil samples.

Soil samples were collected with a pre-cleaned hand auger by discharging the soil directly from the cutter head of the hand auger into an unpreserved 4-ounce glass-sampling jar. In addition, a portion of each soil sample was placed in pre-preserved volatile organic analysis (VOA) vials in accordance with United States Environmental Protection Agency (US EPA) Method 5035. Soil from each sample interval was also placed into a re-sealable plastic bag, and then screened for the presence of total volatile organic compounds (VOCs) with a photo-ionization detector (PID) approximately 30 minutes after sample collection. Borings were backfilled with native soil after completion of the sampling.

Hand auger equipment was decontaminated prior to use at each sampling location. The soil samples were stored in a cooler with ice and transported, under chain-ofcustody, to Enviro-Chem, Inc., a California Division of Laboratory Science, Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program-Accredited Laboratory, for analysis.

LABORATORY ANALYSES

The three soil samples were analyzed for California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 22 Metals using US EPA Methods 6010B/7471A, total petroleum hydrocarbons (TPH) with carbon chain identification using US EPA Method 8015B, and VOCs using US EPA Method 8260B.

ANALYTICAL LABORATORY RESULTS

Eight metals (barium, chromium, cobalt, copper, lead, nickel, vanadium, and zinc) were detected in each of the three soil samples (cobalt and lead were not detected in Boring B-3). The detected metals are naturally occurring in many California soils. As such, the detected metal concentrations were initially compared to reported background concentrations of metals in California soils (Bradford et al., 1996). None of the detected metals exceeded the background concentrations. Table 1 presents a summary of the metals analytical data.

Each metal concentration detected in the three samples was also compared to its CCR Title 22 Total Threshold Limit Concentration (TTLC), ten times its CCR Title 22 Soluble Threshold Limit Concentration (STLC), and (for chromium only) 20 times its 40 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Toxicity Characteristic Leaching Procedure (TCLP) Limit. These values are listed in the attached Enviro-Chem, Inc. analytical laboratory report. If a TTLC is exceeded in a waste, that material is defined as a California hazardous waste by CCR Title 22. Ten times the STLC and 20 times the TCLP are industry-accepted screening levels for a metal reported as a total concentration, above which a separate assessment of the soluble metal is warranted. If a waste is analyzed for a soluble metal and the result exceeds its STLC or TCLP, that material is defined as a California hazardous waste by CCR Title 22 standards. The metal concentrations detected in the three samples do not exceed the TTLCs, 10 times the STLCs, or 20 times the TCLP.

US EPA Region IX has published Preliminary Remediation Goals (PRGs) for residential and industrial soils (US EPA, 2004). These soil screening levels combine toxicity values with standard exposure factors to estimate contaminant concentrations in environmental media (soil, air, and water) that are protective of human health over a lifetime. The exceedance of a PRG suggests that further evaluation of the potential risks that may be posed by site contaminants is appropriate. The PRGs may be used to screen pollutants in environmental media and evaluate the need for further assessment. Kleinfelder's review of the detected metal concentrations in the three samples indicates all concentrations are below the Residential PRG. It should be noted that the Residential PRGs for arsenic is lower than its analytical detection limit.

82780/IRV7R053 Copyright 2007 Kleinfelder However, US EPA has acknowledged that the arsenic PRG concentrations may be exceeded by naturally-occurring background levels in southern California soils, and as previously discussed the detected arsenic concentrations do not exceed California background levels.

Concentrations of TPH and VOCs above the laboratory practical quantitation limits (PQLs) were not detected in the three soil samples.

CONCLUSIONS

Based on the analytical results of three soil samples collected during this project, reported herein, soils represented by the samples do not require handling, transport, and/or disposal as California hazardous or Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) hazardous wastes. TPH and VOCs were not detected in the samples. The CCR Title 22 Metals concentrations detected in the soil samples were below their respective Residential PRGs, and thus do not warrant further evaluation.

LIMITATIONS

Services performed by Kleinfelder have been performed in a manner consistent with the level of skill ordinarily exercised by members of our profession currently practicing in Southern California. No other representation, express or implied, and no warranty or guarantee is included or intended in this report.

The scope of services described here is not intended to be inclusive, to identify all potential concerns, or to eliminate the possibility of other environmental problems. Within current technology, no level of assessment can show conclusively that a property or its structures are completely free of hazardous substances. Therefore, Kleinfelder cannot offer a certification that the property is free of environmental liability. Kleinfelder will assume no responsibility or liability whatsoever for any claim, loss of property value, damage, or injury which results from pre-existing hazardous materials being encountered or present on the project site, or from the discovery of such hazardous materials. Kleinfelder offers a range of investigative and engineering services to suit the varying needs of our clients. Although risk can never be eliminated, more detailed and extensive investigations yield more information, which may help

understand and manage the degree of risk. Since such detailed services involve greater expense, our clients participate in determining the level of service which provides adequate information for their purposes at an acceptable level of risk.

This report may be used only by the client and only for the purposes stated, within a reasonable time from its issuance, but in no event later than one years from the date of the report. Land or facility use, on and off-site conditions, regulations, or other factors may change over time, and additional work may be required with the passage of time. Based on the intended use of the report, Kleinfelder may require that additional work be performed and that an updated report be issued. Non-compliance with any of these requirements by the client or anyone else will release Kleinfelder from any liability resulting from the use of this report by any unauthorized party and client agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Kleinfelder from any claim or liability associated with such unauthorized use or non-compliance

ults
Sesi
L.L.,
g
É
£
č
\triangleleft
S
<u>a</u>
Ð
2
ď
\sim
ສີ
Ξ
Ε
5
S
~
- merile and a mer
3
Ĕ

								
(nZ) oniZ	37.5	37.2	24.2	149	5,000	250	23,000	100,000
(V) muibensV	30.2	20.8	15.0	112	2,400	24	78	1,000
(IT) muilledT	ND (0.1)	0.1) (0.1)	0.1) (0.1)	0.56	700	7.0	5.2	67
Silver (Ag)	0N (0.1)	01) (0.1)	UN (0.1)	0.8	500	5.0	390	5,100
(ə2) muinələ2	UN (0.1)	UD (1.0)	UD (0.1)	0.058	100	1.0	390	5,100
Nickel (Ni)	15.0	6.69	2.57	57.0	2,000	20	1,600	20,000
(oM) munəbdyloM	ND (5.0)	ND (5.0)	(2.0) (5.0)	1.3	3,500	350	390	5,100
Mercury (Hg)	ND (0.1)	0.1) (0.1)	Q (-)	0.26	20	0.2	23	310
Lead (Pb)	1.77	2.81	ND (0.5)	23.9	1,000	5.0	150	AN
Copper (Cu)	6.02	3.25	4.12	28.7	2,500	25	3,100	41,000
(oO) findoO	4.09	2.14	0 (0: 0 (0:	14.9	8,000	80	006	1,900
(10) listoT muimoniO	23.2	12.4	4.71	122	2,500	560/5*	210	450
(bC) muimbsC	ND (0.5)	0.5) (0.5)	0.5) ND	0.36	100	1.0	37	450
Beryllium (Be)	0.5) (0.5)	0.5) (0.5)	0.5) (0.5)	1.28	75	0.75	150	1,900
(s8) muins8	91.7	65.5	30.7	509	10,000	100	5,400	67,000
(sA) Sirenic (As)	ND (0.3)	3.09	0.3) 0.3)	3.5	500	5.0	0.062	0.25
(dZ) γnomitnA	ND (0.1)	01 (0.1)	0N (0.1)	0.60	500	15	31	410
	B-1@ 1.5'	B-2 @ 1'	B-3@1'	CA Mean ¹		STLC ³	Res PRGs⁴	Ind PRGs ⁵
		<u></u>		Lucian and a second				<u>t</u>

Background Concentrations of Trace and Major Elements in California Soils, Bradford, G.R., Chang, A.C., Page, A.L., Bakhtar, D., Frampton, J.A., 11 able Notes:

Wright, H., Division of Agriculture and Natural Resources, University of California, March 1996. = California Code of Regulations (CCR) Total Threshold Limit Concentration (TTLC). If TTLC values are exceeded in a waste, that material is defined as a hazardous waste by CCR Title 22. 2

³ = Soluble Threshold Limit Concentration (STLC). If ten times the STLC value is exceeded in a waste, provided that the compound that is present in the waste is completely in its soluble form, that material is defined as a hazardous waste by CCR Title 22.
⁴ = United States Environmental Protection Agency Region 9 Residential Preliminary Remediation Goals (PRGs). PRGs are human health-based

goals used for site "screening"

⁵ = Š EPA Region 9 Industrial PRGs.

* = Must meet both the STLC limit of 560 milligrams per liter (mg/L) and US EPA Toxic Characteristic Leaching Procedure (TCLP) limit of 5 mg/L.

ND = Not detected at the practical quantitation limit indicated in parentheses. B-8B-1.0 = Soil sample collected from location "B18" at a depth of 1.0 foot below ground surface.

Results in milligrams per kilogram (mg/kg)

Total Characteristic Leaching Procedure = TCLP

Table 2 – Summary of Total Petroleum Hydrocarbonand Volatile Organic Compound Analytical Data

	TPH C4 – C10	TPH C11 – C22	TPH C23 - 35	VOCs
B-1 @ 1.5'	ND (10)	ND (10)	ND (50)	ND
				(0.005 – 0.020)
B-2 @ 1'	ND (10)	ND (10)	ND (50)	ND
				(0.005 – 0.020)
B-3 @ 1'	ND (10)	ND (10)	ND (50)	ND
				(0.005 – 0.020)

Table Notes:

TPH =	Total petro	oleum hydrca	arbons
-------	-------------	--------------	--------

VOCs = Volatile organic compounds

ND = Not detected at the practical quantitation limit indicated in parentheses.

B-8B-1.0 = Soil sample collected from location "B-8B" at a depth of 1.0 foot below ground surface. Results in milligrams per kilogram



ENVIRONMENTAL BORING LOCATION

APPENDIX C TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY

TELEMEDICINE/PRIME-LC FACILITY TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, IRVINE

Prepared for:

University of California, Irvine Campus & Environmental Planning 750 University Tower Irvine, CA 92697-2325

Contact: Alex S. Marks, AICP Associate Planner (949) 824-8692

Prepared by:

P&D Consultants 999 Town & Country Road, 4th Floor Orange, CA 92868

Contact: Scott Quang Banh, P.E. Transportation Engineer (714) 835-4447

May 11, 2007

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Secti</u>	<u>on</u>	Page
1.0	INTI	RODUCTION1-1
	1.1	Project Description1-1
		1.1.1 Project Location1-1
		1.1.2 Proposed Project
	1.2	Scope of Analysis 1-1
	1.3	Study Area1-5
	1.4	Review of Previous Reports1-7
2.0	MET	THODOLOGY
	2.1	Assumptions
	2.2	Traffic Counts
	2.3	Future Background Traffic Volumes
	2.4	Project Trip Generation
	2.5	Proposed Project Trip Distribution
	2.6	Proposed Project Trip Assignment
	2.7	Level of Service
		2.7.1 Road Segments
		2.7.2 Intersections
	2.8	Regulatory Framework
		2.8.1 Level of Service Standards
		2.8.2 Thresholds of Significant Adverse Impacts
	2.9	Signal Warrant Analysis
3.0	EXIS	STING CONDITIONS
	3.1	Existing Major Land Uses
	3.2	Existing Circulation Network
	3.3	Existing Vehicular Traffic Volumes
	3.4	Existing Transit Services
	3.5	Existing Bike Lanes
	3.6	Existing Level of Service
		3.6.1 Road Segments
		3.6.2 Intersections
	3.7	Signal Warrant Analysis

TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONT.)

Section 2009 TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 4-1 4.0 4.1 4.2 4.2.1 4.2.2 4.3 4.4

5.0	FINI	DINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS		
	5.1	Findings and Conclusions		
		5.1.1 Telemedicine/Prime-LC Facility Project		
		5.1.2 Existing Conditions		
		5.1.3 Year 2009 Conditions		
	5.2	Recommendations		

APPENDICES

А	Existing	Vehicular	Traffic	Counts
---	----------	-----------	---------	--------

- В Level of Service Computation Reports - Existing Conditions
- С Level of Service Computation Reports
 - 2009 without the Project C1
 - 2009 with the Project C2
- D Signal Warrant Analyses

Page

LIST OF TABLES

<u>Table</u>

1.3-1	Study Road Segments	1-5
1.3-2	Study Intersections	1-7
2.4-1	Project Trip Generation Rates	
2.4-2	Project Trip Generation	
2.7-1	Maximum Average Daily Traffic for Arterial Roads - City of Irvine	
2.7-2	Level of Service Criteria – Intersections	
3.6-1	Road Segment Daily Levels of Service – Existing Conditions	
3.6-2	Intersection Levels of Service – Existing Conditions	
4.2-1	Road Segment Levels of Service – 2009 without the Project	
4.2-2	Road Segment Daily Levels of Service – 2009 with the Project	
4.2-3	Road Segment Significant Adverse Impact Summary – 2009	
4.2-4	Intersection Levels of Service – 2009 without the Project	
4.2-5	Intersection Levels of Service – 2009 with the Project	
4.2-6	Intersection Significant Adverse Impact Summary – 2009	

LIST OF FIGURES

<u>Figure</u>

1.1-1	Regional Location Map	
1.1-2	Vicinity Map	
1.1-3	Concept Site Plan	
1.3-1	Study Road Segments and Intersections	1-6
2.5-1	Proposed Project Trip Distribution	2-4
2.5-2	Proposed Project Trip Assignment	
3.2-1	Circulation Network – Existing Conditions	
3.3-1	Traffic Volumes – Existing Conditions	
4.1-1	Traffic Volumes – 2009 without Project	
4.1-2	Traffic Volumes – 2009 with Project	

Page

Page

SECTION 1.0 INTRODUCTION

The Telemedicine/PRIME – Latino Community (PRIME-LC) Facility Traffic Impact Study is an analysis of traffic-related impacts associated with implementation of the proposed 65,000 gross square-foot (GSF) building on the University of California, Irvine (UCI) campus. This study includes analysis of potential project-related traffic impacts on the surrounding circulation system, along with assumptions, methodology, findings, and recommendations.

1.1 PROJECT DESCRIPTION

1.1.1 PROJECT LOCATION

The project site is located within the UCI campus, which is located in central/coastal Orange County in the southern portion of the City of Irvine. Figure 1.1-1 shows the Regional Location Map. The UCI campus is bordered by the City of Irvine to the north and east and the City of Newport Beach to the south and west. Figure 1.1-2 shows the Vicinity Map. As shown in the Vicinity Map, the proposed project will be located within the Health Sciences Complex of the UCI campus and adjacent to building 835, Irvine Hall and building 839, Sprague Hall.

1.1.2 PROPOSED PROJECT

The proposed project consists of the construction of a new 65,000 GSF building for the Telemedicine/PRIME-LC program within the UCI's School of Medicine (SOM). Figure 1.1-2 shows a conceptual site plan for the 65,000 GSF building. The proposed project will have a footprint of approximately 17,000 square feet and will consist of four floors. The proposed project would provide additional floor space for instruction, research and offices for the Telemedicine/PRIME-LC program.

1.2 SCOPE OF ANALYSIS

This traffic study examines existing traffic conditions, analyzes future conditions and identifies potentially significant adverse traffic impacts associated with the proposed project and potential mitigation measures for improving traffic circulations. The anticipated completion and occupancy of the proposed project is 2009. For this analysis, year 2009 was used as the project opening year. The following scenarios were analyzed in the traffic study:

- 2007 existing conditions
- 2009 without the proposed project
- 2009 with the proposed project

The scope of this study included the following key components:

- field observations to document and field verify existing conditions
- review of previously completed traffic studies for projects in the vicinity
- forecasting of future traffic conditions



Source: P&D Consultants, (2007).

Figure 1.1-1 Regional Location Map

- Telemedicine/ PRIME-LC Facility Traffic Impact Study



Source: P&D Consultants, (2007).

Figure 1.1-2 Vicinity Map

- Telemedicine/ Prime-LC Facility Traffic Impact Study



Source: P&D Consultants, (2007).

Figure 1.1-3 Concept Site Plan

- Telemedicine/ PRIME-LC Facility Traffic Impact Study

- Level of Service (LOS) analysis
- improvement recommendations

The traffic study did not include a long-term year traffic analysis because the proposed project would be consistent with the current UCI Long Range Development Plan (LRDP) adopted by the Regents of the University of California (UC Regents) in 1989. The proposed project would add 65,000 GSF to the Health Sciences Complex, which is currently comprised of approximately 397,727 GSF. With implementation of the proposed project, the Health Sciences Complex would have 462,727 GSF of building spaces, which is within the 1,439,100 GSF identified for the Health Sciences Complex in the 1989 LRDP. The proposed project would not conflict with any goals or objectives of the 1989 LRDP.

In addition, UCI is currently preparing a comprehensive update to the LRDP (Draft 2007 LRDP) and associated LRDP Program Environmental Impact Report (EIR). The traffic analysis for the Draft 2007 LRDP EIR would analyze traffic impacts for a long-term scenario year at UCI buildout. The Draft 2007 LRDP and EIR is anticipated to be completed in the later part of 2007 and will be considered for certification/approval by UC Regents.

The traffic study did not conduct a Congestion Management Program (CMP) Traffic Analysis because the proposed project is exempt. A CMP Traffic Analysis is required when a proposed project generates more than 2,400 daily trips or more than 1,600 daily trips with direct access to a CMP Highway. The CMP Highways in the vicinity of the proposed project are State Route (SR) 73, Jamboree Road and MacArthur Boulevard. The proposed project does not direct access to a CMP Highway; and as discussed in Section 2.4, the proposed project would generate 740 daily trips, which is less than the minimum 2,400 daily trips required for a CMP Traffic Analysis. Therefore, the proposed project is exempt from a CMP Traffic Analysis.

1.3 STUDY AREA

Figure 1.3-1 shows the study area for the traffic impact analysis, including the road segments and intersections evaluated in this analysis. Tables 1.3-1 and 1.3-2 list the study road segments and intersections, respectively.

Road	Segment Limits
California Avenue	University Drive to Bison Avenue
Bison Avenue	MacArthur Boulevard to SR 73 southbound ramps
Bison Avenue	SR 73 northbound ramps to California Avenue
Bison Avenue	California Avenue to Health Sciences Road
Bison Avenue	Health Sciences Road to Peltason Drive

TABLE 1.3-1STUDY ROAD SEGMENTS



Source: P&D Consultants (2007).

Figure 1.3-1 Study Road Segment and Intersections

Telemedicine/PRIME-LC Facility Traffic Impact Study

Index Code ^[1]	Intersection
1	California Avenue at University Drive
2	MacArthur Boulevard at Bison Avenue
3	SR 73 southbound ramps at Bison Avenue
4	SR 73 northbound ramps at Bison Avenue
5	California Avenue at Bison Avenue
6	Health Sciences Road at Bison Avenue
7	Peltason Drive at Bison Avenue/Physical Sciences Road

TABLE 1.3-2STUDY INTERSECTIONS

^{1]} The Index Code refers to the numbers used to identify the intersection on the circulation network and is used throughout the analysis in this Traffic Impact Study. These intersection locations are shown in Figure 1.3-1.

The study area did not include ramp segments because the traffic generated by the proposed project is less than the threshold of significance for a ramp segment. The threshold of significance for a ramp segment is three percent of the peak hour ramp capacity. A metered ramp with one lane has a capacity of 900 vehicles per hour, and a non-metered ramp with one lane has a capacity of 1,500 vehicles per hour. Three percent of the peak hour capacity for a metered ramp with one lane is 27 vehicles per hour. As shown in Section 2.6, the proposed project would generate a maximum of 13 vehicles during the peak hour on a ramp segment, which is less than the minimum of 27 vehicles per hour. Therefore, the study area did not include ramp segments.

1.4 REVIEW OF PREVIOUS REPORTS

As part of this study, the summary of findings, recommendations and mitigations of previously completed traffic studies in the project vicinity were reviewed. These studies include the following reports:

- Austin-Foust Associates, Inc., UCI Main Campus California Avenue Traffic Analysis, 2006
- Austin-Foust Associates, Inc., University of California, Irvine Humanities Building Traffic Study, 2006
SECTION 2.0 METHODOLOGY

This section describes the procedures and methodologies used to forecast project traffic and to analyze potential project impacts on the circulation system in the study area. Topics in this section include traffic forecasting assumptions, traffic counts, trip generation, trip distributions, traffic assignment, LOS, and signal warrant analyses.

2.1 ASSUMPTIONS

It was assumed that the ambient growth rate for the roads within the vicinity of UCI is three percent per year.

2.2 TRAFFIC COUNTS

P&D Consultants conducted traffic counts through a subcontract with Southland Car Counters. The detailed traffic counts are provided in Appendix A. The 24-hour (daily) machine counts were taken on Wednesday, April 4, 2007 at the following locations:

- California Avenue just north of Bison Avenue
- Bison Avenue just east of MacArthur Boulevard
- Bison Avenue just west of California Avenue
- Bison Avenue just east of California Avenue
- Bison Avenue just east of Health Sciences Road

Intersection turning counts were conducted during both the A.M. peak period of 7:00 A.M. to 9:00 A.M. and the P.M. peak period of 4:00 P.M. to 6:00 P.M. on Wednesday, April 4, 2007 for the following intersections:

- California Avenue at University Drive
- MacArthur Boulevard at Bison Avenue
- SR 73 southbound ramps at Bison Avenue
- SR 73 northbound ramps at Bison Avenue
- California Avenue at Bison Avenue
- Health Sciences Road at Bison Avenue
- Peltason Drive at Bison Avenue/Physical Sciences Road

2.3 FUTURE BACKGROUND TRAFFIC VOLUMES

Future background traffic volumes for year 2009 were calculated by applying an ambient growth rate of three percent per year to the existing 2007 traffic volumes.

2.4 **PROJECT TRIP GENERATION**

Project trip generation is defined as the number of trips that originate or terminate at a project site. The amount of traffic generated is a function of the extent and type of land use. Trip

generation is usually estimated using trip generation rates which indicate the amount of traffic generated per unit of land use. Trip generation rates for different land uses documented in the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) *Trip Generation*¹ and related publications are typically used in traffic studies. Table 2.4-1 shows the trip generation rates for a University/College land use based on the number of students. It should be noted that this trip generation rate based on the number of students, the support staff (faculty members and administrative employees), visitors, deliveries, etc....

TABLE 2.4-1PROJECT TRIP GENERATION RATES

	ITE	Unit		Trip Generation Rates per Unit Size ^[1]							
Land Use	Code	Size		Daily		A.M. Peak Hour			P.M. Peak Hour		
			In	Out	Total	In	Out	Total	In	Out	Total
University/College	550	STU ^[2]	1.19	1.19	2.38	0.17	0.04	0.21	0.06	0.15	0.21

Source: Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE), Trip Generation, 7th Edition, 2003.

^[1] The average trip generation rates from ITE *Trip Generation* are used. Trip generation rates are for weekdays.

A.M. and P.M. rates are peak hour rates of adjacent street traffic.

^[2] STU: students.

The proposed project would increase enrollment in the Telemedicine/PRIME-LC program by 40 students for a total of 60 students. The GSF to student ratio for the proposed 65,000 GSF building would be approximately 1,083 GSF per student (= 65,000 GSF / 60 students). However, the GSF to student ratio at UCI historically has been lower than the 1,083 GSF per student. Based on the UCI on-campus student enrollment in the 2005-06 academic year of 23,155 students and the total academic and support space of 4,836,000 GSF, the GSF to student ratio is approximately 209 GSF per student (= 4,836,000 GSF / 23,155 students). Therefore, the proposed 65,000 GSF building could support up to a maximum of 311 students (= 65,000 GSF / 209 GSF per student).

Table 2.4-2 shows the daily and A.M. and P.M. peak hour trip generations for the proposed project based on the trip generation rates listed in Table 2.4-1 and 311 students the proposed 65,000 GSF building could support. As shown in Table 2.4-2, the proposed project would generate 740 daily trips with 65 trips occurring during both the A.M. and P.M. peak hours.

	ITE			Trip Generation							
Land Use		ode Size	Daily		A.M. Peak Hour			P.M. Peak Hour			
	Coue		In	Out	Total	In	Out	Total	In	Out	Total
University/College	550	311 STU ^[1]	370	370	740	53	12	65	19	46	65

TABLE 2.4-2PROJECT TRIP GENERATION

Source: P&D Consultants (2007).

^[1] STU: students.

¹ Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE), *Trip Generation* – 7th Edition, 2003.

2.5 **PROPOSED PROJECT TRIP DISTRIBUTION**

Project trip distribution is defined as the general directions of project-related traffic on various road segments and intersections in the study area. Trip distributions for the proposed project were determined by examining the location of the proposed project in the region and surrounding land uses. Figure 2.5-1 shows the proposed trip distribution for the proposed project.

2.6 PROPOSED PROJECT TRIP ASSIGNMENT

Project trip assignment is defined as the specific routes or travel paths the project-related traffic will use based on the project trip distribution. The major factors affecting route selection are the minimum time path and minimum- distance path. Often, the minimum-time and distance paths are the same. When the two paths are different, the minimum time path will usually take precedence, assuming all other factors are equal. Project trips were assigned to the road system based on the results of trip distribution as determined in Section 2.5. The results of the project trip assignment are shown in Figures 2.6-1.

2.7 LEVEL OF SERVICE

The concept of LOS was developed to evaluate the operating conditions of the circulation network. The Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) defines LOS as a qualitative measure which describes the operational conditions of a traffic stream, generally in terms of such factors as speed and travel time, freedom to maneuver, traffic interruptions, comfort and convenience. LOS is rated A through F, with LOS A representing the best operating conditions and LOS F representing the worst. Specific criteria are used to define LOS for different types of facilities as discussed below. These criteria can also vary among cities and transportation agencies.

2.7.1 ROAD SEGMENTS

For planning purposes, the City of Irvine have established maximum daily road capacities corresponding to different LOS designations based on road classifications, as shown in Table 2.7-1. In this study, LOS for road segments was calculated by comparing the daily traffic volumes to the LOS E capacity (V/C = 1.0). This comparison yields a volume-to-capacity (V/C) ratio from which the LOS is determined.

For peak hour operational purposes, the peak hour road segment capacity was determined by multiplying the number of mid-block lanes for each direction by a lane capacity of 1,600 vehicles per hour.² In this study, LOS for road segments during the peak hour was calculated by comparing the maximum directional peak hour traffic volumes to the LOS E capacity (V/C = 1.0). This comparison yields a V/C ratio from which the peak hour road segment LOS is determined.

² City of Irvine, *Traffic Impact Analysis Guidelines*, 2004.



Source: P&D Consultants (2007).

Figure 2.5-1 Proposed Project Trip Distribution

Telemedicine/PRIME-LC Facility Traffic Impact Study



Source: P&D Consultants (2007).

Figure 2.6-1 Proposed Project Trip Assignment

Telemedicine/PRIME-LC Facility Traffic Impact Study

Road Classification	Lane Configuration	LOS A (V/C=0.6)	LOS B (V/C=0.7)	LOS C (V/C=0.8)	LOS D (V/C=0.9)	LOS E (V/C=1.0)	LOS F (V/C>1.0)
Major Arterial	8 Lanes Divided	43,200	50,400	57,600	64,800	72,000	> 72,000
Major Arterial	6 Lanes Divided	32,400	37,800	43,200	48,600	54,000	> 54,000
Primary Arterial	4 Lanes Divided	19,200	22,400	25,600	28,800	32,000	> 32,000
Secondary Arterial	4 Lanes Undivided	16,800	19,600	22,400	25,200	28,000	> 28,000
Commuter	2 Lanes Undivided	7,800	9,100	10,400	11,700	13,000	> 13,000
Commuter (Rural)	2 Lanes Undivided	10,800	12,600	14,400	16,200	10,800	> 10,800

 TABLE 2.7-1

 MAXIMUM AVERAGE DAILY TRAFFIC FOR ARTERIAL ROADS – CITY OF IRVINE

Source: City of Irvine, Traffic Impact Analysis Guidelines, 2004.

2.7.2 INTERSECTIONS

Intersections were analyzed using the Intersection Capacity Utilization (ICU) methodology adopted by the City of Irvine. The ICU value is a quantitative ratio which compares intersection volume to capacity. Based on the ICU, intersection LOS is defined as shown in Table 2.7-2.

TABLE 2.7-2 LEVEL OF SERVICE CRITERIA – INTERSECTIONS

LOS	Description	ICU
А	At this LOS, traffic volumes are low and speed is not restricted by other vehicles. All signal cycles clear with no vehicles waiting through more than one original cycle.	0.00 to 0.60
В	At this LOS, traffic volumes begin to be affected by other traffic. Between one and 10 percent of the signal cycles have one or more vehicles which wait through more than one signal/cycle during the peak traffic periods.	0.61 to 0.70
С	At this LOS, operating speeds and maneuverability are closely controlled by other traffic. Between 11 and 30 percent of the signal cycles have one or more vehicles which wait through more than one signal cycle during peak traffic periods.	0.71 to 0.80
D	At this LOS, traffic will operate at tolerable operating speeds, although with restricted maneuverability. More than 30 percent of the signal cycles have one or more vehicles which wait through more than one signal cycle during peak traffic hours.	0.81 to 0.90
Е	Traffic will experience restricted speeds. Vehicles will frequently have to wait through two or more cycles at signalized intersections, and any additional traffic will result in breakdown of the traffic carrying ability of the system.	0.91 to 1.00
F	Long queues of traffic, unstable flow, stoppages of long duration where traffic volumes and traffic speed can drop to zero. Traffic volumes will be less than the volume which occurs at LOS E.	Above 1.00

Source: City of Irvine, General Plan – Circulation Element, 2000.

The ICU analysis for this study used standard parameters currently followed by the City of Irvine was applied to the intersections.³ These standard parameters include default saturation flow rates defined as the maximum number of vehicles that can pass through a lane per hour of green time

³ City of Irvine, *Traffic Impact Analysis Guidelines*, 2004.

at a signalized intersection. The parameters also include clearance interval defined as a percentage of the overall intersection capacity utilized by vehicles to clear the intersection during the amber or yellow signal. The City of Irvine assumed an unstriped right-turn lane exists when the distance to the inside edge of the outside through lane was at least 19 feet and parking was prohibited during the peak period. The City of Irvine uses a default saturation flow rate of 1,700 vehicles per hour per lane (vphpl) for all lanes. A clearance interval of five percent was used for all intersections.

2.8 **REGULATORY FRAMEWORK**

UCI does not have any adopted performance criteria for traffic. Therefore, this traffic analysis used the City of Irvine's performance criteria to determine acceptable LOS and to identify significant adverse impacts to the circulation network.

2.8.1 LEVEL OF SERVICE STANDARDS

The City of Irvine has established LOS D or better as the acceptable LOS for road segments and intersections.⁴ Any road segment in the City of Irvine operating at LOS E or F would require additional analysis based on the highest peak hour V/C ratio established for the peak direction. For this traffic study, if the road segment is operating at LOS E or F during the peak hour, then the road segment is considered to be deficient. Any intersection operating at LOS E or F was considered to be deficient.

2.8.2 THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANT ADVERSE IMPACTS

A significant adverse traffic impact would occur in the City of Irvine if implementation of the proposed project would result in one or more of the following:

- The road segment to operate at an unacceptable LOS; increase in the daily V/C ratio of greater than 0.02 when rounded to the nearest hundredth; and the road segment operates at an unacceptable peak hour LOS.
- The intersection to operate at an unacceptable LOS, and an increase in the ICU of greater than 0.02 when rounded to the nearest hundredth.

2.9 SIGNAL WARRANT ANALYSIS

Traffic signal warrants used in this study to evaluate the need for signalization were based on the methodology described in the *California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (CA MUTCD)*.⁵ The CA MUTCD provides eight warrants for evaluating the installation of traffic signals. Warrant 3, Part B (Peak Hour Warrant) is commonly used in conjunction with peak-hour intersection analysis. The Peak Hour Warrant is satisfied if the peak-hour volumes on the major (total for both approaches) and minor (highest approach) streets exceed the minimum threshold volumes prescribed by the warrant. The minimum threshold volumes depend on the lane configurations of the major and minor streets. As a general industry standard or practice,

⁴ City of Irvine, *Traffic Impact Analysis Guidelines*, 2004.

⁵ State of California, Department of Transportation, *California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices*, 2006.

the minimum threshold volume is 100 vehicles per hour on the minor approach (with one lane per direction) if the major street has two or more lanes per direction and a peak-hour volume of at least 1,700 vehicles per hour in both directions.

SECTION 3.0 EXISTING CONDITIONS

This section describes the existing conditions in the study area, including major land uses, parking facilities, vehicular volumes, road segments and intersection operational characteristics, existing LOS, and signal warrant analyses.

3.1 EXISTING MAJOR LAND USES

Land uses immediately surrounding the proposed project consists of educational facilities dedicated to UCI.

3.2 EXISTING CIRCULATION NETWORK

The following describes the current road operational characteristics in the study area.

<u>SR 73</u> is a Freeway north of Jamboree Road and is a Transportation Corridor south of Jamboree Road as classified on the Orange County Master Plan of Arterials Highways (MPAH). The Transportation Corridor portion of SR 73 requires a toll fee that varies based on the distance traveled. SR 73 has three lanes in each direction north of Bison Avenue. SR 73 has four southbound lanes and three northbound lanes south of Bison Avenue. The posted speed limit is 65 miles per hour (mph).

<u>MacArthur Boulevard</u> is an eight-lane north-south Major Arterial as classified on the MPAH. The road has a raised median and striped bike lanes on both sides. Parking is prohibited on MacArthur Boulevard. The posted speed limit is 55 mph.

<u>California Avenue</u> is a two-lane north-south Commuter. The road has no median and no striped bike lanes. Parking is prohibited on California Avenue. The posted speed limit is 40 mph.

<u>University Drive</u> is a four-lane east-west Major Arterial. The road has a raised median and striped bike lanes on both sides. Parking is prohibited on University Drive. The posted speed limit is 50 mph.

<u>Bison Avenue</u> is a six-lane east-west Major Arterial from MacArthur Boulevard to the SR 73 southbound ramps and a four-lane east-west Primary Arterial from the SR 73 southbound ramps to Peltason Drive. The road has a raised median and striped bike lanes on both sides. Parking is prohibited on Bison Avenue. The posted speed limit is 50 mph from MacArthur Boulevard to the SR 73 southbound ramps and 40 mph from the SR 73 southbound ramps to Peltason Drive.

<u>Peltason Drive</u> is a two-lane Commuter loop that primarily serves UCI. The road has a raised median and striped bike lanes on both sides. Parking is prohibited on Peltason Drive. The posted speed limit is 35 mph.

The following describes the current intersection lane configurations in the study area.

- 1. <u>California Avenue at University Drive</u> is a signalized three-legged intersection. Two exclusive left-turn lanes are provided on the northbound approach. One exclusive left-turn lane is provided on the westbound approach. One exclusive right-turn lane is provided on the northbound and eastbound approaches. Marked crosswalks are available only on the south and west legs of the intersection.
- 2. <u>MacArthur Boulevard at Bison Avenue</u> is a signalized four-legged intersection. Two exclusive left-turn lanes and one exclusive right-turn lane are provided on all approaches. The northbound and eastbound approaches consist of a free right-turn. The southbound right-turn lane has a protected right-turn phase that is overlapped with the eastbound left-turn phase. The westbound right-turn lane has a protected right-turn phase that is overlapped with the southbound left-turn phase. Marked crosswalks are available on all legs of the intersection.
- 3. <u>SR 73 southbound ramps at Bison Avenue</u> is a signalized four-legged intersection. Two exclusive left-turn lanes are provided on the southbound and westbound approaches. One exclusive right-turn lane is provided on the southbound and eastbound approaches. The southbound approach consists of a free right-turn. Marked crosswalks are available only on the north and south legs of the intersection.
- 4. <u>SR 73 northbound ramps at Bison Avenue</u> is a signalized four-legged intersection. One exclusive left-turn lane is provided on the eastbound approach. One exclusive right-turn lane is provided on the westbound approach. The northbound approach consists of one left-turn lane, one shared left-/right-turn lane and one right-turn lane. Marked crosswalks are available only on the north and south legs of the intersection.
- 5. <u>California Avenue at Bison Avenue</u> is a signalized four-legged intersection. One exclusive left-turn lane is provided on all approaches. One exclusive right-turn lane is provided on the southbound and eastbound approaches. An unstriped right-turn lane is assumed for the northbound approach because the distance measured to the outside through lane is 19 feet or greater. Marked crosswalks are available on all legs of the intersection.
- 6. <u>Health Sciences Road at Bison Avenue</u> is an unsignalized two-way stop-control (TWSC) intersection with the stop control on the northbound and southbound approaches. One exclusive left-turn lane is provided on the eastbound and westbound approaches. One exclusive right-turn lane is provided on the southbound approach. Marked crosswalks are not available at the intersection.
- 7. <u>Peltason Drive at Bison Avenue/Physical Sciences Road</u> is a signalized four-legged intersection. One exclusive left-turn lane is provided on the northbound and southbound approaches. One exclusive right-turn lane is provided on the eastbound and westbound approaches. An unstriped right-turn lane is assumed for the southbound approach because the distance measured to the outside through lane is 19 feet or greater. The eastbound right-turn lane has a protected right-turn phase that is overlapped with the northbound left-turn phase. Marked crosswalks are available on all legs of the intersection.

The existing circulation network is shown in Figure 3.2-1.

3.3 EXISTING VEHICULAR TRAFFIC VOLUMES

The existing traffic counts used in this study were taken in April 2007. Intersection turning movement counts were conducted at the study intersections during the A.M. peak period of 7:00 A.M. to 9:00 A.M. and the P.M. peak period of 4:00 P.M. to 6:00 P.M. Road segment daily traffic counts were taken at the study road segments during the same weekday. These traffic counts represent existing traffic conditions and are shown in Figure 3.3-1.

3.4 EXISTING TRANSIT SERVICES

OCTA is primary transit service for Orange County. However, OCTA does not provide transit service in the immediate vicinity of the proposed project. The Associated Students UCI (ASUCI) does provide shuttle services throughout the UCI campus and transfer locations with OCTA Routes 59, 79, 175, 178, 213, and 470.

3.5 EXISTING BIKE LANES

Existing bike lanes within the study area are located on Bison Avenue between MacArthur Boulevard and Peltason Drive. These bike lanes are classified as Class II Bikeways because the lanes are striped.

3.6 EXISTING LEVEL OF SERVICE

3.6.1 ROAD SEGMENTS

Table 3.6-1 summarizes the existing LOS for the study road segments based on the V/C ratio standards discussed in Section 2.7. As shown in Table 3.6-1, all study road segments are currently operating at LOS C or better. California Avenue between University Drive and Bison Avenue has the worst V/C ratio of 0.754.

Road Segment	Section Limits	Street Classification	Lane Configuration	Daily Volume	Capacity	V/C	LOS
California	University Drive to Bison Avenue	Commuter	2 Undivided	9,803	13,000	0.754	С
Avenue	MacArthur Boulevard to SR 73 southbound ramps	Major Arterial	6 Divided	14,589	54,000	0.270	А
Bison	SR 73 northbound ramps to California Avenue	Primary Arterial	4 Divided	22,715	32,000	0.710	С
Avenue	California Avenue to Health Sciences Road	Primary Arterial	4 Divided	16,108	32,000	0.503	А
	Health Sciences Road to Peltason Drive	Primary Arterial	4 Divided	15,965	32,000	0.499	А

 TABLE 3.6-1

 ROAD SEGMENT DAILY LEVELS OF SERVICE – EXISTING CONDITIONS

Source: P&D Consultants (2007).



Figure 3.2-1 Circulation Network Existing Conditions

Telemedicine/PRIME-LC Facility Traffic Impact Study



Figure 3.3-1 Traffic Volumes Existing Conditions

Telemedicine/PRIME-LC Facility Traffic Impact Study

3.6.2 INTERSECTIONS

Table 3.6-2 shows the existing LOS for the study intersections during the A.M. and P.M. peak hours based on the ICU methodology discussed in Section 2.7. As shown in Table 3.6-2, all study intersections are operating at acceptable LOS D or better. California Avenue at University Drive has the worst A.M. peak hour ICU of 0.889 and operates at LOS D. The detailed LOS calculation worksheets are included in Appendix B.

Indev	Intersection	A.M. Pea	ak Hour	P.M. Peak Hour		
muex	Intel section	ICU	LOS	ICU	LOS	
1	California Avenue at University Drive	0.889	D	0.815	D	
2	MacArthur Boulevard at Bison Avenue	0.750	С	0.732	С	
3	SR 73 southbound ramps at Bison Avenue	0.492	А	0.382	Α	
4	SR 73 northbound ramps at Bison Avenue	0.583	А	0.609	В	
5	California Avenue at Bison Avenue	0.661	В	0.876	D	
6	Health Sciences Road at Bison Avenue	0.310	А	0.346	Α	
7	Peltason Drive at Bison Avenue/Physical Sciences Road	0.553	А	0.613	В	

 TABLE 3.6-2

 INTERSECTION LEVELS OF SERVICE – EXISTING CONDITIONS

Source: P&D Consultants (2007).

3.7 SIGNAL WARRANT ANALYSIS

The Peak Hour Warrant was used to analyze the need for a traffic signal for existing conditions at the unsignalized intersection of Health Sciences Road at Bison Avenue. The signal warrant analysis shows that a traffic signal is not warranted for the intersection of Health Sciences Road at Bison Avenue because of low traffic volumes on the minor approaches. The detailed signal warrant analyses are included in Appendix D.

SECTION 4.0 2009 TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS

This section describes the 2009 traffic impacts of the proposed project. This section includes: an analysis of traffic conditions without and with the project in 2009 by determining the LOS; significant adverse traffic impacts based on a comparison of these conditions; potential improvements to reduce potentially significant adverse traffic impacts to less than significant levels; and signal warrant analyses.

4.1 TRAFFIC CONDITIONS

No improvements to the circulation network will occur between 2007 and 2009. Future background traffic volumes for year 2009 were calculated by applying an ambient growth rate of three percent per year to existing 2007 traffic volumes. Figures 4.1-1 and 4.1-2 show the traffic volumes in the study area without and with the project scenarios in 2009, respectively.

4.2 TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS

Project-related traffic impacts were determined by comparing the road segment and intersection LOS without and with the proposed project. Significant adverse traffic impacts were identified based on the City of Irvine's criteria for significant adverse project impacts previously described in Section 2.8.

4.2.1 ROAD SEGMENTS

Table 4.2-1 summarizes the study road segment LOS in 2009 without the proposed project. As shown in Table 4.2-1, all study road segments will operate at acceptable LOS C or better. California Avenue between University Drive and Bison Avenue will have the worst V/C ratio of 0.800 and will operate at LOS C.

Road Segment	Section Limits	Street Classification	Lane Configuration	Daily Volume	Capacity	V/C	LOS
California	University Drive to	Commuter	2 Undivided	10 400	13 000	0.800	С
Avenue	Bison Avenue	Commuter	2 Ondivided	10,400	15,000	0.000	C
	MacArthur Boulevard to	Major	6 Divided	15 477	54 000	0.287	Δ
	SR 73 southbound ramps	Arterial	0 Divided	13,477	54,000	0.287	А
	SR 73 northbound ramps	Primary	4 Divided	24.008	32,000	0.753	C
Bison	to California Avenue	Arterial	4 Divided	24,098	32,000		
Avenue	California Avenue to	Primary	4 Dissi da d	17.000	22.000	0.524	٨
	Health Sciences Road	Arterial	4 Divided	17,089	32,000	0.534	A
	Health Sciences Road to	Primary	4 Dissidad	16.027	22.000	0.520	
	Peltason Drive	Arterial	4 Divided	10,937	52,000	0.329	A

 TABLE 4.2-1

 ROAD SEGMENT DAILY LEVELS OF SERVICE – 2009 WITHOUT THE PROJECT^[1]

Source: P&D Consultants (2007).

^[1] 2009 without the Project includes existing traffic and ambient growth but without the proposed project traffic.



Figure 4.1-1 Traffic Volumes 2009 without Project

Telemedicine/PRIME-LC Facility Traffic Impact Study



Figure 4.1-2 Traffic Volumes 2009 with Project

Telemedicine/PRIME-LC Facility Traffic Impact Study

Table 4.2-2 summarizes the study road segment LOS in 2009 with the proposed project. As shown in Table 4.2-2, all study road segments will operate at acceptable LOS D or better. California Avenue between University Drive and Bison Avenue will have the worst V/C ratio of 0.805 and will operate at LOS D.

Road Segment	Section Limits	Street Classification	Lane Configuration	Daily Volume	Capacity	V/C	LOS
California Avenue	University Drive to Bison Avenue	Commuter	2 Undivided	10,468	13,000	0.805	D
	MacArthur Boulevard to SR 73 southbound ramps	Major Arterial	6 Divided	15,545	54,000	0.288	А
Bison	SR 73 northbound ramps to California Avenue	Primary Arterial	4 Divided	24,285	32,000	0.759	С
Avenue	California Avenue to Health Sciences Road	Primary Arterial	4 Divided	17,344	32,000	0.542	А
	Health Sciences Road to Peltason Drive	Primary Arterial	4 Divided	17,022	32,000	0.532	А

 TABLE 4.2-2

 ROAD SEGMENT DAILY LEVELS OF SERVICE – 2009 WITH THE PROJECT^[1]

Source: P&D Consultants (2007).

^[1] 2009 with the Project includes existing traffic, ambient growth and the proposed project traffic.

Table 4.2-3 summarizes the road segment changes in the V/C ratio, and identifies if the road segment will be operating at an unacceptable LOS, and if the road segment will be significantly adversely impacted by implementation of the proposed project. As shown in Table 4.2-3, all road segments will operate at an acceptable LOS with the proposed project. The road segments will operate at acceptable LOS with the proposed project. The road segments will operate at acceptable LOS and the increase in daily V/C ratio is less than 0.02 when rounded to the nearest hundredths. Therefore, implementation of the proposed project will not create a significant adverse impact to the road segments.

TABLE 4.2-3ROAD SEGMENT SIGNIFICANT ADVERSE IMPACT SUMMARY – 2009

Dood		Changa	Unaco		Peak Hou	ır		Sig.
Segment	Section Limits	in V/C	LOS? ^[1]	Highest Volume	Capacity	V/C	LOS	Adv. Imp.? ^[2]
California Avenue	University Drive to Bison Avenue	0.005	No		No			
	MacArthur Boulevard to SR 73 southbound ramps	MacArthur Boulevard to SR 73 southbound ramps0.001NoNot Applicable					No	
Bison	SR 73 northbound ramps to California Avenue	0.006	No	Not Applicable				No
Avenue	California Avenue to Health Sciences Road	0.008	No	Not Applicable				No
	Health Sciences Road to Peltason Drive	0.003	No	Not Applicable				No

Source: P&D Consultants (2007).

^[1] Unacc. LOS: Unacceptable LOS.

^[2] Sig. Adv. Imp.: Significant Adverse Impact.

4.2.2 INTERSECTIONS

Table 4.2-4 summarizes the study intersection LOS in 2009 without the proposed project during the A.M. and P.M. peak hours. As shown in Table 4.2-4, all study intersections will operate at acceptable LOS D or better except for the intersection of California Avenue at University Drive during the A.M. peak hour and the intersection of California Avenue at Bison Avenue during the P.M. peak hour. California Avenue at University Drive has an ICU of 0.940 and will operate at unacceptable LOS E during the A.M. peak hour in 2009 without the proposed project. California Avenue at Bison Avenue has an ICU of 0.927 and will operate at unacceptable LOS E during the P.M. peak hour in 2009 without the proposed project. California Avenue at Bison Avenue has an ICU of 0.927 and will operate at unacceptable LOS E during the roposed project. The detailed LOS calculation worksheets are included in Appendix C1.

Index	Intersection	A.M. Pea	ak Hour	P.M. Peak Hour		
писх	Intersection	ICU	LOS	ICU	LOS	
1	California Avenue at University Drive	0.940	Е	0.861	D	
2	MacArthur Boulevard at Bison Avenue	0.793	С	0.770	С	
3	SR 73 southbound ramps at Bison Avenue	0.527	А	0.402	А	
4	SR 73 northbound ramps at Bison Avenue	0.615	В	0.643	В	
5	California Avenue at Bison Avenue	0.692	В	0.927	Е	
6	Health Sciences Road at Bison Avenue	0.326	A	0.364	A	
7	Peltason Drive at Bison Avenue/Physical Sciences Road	0.584	А	0.647	В	

 TABLE 4.2-4

 INTERSECTION LEVELS OF SERVICE – 2009 WITHOUT THE PROJECT^[1]

Source: P&D Consultants (2007). **Bolded** items indicate intersections will operate at below-standard LOS. ^[1] 2009 without the Project includes existing traffic and ambient growth but without the proposed project traffic.

Table 4.2-5 summarizes the study intersection LOS in 2009 with the proposed project during the A.M. and P.M. peak hours. As shown in Table 4.2-5, all study intersections will operate at acceptable LOS D or better except for the intersection of California Avenue at University Drive during the A.M. peak hour and the intersection of California Avenue at Bison Avenue during the P.M. peak hour. California Avenue at University Drive has an ICU of 0.946 and will operate at unacceptable LOS E during the A.M. peak hour in 2009 with the proposed project. California Avenue at Bison Avenue has an ICU of 0.937 and will operate at unacceptable LOS E during the P.M. peak hour in 2009 with the proposed project. California Avenue at Bison Avenue has an ICU of 0.937 and will operate at unacceptable LOS E during the proposed project. The detailed LOS calculation worksheets are included in Appendix C2.

Indox	Intersection	A.M. Pea	ak Hour	P.M. Peak Hour		
Index	Intersection	ICU	LOS	ICU	LOS	
1	California Avenue at University Drive	0.946	Е	0.867	D	
2	MacArthur Boulevard at Bison Avenue	0.795	С	0.772	С	
3	SR 73 southbound ramps at Bison Avenue	0.535	А	0.405	Α	
4	SR 73 northbound ramps at Bison Avenue	0.623	В	0.651	В	
5	California Avenue at Bison Avenue	0.701	С	0.937	Е	
6	Health Sciences Road at Bison Avenue	0.327	A	0.380	A	
7	Peltason Drive at Bison Avenue/Physical Sciences Road	0.591	A	0.651	В	

 TABLE 4.2-5

 INTERSECTION LEVELS OF SERVICE – 2009 WITH THE PROJECT^[1]

Source: P&D Consultants (2007). **Bolded** items indicate intersections will operate at below-standard LOS. ^[1] 2009 with the Project includes existing traffic, ambient growth and the proposed project traffic.

Table 4.2-6 summarizes the intersection changes in ICU, identifies if the intersection will be operating at an unacceptable LOS, and if the intersection will be significantly adversely impacted by implementation of the proposed project. As shown in Table 4.2-6, all intersections will operate at an acceptable LOS with the proposed project except for the intersection of California Avenue at University Drive during the A.M. peak hour and the intersection of California Avenue at Bison Avenue during the P.M. peak hour. However, the increase in ICU is less than 0.02 when rounded to the nearest hundredths for these two intersections. Therefore, implementation of the proposed project will not create a significant adverse impact to the intersections.

		A.M	л. Peak Ho	our	P.M. Peak Hour			
Index	Intersection	Change in ICU	Unacc. LOS? ^[1]	Sig. Adv. Imp.? ^[2]	Change in ICU	Unacc. LOS?	Sig. Adv. Imp.?	
1	California Avenue at University Drive	0.006	Yes	No	0.006	No	No	
2	MacArthur Boulevard at Bison Avenue	0.002	No	No	0.002	No	No	
3	SR 73 southbound ramps at Bison Avenue	0.008	No	No	0.003	No	No	
4	SR 73 northbound ramps at Bison Avenue	0.008	No	No	0.008	No	No	
5	California Avenue at Bison Avenue	0.009	No	No	0.010	Yes	No	
6	Health Sciences Road at Bison Avenue	0.001	No	No	0.016	No	No	
7	Peltason Drive at Bison Avenue/Physical Sciences Road	0.007	No	No	0.004	No	No	

TABLE 4.2-6INTERSECTION SIGNIFICANT ADVERSE IMPACT SUMMARY – 2009

Source: P&D Consultants (2007).

^[1] Unacc. LOS: Unacceptable LOS.

^[2] Sig. Adv. Imp.: Significant Adverse Impact.

4.3 **RECOMMENDED MITIGATION MEASURES**

No mitigation measures are required in 2009 because no study road segment or intersection will be significantly adversely impacted by implementation of the proposed project.

4.4 SIGNAL WARRANT ANALYSIS

The Peak Hour Warrant was used to analyze the need for a traffic signal for year 2009 without and with the proposed project at the unsignalized intersection of Health Sciences Road at Bison Avenue. The signal warrant analysis shows that a traffic signal is not warranted for year 2009 without the proposed project because of low traffic volumes on the minor approaches. However, the signal warrant analysis shows that a traffic signal is warranted for year 2009 with the proposed project because of the high traffic volumes on the southbound approach during the P.M. peak hour. The detailed signal warrant analyses are included in Appendix D.

SECTION 5.0 FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

This section summarizes the key findings and recommendations for transportation related issues pertaining to Telemedicine/PRIME-LC Facility project.

5.1 FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS

5.1.1 TELEMIDICINE/PRIME-LC FACILITY PROJECT

The proposed 65,000 GSF building could support up to 311 students based on the 2005-06 academic year GSF to student ratio at UCI. The 2005-06 academic year GSF to student ratio is approximately 209 GSF per student.

Based on the 311 student that the proposed 65,000 GSF building could support, the proposed project would generate 740 daily trips with 65 trips occurring during the A.M. and P.M. peak hours.

5.1.2 EXISTING CONDITIONS

All study road segments currently operate at an acceptable daily LOS. All study intersections currently operate at an acceptable LOS during the A.M. and P.M. peak hours.

The intersection of Health Sciences Road at Bison Avenue does not meet peak hour signal warrants for existing conditions because of the low traffic volumes on the minor approaches.

5.1.3 YEAR 2009 CONDITIONS

All study road segments will operate at an acceptable daily LOS in year 2009 without and with the proposed project. Implementation of the proposed project will not create a significant adverse impact on the study road segments because all the road segments will operate at an acceptable LOS.

All study intersections will operate at an acceptable peak hour LOS in year 2009 without and with the proposed project except for the intersection of California Avenue at University Drive during the A.M. peak hour and the intersection of California Avenue at Bison Avenue during the P.M. peak hour. The intersection of California Avenue at University Drive will operate at an unacceptable LOS E during the A.M. peak hour, and the intersection of California Avenue at Bison Avenue at Bison Avenue at Bison Avenue at an unacceptable LOS E during the A.M. peak hour, and the intersection of California Avenue at Bison Avenue will operate at an unacceptable LOS E during the P.M. peak hour.

Implementation of the proposed project will not create a significant adverse impact on the study intersections because the intersections either operate at an acceptable LOS or the increase in ICU is less than 0.02 when rounded to the nearest hundredths for intersections forecasted to operate at an unacceptable LOS.

The intersection of Health Sciences Road at Bison Avenue does not meet peak hour signal warrants in year 2009 without the proposed project because of the low traffic volumes on the minor approaches. However, the intersection of Health Sciences Road at Bison avenue does meet peak hour signal warrants in year 2009 with the proposed project because of the high traffic volumes on the southbound approach during the P.M. peak hour.

5.2 **RECOMMENDATIONS**

No mitigation measures are required in year 2009, as no significant adverse impacts will occur.

It is recommended to signalize the intersection of Health Sciences Road at Bison Avenue because the intersection will meet peak hour signal warrants in year 2009 with the proposed project.

APPENDIX A EXISTING VEHICULAR TRAFFIC COUNTS

Volumes for	or: W	ednes	day, /	April 04	ł, 2007		City:	Irvine					Project #: 07	7-1093-0	01
Location:	Calif	ornia /	Ave	just N/	o Bison Ave	е									
AM Period	NB		SB		EB	WB		PM Period	NB		SB		<u>EB</u> W	/B	
00:00	2		3					12:00	102		170				
00:15	4		1					12:15	96		118				
00:30	3	11	0	4			15	12:30	116	424	107 79	173			907
01.00	 1	11		T			15	12.45	110	727	102	7/5			097
01:00	1		с З					13:00	132		92				
01:30	1		0					13:30	99		98				
01:45	0	3	3	11			14	13:45	84	425	67	360			785
02:00	0		7					14:00	65		68				
02:15	2		2					14:15	57		53				
02:30	0		0					14:30	58		69				
02:45	3	5	3	12			17	14:45	42	222	51	241			463
03:00	0		5					15:00	61		92				
03:15	3		1					15:15	58		57				
03:30	1	4	3 1	10			14	15:30	53 62	234	63 74	286			520
04.00	3		14	10			11	16:00	52	231	103	200			520
04.00	3		2					16:15	43		76				
04:30	6		2					16:30	61		93				
04:45	11	23	12	30			53	16:45	72	228	99	371			599
05:00	8		3					17:00	78		143				
05:15	4		8					17:15	64		154				
05:30	11		7					17:30	71		182				
05:45	40	63	14	32			95	17:45	55	268	125	604			872
06:00	18		11					18:00	94		164				
06:15	25		13					18:15	76		122				
06:30	43	140	20	00			247	18:30	91	252	109	101			024
06:45	<u>62</u>	148	22	99			247	18:45	92	303	60	401			834
07:00	59 62		32					19:00	50 62		63 53				
07:30	89		53					19:30	43		40				
07:45	128	338	54	203			541	19:45	32	187	37	193			380
08:00	174		78					20:00	39		48				
08:15	163		64					20:15	17		31				
08:30	150		78					20:30	15		21				
08:45	189	676	101	321			997	20:45	21	92	11	111			203
09:00	158		110					21:00	19		26				
09:15	111		135					21:15	11		16				
09:30	121	474	99 67	411			00E	21:30	14	61	16	75			126
10:00	60	7/7	70	711			005	21.45		01	24	75			150
10:00	00 45		70 78					22:00 22:15	o ⊿		∠ 4 17				
10:15	55		70 41					22:15	6		8				
10:45	72	240	71	260			500	22:45	3	21	7	51			72
11:00	50		54					23:00	3		16				
11:15	53		71					23:15	0		5				
11:30	78		105					23:30	4		2				
11:45	96	277	117	347			624	23:45	4	11	6	29			40
Total Vol.		2262		1740			4002			2526		3275			5801
													Daily Total	s	
										NB		SB	EB	WB	Combined
										4788		5015	_		9803
Split %		56 E0/		43 20/	AM		40 80%			43 50/-		56 5%	PM		50 20%
Deak Hours		00.0%		11.45			09.20			12.20		17.15			17.15
		676		512			1022			12:30		625			17:15
P.H.F.		0.89		0.75			0.89			0.96		0.86			0.88

City: Irvine

Location: Bison Ave	just E/o M	1acArt	thur B	lvd											
AM Period NB	SB	EB		WB			PM Period	NB	SE	3	EB		WB		
00:00		10		14			12:00				128		218		
00:15		6		7			12:15				147		170		
00:30		9		9			12:30				163		130		
00:45		6	31	6	36	67	12:45				175	613	152	670	1283
01:00		4		4			13:00				158		160		
01:15		1		5			13:15				132		122		
01:30		4		0			13:30				139		116		
01:45		0	9	2	11	20	13:45				106	535	126	524	1059
02:00		4		4			14:00				109		105		
02:15		3		0			14:15				78		100		
02:30		1		0			14:30				95		106		
02:45		3	11	1	5	16	14:45				54	336	84	395	731
03:00		3		2			15:00				73		117		
03:15		0		6			15:15				78		123		
03:30		0		2			15:30				51		110		
03:45		1	4	1	11	15	15:45				65	267	118	468	735
04:00		4		4			16:00				105		150		
04:15		1		1			16:15				114		147		
04:30		3		6			16:30				83		136		
04:45		7	15	4	15	30	16:45				80	382	159	592	974
05:00		8		10			17:00				98		136		
05:15		11		10			17:15				127		177		
05:30		16		10			17:30				120		226		
05:45		30	65	12	42	107	17:45				115	460	196	735	1195
06:00		36		23			18:00				121		219		
06:15		29		18			18:15				129		165		
06:30		26		57			18:30				140		148		
06:45		49	140	149	247	387	18:45				137	527	148	680	1207
07:00		61		111			19:00				87		140		
07:15		93		133			19:15				74		94		
07:30		101		150			19:30				98		100		
07:45		117	372	199	593	965	19:45				61	320	81	415	735
08:00		105		151			20:00				71		76		
08:15		180		151			20:15				80		93		
08:30		109		191			20:30				57		81		
08:45		120	514	127	620	1134	20:45				44	252	74	324	576
09:00		141		117			21:00				58		62		
09:15		131		80			21:15				39		54		
09:30		92		76			21:30				33		40		
09:45		85	449	102	375	824	21:45				35	165	56	212	377
10:00		91		108			22:00				33		44		
10:15		91		74			22:15				19		36		
10:30		105		80			22:30				19		26		
10:45		123	410	75	337	747	22:45				9	80	33	139	219
11:00		103		102			23:00				12		18		
11:15		123		103			23:15				11		21		
11:30		203		133			23:30				9		15		
11:45		180	609	132	470	1079	23:45				7	39	14	68	107
			2620		2762	5201						2070		5222	0109
i otal vol.			2629		2762	5391						39/6		5222	9198
									NP	CP	I	Daily To	otals	\//D	Combined
								-	טאו	30					
												6605		/984	14589

	АМ	PM	
Split %	48.8% 51.2% 37.0%	43.2% 5	6.8% 63.0%
Peak Hour	11:30 07:45 11:30	12:15	17:15 17:15
Volume P.H.F.	65869213110.810.870.95	643 0.92	818 1301 0.90 0.94

City: Irvine

Location: Bison Ave	just W/o Califo	ornia Av	ve										
AM Period NB	SB EB		WB			PM Period	NB	SB	EB		WB		
00:00	22		17			12:00			225		218		
00:15	24		14			12:15			219		143		
00:30	22		13			12:30			231		133		
00:45	22	90	11	55	145	12:45			214	889	168	662	1551
01:00	26		8			13:00			208		235		
01:15	6		12			13:15			165		151		
01:30	10		4			13:30			202		142		
01:45	12	54	4	28	82	13:45			208	783	172	700	1483
02:00	6		7			14:00			148		192		
02:15	6		4			14:15			114		146		
02:30	8		6			14:30			162		158		
02:45	6	26	5	22	48	14:45			132	556	166	662	1218
03:00	11		3			15:00			180		220		
03:15	5		3			15:15			162		226		
03:30	8		2			15:30			169		228		
03:45	2	26	3	11	37	15:45			148	659	253	927	1586
04:00	6		5			16:00			109		370		
04:15	8		3			16:15			136		361		
04:30	12		2			16:30			136		379		
04:45	24	50	15	25	75	16:45			141	522	365	1475	1997
05:00	15		28			17:00			169		370		
05:15	31		4			17:15			166		337		
05:30	40		8			17:30			190		319		
05:45	122	208	15	55	263	17:45			246	771	332	1358	2129
06:00	98		17			18:00			185		224		
06:15	110		25			18:15			195		174		
06:30	114		47			18:30			189		122		
06:45	118	440	49	138	578	18:45			164	733	107	627	1360
07:00	325		46			19:00			128		125		
07:15	200		51			19:15			162		138		
07:30	296		60			19:30			144		102		
07:45	364	1185	87	244	1429	19:45			75	509	77	442	951
08:00	564		70			20:00			112		80		
08:15	295		99			20:15			80		67		
08:30	395		113			20:30			82		65		
08:45	434	1688	152	434	2122	20:45			85	359	88	300	659
09:00	209		136			21:00			82		103		
09:15	159		113			21:15			100		103		
09:30	219		116			21:30			78		64		
09:45	275	862	87	452	1314	21:45			45	305	67	337	642
10:00	136		102			22:00			86		66		
10:15	162		60			22:15			78		55		
10:30	148		52			22:30			56		37		
10:45	270	716	97	311	1027	22:45			55	275	40	198	473
11:00	205		142			23:00			44		43		
11:15	198		92			23:15			44		20		
11:30	219		81	· • -		23:30			24		26		
11:45	244	866	120	435	1301	23:45			24	136	20	109	245
Total Vol.		6211		2210	8421					6497		7797	14294
								NB	SB	Daily To EB	otals	WB	Combined
							-			12708		10007	22715

	AM	РМ	
Split %	73.8% 26.2% 37.1%	45.5%	54.5% 62.9%
Peak Hour	08:00 11:45 08:00	12:00	16:00 17:00
Volume P.H.F.	1688 614 2122 0.75 0.70 0.84	889 0.96	1475 2129 0.97 0.92

Peak Hour

Volume

P.H.F.

08:15

828

0.88

11:30

658

0.78

08:15

1294

0.94

Location: Bison Ave just E/o California Ave

City: Irvine

12:00

591

0.82

17:00

744

0.91

17:00

1281

0.92

AM Period NB	SB	EB		WB			PM Period	NB	SB	E	В		WB		
00:00		15		11			12:00			13	0		212		
00:15		17		11			12:15			13	6		133		
00:30		14		11			12:30			14	5		114		
00:45		12	58	3	36	94	12:45			18	0 5	591	156	615	1206
01:00		17		3			13:00			12	4		170		
01:15		4		3			13:15			12	1		106		
01:30		10		3			13:30			10	3		126		
01:45		8	39	6	15	54	13:45			14	4 4	192	143	545	1037
02:00		6		6			14:00			12	8		170		
02:15		2		17			14:15			10	0		138		
02:30		6		3			14:30			11	2		183		
02:45		4	18	3	29	47	14:45			8	9 4	129	131	622	1051
03:00		8		3			15:00			8	5		198		
03:15		6		0			15:15			9	D		156		
03:30		6		3			15:30			8	7		116		
03:45		5	25	0	6	31	15:45			11	0 3	373	153	623	996
04:00		6		0			16:00			7	3		170		
04:15		8		3			16:15			8	1		168		
04:30		14		3			16:30			9	Э		168		
04:45		29	57	8	14	71	16:45			13	2 3	85	165	671	1056
05:00		16		8			17:00			11	1		205		
05:15		46		0			17:15			12	0		178		
05:30		78		3			17:30			15	6		161		
05:45		174	314	3	14	328	17:45			15	0 5	537	200	744	1281
06:00		145		11			18:00			12	8		180		
06:15		144		17			18:15			12	7		161		
06:30		106		33			18:30			12	4		126		
06:45		105	500	36	97	597	18:45			11	1 4	190	94	561	1051
07:00		77		56			19:00			7	1		146		
07:15		130		47			19:15			11	7		104		
07:30		133		45			19:30			7	1		72		
07:45		167	507	78	226	733	19:45			6	0 3	819	77	399	718
08:00		136		78			20:00			7	5		62		
08:15		198		106			20:15			6	1		62		
08:30		236		109			20:30			8	1		79		
08:45		196	766	131	424	1190	20:45			7) 2	288	62	265	553
09:00		198		120			21:00			6	4		72		
09:15		136		114			21:15			6	5		86		
09:30		247		126			21:30			5	Э		62		
09:45		170	751	140	500	1251	21:45			4) 2	229	74	294	523
10:00		87		120			22:00			4	7		40		
10:15		79		61			22:15			5	4		42		
10:30		61		39			22:30			3	2		22		
10:45		162	389	89	309	698	22:45			3	2 1	.65	25	129	294
11:00		117		134			23:00			2	Э		20		
11:15		126		120			23:15			3	D		15		
11:30		158		137			23:30			1	1		12		
11:45		131	532	176	567	1099	23:45			1	5	85	17	64	149
Total Vol.			3956		2237	6193					4	383		5532	9915
											Dai	ly To	tals		
								_	NB	SB		EB		WB	Combined
											8	339		7769	16108
			AM					_				PM			
Split %			63.9%)	36.1%	38.4%					44	1.2%		55.8%	61.6%

City: Irvine

Project #: 07-1093-005

Location: Bison Ave	just E/c) Health	Scien	ces R	d										
AM Period NB	SB	EB		WB			PM Period	NB		SB	EB		WB		
00:00		14		20			12:00				160		182		
00:15		15		16			12:15				156		119		
00:30		14		15			12:30				164		111		
00:45		14	57	13	64	121	12:45				152	632	140	552	1184
01:00		17		9			13:00				148		196		
01:15		4		14			13:15				118		126		
01:30		6		5			13:30				145		118		
01:45		8	35	5	33	68	13:45				148	559	143	583	1142
02:00		4		8			14:00				105		160		
02:15		4		5			14:15				81		122		
02:30		5		7			14:30				116		132		
02:45		4	17	6	26	43	14:45				94	396	138	552	948
03:00		7		3			15:00				128		183		
03:15		3		3			15:15				115		148		
03:30		5		2		20	15:30				120	460	120		1065
03:45		2	1/	3	11	28	15:45				105	468	146	597	1065
04:00		4		6			16:00				91		150		
04:15		5		3			16:15				114		168		
04:30		8	22	2	20	60	16:30				114	427	159	626	1000
04:45		15	32	1/	28	60	16:45				118	437	149	626	1063
05:00		10		32			17:00				141		148		
05:15		20		5			17:15				139		142		
05:30		20 78	134	9 17	63	107	17:30				206	645	121	560	1714
05.45		70	134	20	05	197	10.00				200	045	142	509	1217
06:00		62 70		20			18:00				164		143		
06:15		70		29 54			18:15				1/3		107		
06:45		75	280	56	159	439	18.30				100	651	89	441	1092
07:00		64	200	56	100	100	10.00				01	001	104		1052
07:00		07		50 62			19.00				115		115		
07:30		144		02 74			19.15				102		85		
07:45		177	482	107	299	781	19:45				53	361	64	368	729
08.00		86		85			20.00				80		67		
08.15		143		121			20.00				57		56		
08:30		192		138			20:30				59		54		
08:45		211	632	186	530	1162	20:45				60	256	73	250	506
09:00		167		156			21:00				59		86		
09:15		127		130			21:15				71		86		
09:30		175		133			21:30				55		53		
09:45		220	689	100	519	1208	21:45				32	217	56	281	498
10:00		87		117			22:00				61		55		
10:15		104		69			22:15				55		46		
10:30		94		60			22:30				40		31		
10:45		173	458	112	358	816	22:45				39	195	33	165	360
11:00		131		163			23:00				31		36		
11:15		126		106			23:15				31		17		
11:30		140		93			23:30				17		22		
11:45		156	553	138	500	1053	23:45				17	96	17	92	188
Total Vol.			3386		2590	5976						4913		5076	9989
									ND	_	D	Daily To	otals		Complete
									INR	S	Ø	EB		WB	combined
												8299		7666	15965
Cullt 0/			AM			07 404						PM		F0.001	CD C ²
			56.7%)	43.3%	37.4%						49.2%)	50.8%	62.6%
Peak Hour			08:15		08:30	08:15						17:45		16:00	17:15
volume P.H.F.			713 0.84		610 0.82	1314 0.83						711 0.86		626 0.93	1232 0.85

National Data & Surveying Services

N-S STREET:	Califorr	nia Ave.			DATE:	4/4/20	07		LOC	ATION:	City of I	irvine	
E-W STREET:	Univers	ity Dr.			DAY:	WEDN	ESDAY		PRO	JECT#	07-10	92-001	
	NC	ORTHBOU	JND	S	OUTHBOL	JND	E	ASTBOU	ND	W	ESTBOU	IND	
LANES:	NL 2	NT 0	NR 1	SL 0	ST 0	SR 0	EL 0	ET 2	ER 1	WL 1	WT 2	WR 0	TOTAL
6:00 AM 6:15 AM 6:30 AM 7:00 AM 7:15 AM 7:30 AM 7:45 AM 8:00 AM 8:15 AM 8:30 AM 8:45 AM 9:00 AM 9:15 AM 9:30 AM 9:30 AM 10:15 AM 10:00 AM 10:15 AM 10:30 AM 11:45 AM 11:30 AM	4 8 9 7 8 11 7		11 19 14 16 17 22 17 13					176 195 218 282 309 257 261 248	39 51 55 57 92 83 76 88	15 21 96 157 192 205 219 204	169 174 226 257 283 269 271 260		414 468 615 778 900 844 855 820
TOTAL VOLUMES =	NL 60	NT 0	NR 129	SL 0	ST 0	SR 0	EL 0	ET 1946	ER 541	WL 1109	WT 1909	WR 0	TOTAL 5694
AM Pe	ak Hr Be	gins at:	800	AM									
PEAK VOLUMES =	33	0	69	0	0	0	0	1075	339	820	1083	0	3419
PEAK HR. FACTOR:		0.850			0.000			0.882			0.971		0.950

CONTROL: Signalized

National Data & Surveying Services

N-S STREET:	Califorr	nia Ave.			DATE:	4/4/200)7		LOC	ATION:	City of I	ty of Irvine				
E-W STREET:	Univers	ity Dr.			DAY:	WEDNE	SDAY		PRO.	JECT#	07-10	92-001				
	NC	RTHBO	UND	SC	OUTHBOU	JND	E	ASTBOU	ND	W	ESTBOU	ND				
LANES:	NL 2	NT <mark>0</mark>	NR 1	SL 0	ST 0	SR 0	EL 0	ET 2	ER 1	WL 1	WT 2	WR 0	TOTAL			
1:00 PM 1:15 PM 1:30 PM 2:00 PM 2:15 PM 2:30 PM 2:45 PM 3:00 PM 3:15 PM 3:30 PM 3:45 PM 4:00 PM 4:15 PM 4:30 PM 4:45 PM 5:00 PM 5:15 PM 5:30 PM 5:45 PM 6:30 PM 6:15 PM	22 30 34 29 36 38 27 29		81 94 106 114 169 188 194 138					222 254 297 303 269 271 255 258	10 4 10 15 20 16 15 13	22 29 34 29 17 21 19 25	216 233 241 247 245 256 233 240		573 644 722 737 756 790 743 703			
TOTAL VOLUMES =	NL 245	NT 0	NR 1084	SL 0	ST 0	SR 0	EL 0	ET 2129	ER 103	WL 196	WT 1911	WR 0	TOTAL 5668			
PM Pe	ak Hr Be	gins at:	445	PM												
PEAK VOLUMES =	130	0	665	0	0	0	0	1098	66	86	981	0	3026			
PEAK HR. FACTOR:		0.879			0.000			0.915			0.963		0.958			

CONTROL: Signalized

National Data & Surveying Services

N-S STREET:	Mac Ar	thur Blvo	1		DATE:	4/4/20	07		LOC	ATION:	City of I	rvine	
E-W STREET:	Bison A	lve			DAY:	WEDNE	SDAY		PRO.	JECT#	07-10	92-002	
	N	ORTHBO	UND	SC	DUTHBO	UND	E	ASTBOU	IND	W	'ESTBOU	ND	
LANES:	NL 2	NT 4	NR 1	SL 2	ST 4	SR 1	EL 2	ET 2	ER 1	WL 2	WT 2	WR 1	TOTAL
6:00 AM 6:15 AM 6:30 AM 7:00 AM 7:15 AM 7:30 AM 7:45 AM 8:00 AM 8:15 AM 8:30 AM 8:45 AM 9:00 AM 9:15 AM 9:30 AM 9:45 AM 10:00 AM 10:15 AM 10:30 AM 10:45 AM 11:00 AM 11:15 AM	97 121 115 64 52 79 61 77	777 841 871 848 851 810 852 786	11 28 26 32 42 52 29 46	8 9 7 10 28 35 31 20	634 671 656 704 567 538 537 596	59 65 67 70 65 73 72 73	55 71 67 93 74 74 88 56	31 45 53 60 59 103 59 57	19 25 23 38 41 25 14 27	55 81 117 104 103 99 129 79	22 31 50 59 40 56 40 43	9 5 20 16 15 14 21 19	1777 1993 2072 2098 1937 1958 1933 1879
Total Volumes =	NL 666	NT 6636	NR 266	SL 148	ST 4903	SR 544	EL 578	ET 467	ER 212	WL 767	WT 341	WR 119	TOTAL 15647
AM Pe	ak Hr Be	egins at:	715	AM									
PEAK VOLUMES =	352	3411	128	54	2598	267	305	217	127	405	180	56	8100
PEAK HR. FACTOR:		0.961			0.931			0.849			0.857	_	0.965

CONTROL: Signalized;

National Data & Surveying Services

N-S STREET:	Mac Ar	thur Blvo	t		DATE:	4/4/20)7		LOC/	ATION:	City of I	[rvine	
E-W STREET:	Bison /	Ave			DAY:	WEDNE	SDAY		PRO.	JECT#	07-10	92-002	
	N	ORTHBO	UND	S	DUTHBO	UND	E	ASTBOL	IND	W	/ESTBOU	IND	
LANES:	NL 2	NT 4	NR 1	SL 2	ST 4	SR 1	EL 2	ET 2	ER 1	WL 2	WT 2	WR 1	TOTAL
1:00 PM 1:15 PM 1:30 PM 2:00 PM 2:15 PM 2:30 PM 2:45 PM 3:00 PM 3:15 PM 3:30 PM 3:45 PM 4:00 PM 4:15 PM 4:30 PM 4:45 PM 5:00 PM 5:15 PM 5:30 PM 5:45 PM 6:30 PM 6:45 PM	61 55 82 144 72 77 73 69	681 751 709 724 770 834 716 721	24 27 23 26 22 25 37 35	13 24 21 32 44 45 41 31	495 554 554 579 605 654 649 630	69 51 70 68 60 77 90 83	58 65 57 76 72 61 65 69	23 29 19 34 50 62 76 66	36 34 50 50 44 41 24 28	57 44 61 84 89 107 90 87	54 72 43 60 80 85 107 99	10 12 13 20 10 11 17 15	1581 1718 1702 1897 1918 2079 1985 1933
TOTAL VOLUMES =	NL 633	NT 5906	NR 219	SL 251	ST 4720	SR 568	EL 523	ET 359	ER 307	WL 619	WT 600	WR 108	TOTAL 14813
PM Pe	ak Hr Be	egins at:	500	PM									
PEAK VOLUMES =	291	3041	119	161	2538	310	267	254	137	373	371	53	7915
PEAK HR. FACTOR:		0.922			0.964			0.991			0.931		0.952

CONTROL: Signalized;

National Data & Surveying Services

N-S STREET:	SR-73 S	SB Ramp	S		DATE:	4/4/200)7		LOC	ATION:	City of I	rvine	
E-W STREET:	Bison A	ve			DAY:	WEDNE	SDAY		PRO.	JECT#	07-10	92-003	
	NC	ORTHBOU	JND	SC	UTHBO	UND	E	ASTBOU	ND	W	ESTBOU	ND	
LANES:	NL 0	NT 0	NR 0	SL 2	ST 0	SR 1	EL 0	ET 3	ER 0	WL 2	WT 2	WR 0	TOTAL
6:00 AM 6:15 AM 6:30 AM 6:45 AM 7:00 AM 7:15 AM 7:30 AM 7:45 AM 8:00 AM 8:15 AM 8:30 AM 8:45 AM 9:00 AM 9:15 AM 9:30 AM 9:45 AM 10:00 AM 10:15 AM				94 138 171 254 225 273 269 338		62 66 63 89 85 57 74 35		27 56 61 95 102 92 95 122	22 18 19 31 16 20 15 16	1 1 3 2 3 4 5 2	20 47 66 78 91 119 93 94		226 326 383 549 522 565 551 607
10:45 AM 11:00 AM 11:15 AM 11:30 AM 11:45 AM													
TOTAL VOLUMES =	NL 0	NT 0	NR 0	SL 1762	ST 0	SR 531	EL 0	ET 650	ER 157	WL 21	WT 608	WR 0	TOTAL 3729
AM Pe	ak Hr Be	gins at:	800	AM									
Peak Volumes =	0	0	0	1105	0	251	0	411	67	14	397	0	2245
PEAK HR. FACTOR:		0.000			0.909			0.866			0.835		0.925

CONTROL: Signalized

National Data & Surveying Services

N-S STREET:	SR-73	SB Ramp	S	DATE: 4/4/2007						LOCATION: City of Irvine				
E-W STREET:	Bison A	Ave			DAY:	WEDNE	SDAY		PROJECT#			07-1092-003		
	NORTHBOUND			SOUTHBOUND			EASTBOUND			WESTBOUND				
LANES:	NL 0	NT 0	NR 0	SL 2	ST 0	SR 1	EL 0	ET 3	ER 0	WL 2	WT 2	WR 0	TOTAL	
1:00 PM 1:15 PM 1:30 PM 1:45 PM 2:00 PM 2:15 PM 2:30 PM 2:45 PM 3:00 PM 3:15 PM 3:30 PM 3:45 PM 4:00 PM 4:15 PM 4:30 PM 4:45 PM 5:00 PM 5:15 PM 5:30 PM 5:45 PM 6:00 PM 6:15 PM 6:30 PM				48 56 74 67 79 84 94 116		27 23 13 44 24 28 55 63		50 45 44 60 53 47 57 92	22 36 26 24 37 74 72 37	21 33 37 48 86 91 68 71	94 110 103 117 138 127 167 142		262 303 297 360 417 451 513 521	
TOTAL VOLUMES =	NL 0	NT 0	NR 0	SL 618	ST 0	SR 277	EL 0	ET 448	ER 328	WL 455	WT 998	WR 0	TOTAL 3124	
PM Pe	ak Hr Be	egins at:	500	PM										
Peak Volumes =	0	0	0	373	0	170	0	249	220	316	574	0	1902	
PEAK HR. FACTOR:		0.000			0.758			0.909			0.947		0.913	
CONTROL:	Signali	zed												

National Data & Surveying Services

N-S STREET:	SR-73 I	NB Ram	OS		DATE:	4/4/20	07		LOC/				
E-W STREET:	Bison A	ve		DAY: WEDNESDAY					PRO.	JECT#	07-1092-004		
	NORTHBOUND			SOUTHBOUND			EASTBOUND			WESTBOUND			
LANES:	NL 1.5	NT 0	NR 1.5	SL 0	ST 0	SR 0	EL 1	ET 2	ER 0	WL 0	WT 2	WR 1	TOTAL
6:00 AM 6:15 AM 6:30 AM 7:00 AM 7:15 AM 7:30 AM 7:45 AM 8:00 AM 8:15 AM 8:30 AM 9:15 AM 9:00 AM 9:15 AM 9:30 AM 9:45 AM 10:00 AM 10:15 AM 10:30 AM 10:45 AM 11:30 AM 11:45 AM	25 33 41 48 44 71 59 52		38 44 47 80 75 70 71 84				9 11 16 17 17 18 14 14	109 182 216 332 312 348 356 444			19 24 27 33 30 53 45 40	36 54 45 51 44 54 63 56	236 348 392 561 522 614 608 690
Total Volumes =	NL 373	NT 0	NR 509	SL 0	ST 0	SR 0	EL 116	ET 2299	ER 0	WL 0	WT 271	WR 403	TOTAL 3971
AM Pe	ak Hr Be	egins at:	800	AM									
PEAK VOLUMES =	226	0	300	0	0	0	63	1460	0	0	168	217	2434
PEAK HR. FACTOR:		0.933			0.000			0.831			0.891		0.882

CONTROL: Signalized

National Data & Surveying Services

N-S STREET:	SR-73 I	NB Ramp	os	DATE: 4/4/2007					LOCATION: City of Irvine				
E-W STREET:	Bison A	ve			DAY: WEDNESDAY PROJECT#						07-10		
	NC	RTHBO	UND	SC	DUTHBO	UND	E	ASTBOU	ND	W	'ESTBOL		
LANES:	NL 1.5	NT 0	NR 1.5	SL 0	ST 0	SR 0	EL 1	ET 2	ER 0	WL 0	WT 2	WR 1	TOTAL
1:00 PM 1:15 PM 1:30 PM 1:45 PM 2:00 PM 2:15 PM 2:30 PM 2:45 PM 3:00 PM 3:15 PM 3:30 PM 3:45 PM 4:00 PM 4:15 PM 4:30 PM 4:45 PM 5:00 PM 5:15 PM 5:30 PM 5:45 PM 6:00 PM 6:15 PM 6:30 PM	12 29 29 30 22 28 35 25		3 6 8 5 6 8 6 7				9 8 11 9 16 10 11 14	108 105 119 131 113 109 138 155			106 112 110 131 205 194 200 180	193 185 188 217 212 225 204 204	431 445 465 523 574 574 594 585
TOTAL VOLUMES =	NL 210	NT 0	NR 49	SL 0	ST 0	SR 0	EL 88	ET 978	ER 0	WL 0	WT 1238	WR 1628	TOTAL 4191
PM Peak Hr Begins at: 500 PM													
PEAK Volumes =	110	0	27	0	0	0	51	515	0	0	779	845	2327
PEAK HR. FACTOR:		0.835			0.000			0.837			0.969		0.979

CONTROL: Signalized
National Data & Surveying Services

N-S STREET:	Califorr	nia Ave			DATE:	4/4/20	07		LOCA	ATION:	City of I	rvine	
E-W STREET:	Bison A	we.			DAY:	WEDNE	ESDAY		PRO.	JECT#	07-10	92-005	
	NC	ORTHBOU	JND	SC	OUTHBO	UND	E	ASTBOU	IND	W	'ESTBOU	ND	
LANES:	NL 1	NT 2	NR 0	SL 1	ST 2	SR 1	EL 1	ET 2	ER 1	WL 1	WT 2	WR 0	TOTAL
6:00 AM 6:15 AM 6:30 AM 7:00 AM 7:15 AM 7:30 AM 7:45 AM 8:00 AM 8:15 AM 8:30 AM 8:45 AM 9:00 AM 9:15 AM 9:30 AM 9:45 AM 10:00 AM 10:15 AM 10:30 AM 10:45 AM 11:00 AM 11:15 AM	2 2 3 5 5 4 7 2	2 1 2 3 5 2 3 1	0 0 1 0 2 2 0 3	7 5 9 13 6 19 15 17	33 21 15 18 21 19 17 19	7 8 11 9 12 11 17 15	85 98 120 144 178 200 195 213	56 91 121 186 147 174 197 203	27 41 53 60 62 51 68 57	0 1 2 4 2 3 2 4	55 42 61 94 61 74 77 88	6 8 9 12 11 15 18 17	280 318 407 548 512 574 616 639
TOTAL VOLUMES =	NL 30	NT 19	NR 8	SL 91	ST 163	SR 90	EL 1233	ET 1175	ER 419	WL 18	WT 552	WR 96	TOTAL 3894
AM Pe	ak Hr Be	gins at:	800	AM									
Peak Volumes =	18	11	7	57	76	55	786	721	238	11	300	61	2341
PEAK HR. FACTOR:		0.750			0.922			0.922			0.853		0.916

CONTROL: Signalized

National Data & Surveying Services

N-S STREET:	Califorr	nia Ave			DATE:	4/4/200)7		LOCA	ATION:	City of I	[rvine	
E-W STREET:	Bison A	ve.			DAY:	WEDNE	SDAY		PRO.	JECT#	07-10	92-005	
	NC	ORTHBOU	JND	SC	OUTHBO	UND	E	ASTBOU	ND	W	/ESTBOU	IND	
LANES:	NL 1	NT 2	NR 0	SL 1	ST 2	SR 1	EL 1	ET 2	ER 1	WL 1	WT 2	WR 0	TOTAL
1:00 PM 1:15 PM 1:30 PM 2:00 PM 2:15 PM 2:30 PM 2:45 PM 3:00 PM 3:15 PM 3:30 PM 3:45 PM 4:00 PM 4:15 PM 4:30 PM 4:45 PM 5:30 PM 5:15 PM 5:30 PM 5:45 PM 6:00 PM 6:15 PM 6:30 PM	37 52 60 78 81 73 72 57	19 21 15 25 26 22 16 24	1 2 2 6 3 2 1	7 5 7 9 10 9 7 6	0 3 1 4 3 1 2 1	87 92 101 136 161 153 171 151	21 25 14 21 24 25 33 21	109 101 104 92 104 102 122 81	2 1 4 9 8 7 1 2	1 1 0 2 3 2 1	131 162 151 157 203 184 172 149	7 5 12 9 7 10 12 8	422 470 471 544 635 592 612 502
TOTAL VOLUMES =	NL 510	NT 168	NR 19	SL 60	ST 15	SR 1052	EL 184	ET 815	ER 34	WL 12	WT 1309	WR 70	TOTAL 4248
PM Pe	ak Hr Be	gins at:	445	PM									
PEAK VOLUMES =	304	89	13	35	10	621	103	420	25	9	716	38	2383
PEAK HR. FACTOR:		0.898			0.925			0.878			0.900		0.938

CONTROL: Signalized

Prepared by: National Data & Surveying Services

N-S STREET:	Health	Sciences	Rd.		DATE:	4/4/20	07		LOC/	ATION:	City of 1	rvine	
E-W STREET:	Bison A	ve.			DAY:	WEDNE	ESDAY		PRO.	JECT#	07-10	92-006	
	NC	ORTHBO	UND	SC	OUTHBO	JND	E	ASTBOU	ND	W	ESTBOL	IND	
LANES:	NL 0	NT 1	NR 0	SL 0.5	ST 0.5	SR 1	EL 1	ET 2	ER 0	WL 1	WT 2	WR 0	TOTAL
6:00 AM 6:15 AM 6:30 AM 6:45 AM													
7:00 AM 7:15 AM 7:30 AM 7:45 AM	12 0 0 0	0 1 0 0	3 4 3 1	3 1 2 2	0 2 1 0	7 0 1 3	8 22 27 26	46 104 116 127	4 2 2 0	4 3 8 12	43 52 76 108	5 12 8 16	135 203 244 295
8:00 AM 8:15 AM 8:30 AM	1 1 1 7	1 0 0	11 4 6 7	3 1 3	1 1 0	4 5 4	34 34 29	140 144 179	0 1 2	13 14 22	67 89 93	18 16 17	293 310 356
8:45 AM 9:00 AM 9:15 AM 9:30 AM 9:45 AM 10:00 AM 10:15 AM 10:30 AM 10:45 AM 11:00 AM	7	0	7	5	1	5	36	182	1	17	94	33	388
11:15 AM 11:30 AM 11:45 AM													
TOTAL VOLUMES =	NL 22	NT 2	NR 39	SL 20	ST 6	SR 29	EL 216	ET 1038	ER 12	WL 93	WT 622	WR 125	TOTAL 2224
AM Pe	ak Hr Be	gins at:	800	AM									
PEAK Volumes =	10	1	28	12	3	18	133	645	4	66	343	84	1347
PEAK HR. FACTOR:		0.696			0.750			0.893			0.856		0.868

CONTROL: 2-Way Stop N & S

Prepared by: National Data & Surveying Services

N-S STREET:	Health	Sciences	s Rd.		DATE:	4/4/200)7		LOC	ATION:	City of I	[rvine	
E-W STREET:	Bison A	ve.			DAY:	WEDNE	SDAY		PRO.	JECT#	07-10	92-006	
	NC	ORTHBO	UND	SC	UTHBO	UND	E	ASTBOU	ND	W	ESTBOU	IND	
LANES:	NL 0	NT 1	NR 0	SL 0.5	ST 0.5	SR 1	EL 1	ET 2	ER 0	WL 1	WT 2	WR 0	TOTAL
1:00 PM 1:15 PM 1:30 PM 2:00 PM 2:15 PM 2:30 PM 2:45 PM 3:00 PM 3:15 PM 3:30 PM 3:45 PM 4:00 PM 4:15 PM 4:30 PM 4:45 PM 5:00 PM 5:15 PM 5:30 PM 5:45 PM 6:00 PM 6:15 PM 6:30 PM	0 0 1 0 0 1 1 0	1 0 0 1 0 0 1 0	5 1 12 6 16 12 16 19	13 10 10 11 33 20 23 23	1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0	20 27 30 26 55 35 25 27	6 5 7 3 4 2 7 7	84 85 112 115 101 120 123 120	0 0 0 0 1 0 0	5 1 4 1 4 0 5 1	114 125 128 151 168 156 132 155	7 6 7 10 7 6 5	256 260 311 325 389 353 339 357
TOTAL VOLUMES =	NL 3	NT 3	NR 87	SL 143	ST 3	SR 245	EL 41	ET 860	ER 1	WL 21	WT 1129	WR 54	TOTAL 2590
PM Pe	ak Hr Be	gins at:	500	PM									
Peak Volumes =	2	1	63	99	1	142	20	464	1	10	611	24	1438
PEAK HR. FACTOR:		0.868			0.680			0.933			0.901		0.924

CONTROL: 2-Way Stop N & S

National Data & Surveying Services

N-S STREET:	Peltaso	n Dr.			DATE:	4/4/20	07		LOC/	ATION:	City of I	rvine	
E-W STREET:	Bison A	ve./Phys	ical Sci	ences	DAY:	WEDNE	SDAY		PRO.	JECT#	07-10	92-007	
	NC	ORTHBOI	JND	SC	DUTHBO	UND	E	ASTBOU	ND	W	/ESTBOU	ND	
LANES:	NL 1	NT 1	NR 0	SL 1	ST 1	SR 0	EL 0.5	ET 0.5	ER 1	WL 0	WT 1	WR 1	TOTAL
6:00 AM 6:15 AM 6:30 AM 7:00 AM 7:15 AM 7:30 AM 7:45 AM 8:00 AM 8:15 AM 8:30 AM 9:00 AM 9:15 AM 9:30 AM 9:45 AM 10:00 AM 10:15 AM 10:30 AM 10:45 AM 11:00 AM 11:15 AM	51 57 65 79 80 92 101 94	5 5 17 16 15 33 16 16	2 1 5 2 1 1 4 11	14 23 25 55 22 28 33 75	8 12 7 12 8 16 15 22	9 15 9 12 26 18 27 30	20 16 10 24 29 40 26 18	22 28 34 51 26 30 70 86	59 65 77 87 71 80 71 91	3 1 4 2 5 9	9 2 10 12 4 14 10 16	9 6 10 8 10 9 6 8	211 233 270 362 294 363 384 476
TOTAL VOLUMES =	NL 619	NT 123	NR 27	SL 275	ST 100	SR 146	EL 183	ET 347	ER 601	WL 29	WT 77	WR 66	TOTAL 2593
AM Pe	ak Hr Be	egins at:	800	AM									
Peak Volumes =	367	80	17	158	61	101	113	212	313	18	44	33	1517
PEAK HR. FACTOR:		0.921			0.630			0.818			0.720		0.797

CONTROL: Signalized

Prepared by: National Data & Surveying Services

N-S STREET:	Peltaso	n Dr.			DATE:	4/4/200)7		LOCA	ATION:	City of	Irvine	
E-W STREET:	Bison A	ve./Phys	sical Sci	ences	DAY:	WEDNE	SDAY		PRO.	JECT#	07-10	92-007	
	NC	RTHBO	UND	SC	UTHBO	UND	E	ASTBOL	IND	W	ESTBOL	JND	
LANES:	NL 1	NT 1	NR 0	SL 1	ST 1	SR 0	EL 0.5	ET 0.5	ER 1	WL 0	WT 1	WR 1	TOTAL
1:00 PM 1:15 PM 1:30 PM 2:00 PM 2:15 PM 2:30 PM 2:45 PM 3:00 PM 3:15 PM 3:30 PM 3:45 PM 4:00 PM 4:15 PM 4:30 PM 4:45 PM 5:00 PM 5:15 PM 5:30 PM 5:45 PM 6:00 PM 6:15 PM 6:30 PM	83 90 72 82 90 86 80 87	26 20 24 34 37 25 24 41	3 6 3 4 3 3 6	14 16 25 29 12 25 26 33	16 16 19 25 18 28 34 30	20 31 56 29 56 29 30 41	20 21 32 29 40 42 38 50	6 7 11 16 16 19 17 20	59 57 78 72 92 93 118 114	15 18 11 14 19 15 20 20	22 27 34 43 38 41 30 33	45 23 36 62 36 26 30 38	329 332 401 439 457 432 450 513
TOTAL VOLUMES =	NL 670	NT 231	NR 31	SL 180	ST 186	SR 292	EL 272	ET 112	ER 683	WL 132	WT 268	WR 296	TOTAL 3353
PM Pe	ak Hr Be	gins at:	500	PM									
Peak Volumes =	343	127	15	96	110	156	170	72	417	74	142	130	1852
PEAK HR. FACTOR:		0.905			0.870			0.895			0.930		0.903

CONTROL: Signalized

APPENDIX B LOS COMPUTATION REPORTS EXISTING CONDITIONS MITIG8 - 2007 Existing CondMon Apr 30, 2007 10:50:35 Page 1-1

	U(CI Te	lemedic 20	ine / 07 Exi AN	Prime isting 4 Peal	e LC Fa g Condi & Hour	cilit: tions.	ies P:	roject			
ICU 2	l (Los:	s as (Level C Cycle L	f Servength	vice (%) Me	Computa ethod (tion H Base V	Report Volume	= Alter	native)	***	*****
Intersection	#1 Ca	alifo	rnia Av	enue a	at Uni	Lversit	y Driv	ле				
<pre>************************************</pre>	***** eC): e: *****	***** 10 81 *****	*******) 5 (Y+R 1 ******	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	****** (Sec) <i>P</i> I ******	****** Critica Average Level C ******	1 Vol Delay 0f Serv	***** /Cap y (sec vice: *****	******* (X): c/veh):	* * * * * * * * X * * * * * * *	**** 0.88 xxxx	******* }9 {x D ******
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	No: L -	Cai rth Bo - T	liforni ound - R	a Aver Sou L -	nue uth Bo - T	ound - R	Ea L -	U1 ast Bo - T	niversi bund - R	ty Driv Wes L -	re t Bo T	ound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	P1 P1 2 (rotect Inclu 0 0 0	 ted ude 0 1	 Pi 0 (rotect Inclu 0 0 0	 zed ide 0 0	 Pi 0 (rotect Inclu 0) 2	 zed ude 0 0 1	 Pro I 0 1 0	tect nclu 0 2	 :ed ide 0 0 0
Volume Module	 -											
Volume Module Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: MLF Adj: Final Vol.:	33 1.00 33 1.00 1.00 33 0 33 1.00 1.00 33 1.00 1.00 33	0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 0 1.00 1.00 0	69 1.00 69 1.00 69 0 69 1.00 1.00 69	0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 0	0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 0 1.00 1.00 0	0 1.00 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 0	0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 0 1.00 1.00 0	1075 1.00 1075 1.00 1.00 1075 1.00 1.00 1.00 1075	339 1.00 339 1.00 1.00 339 0 339 1.00 1.00 339	820 1 1.00 1 820 1 1.00 1 1.00 1 820 1 0 820 1 1.00 1 1.00 1 820 1 1.00 1 820 1	083 .00 083 .00 083 0 083 .00 .00 083	0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Saturation F Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.:	Low Mo 1700 1.00 2.00 3400	odule 1700 1.00 0.00 0	: 1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1 1.00 1 1.00 2 1700 3	700 .00 .00 400	1700 1.00 0.00 0
Capacity Anal Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	 lysis 0.01	Modul 0.00	 le: 0.04 ****	0.00	0.00	 0.00 ******	0.00	0.32	 0.20 ******	0.48 0	.32	0.00

MITIG8 - 2007 Existing CondMon Apr 30, 2007 10:52:54 Page 1-1

	U	CI Te	lemedic 20	ine / 07 Ex: PN	Prime istine 4 Peal	e LC Fa g Condi k Hour	cilit: tions	ies P:	roject		
			Level C	f Serv	vice (Computa	tion H	Repor	 t		
ICU 1	l (Los:	s as	Cycle I	ength	%) Me	ethod (Base V	/olume	e Alter	native)	
**********	*****	*****	******	*****	*****	******	*****	*****	******	* * * * * * * * * * *	******
Intersection **********	#1 Ca *****	a⊥ı±o. *****	rnıa Av ******	enue a	at Un: *****	1versıt ******	y Driv *****	7e *****	* * * * * * *	* * * * * * * * * * *	* * * * * * *
Cycle (sec):		10	0		(Critica	l Vol	/Cap	. (X):	0.8	15
Loss Time (se	ec):		5 (Y+R	= 4 s	sec) i	Average	Delay	/ (se	c/veh):	XXXXX	xx
Optimal Cycle	∋:		5]	Level O	f Serv	vice:			D
C+root Nome.	****	***** C-	*******	*****	* * * * * *	* * * * * * *	****	*****	*******	**********	******
Approach:	No	rth B	ound	a Avei Soi	ith Bo	bund	Ea	ast Bo	ound	West B	ound
Movement:	L ·	- T	- R	L -	- T	- R	L -	- T	- R	L - T	- R
Control:	P:	rotec	ted	Pi	rotect	ted	Pi	cotec	ted	Protec	ted
Rights:	0	Incl	ude	0	Inclu	ıde	0	Incl	ude	Incl	ude
Min. Green: Lanes:	2 1	0 0	0 1	0 0		0 0	0 0	1 2	0 1	1 0 2	0 0
Volume Module	: :										
Base Vol:	130	0	665	0	0	0	0	1098	66	86 981	0
Growth Adj:	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00 1.00	1.00
Initial Bse:	130	1 00	665	1 00	1 0 0	1 0 0	1 00	1098	66	86 981	1 00
USET Adj:	1.00	1.00	1 00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1 00	1.00	1.00 1.00	1.00
PHF Volume.	130	1.00	1.00 665	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1098	1.00	86 981	1.00
Reduct Vol:	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Reduced Vol:	130	0	665	0	0	0	0	1098	66	86 981	0
PCE Adj:	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00 1.00	1.00
MLF Adj:	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00 1.00	1.00
Final Vol.:	130	0	665	0	0	0	0	1098	66	86 981	0
Saturation F	 M(•								
Sat/Lane:	1700	1700	. 1700	1700	1700	1700	1700	1700	1700	1700 1700	1700
Adjustment:	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00 1.00	1.00
Lanes:	2.00	0.00	1.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	2.00	1.00	1.00 2.00	0.00
Final Sat.:	3400	0	1700	0	0	0	0	3400	1700	1700 3400	0
Vol/Sat.	LYSIS	Modu	Te:	0 00	0 00	0 00	0 00	0 30	0 04	0 05 0 20	0 00
Crit Moves.	0.04	0.00	∪.⊃9 ****	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	∪.JZ ****	0.04	0.0J 0.29 ****	0.00
*********	*****	*****	******	*****	*****	******	*****	*****	******	*****	******

MITIG8 - 2007 Existing CondMon Apr 30, 2007 10:50:51 Page 1-1

	U	CI Te	lemedic 20	ine / 07 Exi AN	Prime Istine 1 Peal	e LC Fa g Condi k Hour	cilit: tions	Les P:	roject		
ICU 1	(Los	s as (Level O Cycle L ******	f Serv ength *****	vice (%) Me	Computa ethod (******	tion H Base \ *****	Report Jolume	t e Alter: ******	native) ********	*****
Intersection	#2 Ma	acArt	hur Bou	levaro	d at I	Bison A	venue				
Cycle (sec): Loss Time (se Optimal Cycle	<pre></pre>	* * * * * * 10 4	******* 0 5 (Y+R 3 ******	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	(*****) () () () () () () () () () () () () ()	******* Critica Average Level O ******	***** l Vol Delay f Serv *****	/Cap / (seo /ice:	******* . (X): c/veh):	**************************************	******* 50 xx C ******
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	No: L -	Maci rth Bo - T	Arthur ound - R	Boulev Sou L -	vard ith Bo - T	ound - R	Ea L -	ast Bo - T	Bison . ound - R	Avenue West B L - T	ound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	P1 0 2 (rotec Igno: 0 0 4	 ted re 0 1	P1 0 2 (otect Ovl 0	 ted 0 1	P1	rotect Igno: 0) 2	 ted re 0 0 1	Protec Ovl 0 0 2 0 2	 ted 0 1
Volume Module Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: MLF Adj:	352 1.00 352 1.00 1.00 352 0 352 1.00 1.00	3411 1.00 3411 1.00 3411 0 3411 1.00 1.00	128 1.00 128 0.00 0.00 0 0 0.00 0.00	54 1.00 54 1.00 1.00 54 0 54 1.00 1.00	2598 1.00 2598 1.00 1.00 2598 0 2598 1.00 1.00	267 1.00 267 1.00 1.00 267 0 267 1.00 1.00	305 1.00 305 1.00 1.00 305 0 305 1.00 1.00	217 1.00 217 1.00 1.00 217 0 217 1.00 1.00	127 1.00 127 0.00 0.00 0 0 0.00 0.00	405 180 1.00 1.00 405 180 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 405 180 0 0 405 180 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00	56 1.00 56 1.00 56 0 56 1.00 1.00
Final Vol.:	352	3411	0	54	2598	267 	305	217	0	405 180	56
Saturation Fl Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.:	0w Mo 1700 1.00 2.00 3400	odule 1700 1.00 4.00 6800	: 1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 4.00 6800	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1700 1.00 1.00 2.00 2.00 3400 3400	1700 1.00 1.00 1700
Capacity Anal Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	ysis 0.10	Modu 0.50 ****	le: 0.00	0.02	0.38	0.16	0.09	0.06	0.00	0.12 0.05	0.03

MITIG8 - 2007 Existing CondMon Apr 30, 2007 10:53:05 Page 1-1

	U	CI Te	lemedic 20	ine / 07 Exi PN	Prim Istin 1 Pea	e LC Fa g Condi k Hour	cilit: tions	ies P:	roject		
ICU 1	(Los:	s as (Level C Cycle I ******	of Servength	vice (%) M(****	Computa ethod (******	tion H Base \ *****	Report Volume	t e Alter ******	native) ********	*****
Intersection	#2 Ma	acArt	hur Bou	levaro	l at i	Bison A	venue	+++++	+++++++	++++++++++	++++ +++
Cycle (sec): Loss Time (se Optimal Cycle	ec):	10 4 *****	0 5 (Y+R 1 ******	= 4 s	sec)	Critica Average Level O ******	l Vol Delay f Serv	./Cap y (seo vice: *****	. (X): c/veh):	0.7 xxxx	32 xx C ******
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	No: L ·	Maci rth Bo - T	Arthur ound - R	Boulet Sou L -	vard 1th B - T	ound - R	Ea L -	ast Bo - T	Bison ound - R	Avenue West B L - T	ound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	P: 0 2 (rotec Igno: 0 0 4	ted re 0 1	P1 0 2 (otec Ovl 0	ted 0 0 1	P1 0 2 (rotect Igno: 0) 2	ted re 0 1	Protec Ovl 0 0 2 0 2	ted 0 0 1
Volume Module	e:										
Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: MLF Adj: Final Vol.:	291 1.00 291 1.00 291 0 291 1.00 1.00 291	3041 1.00 3041 1.00 3041 0 3041 1.00 1.00 3041	119 1.00 119 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0.00	161 1.00 161 1.00 161 1.00 161 1.00 1.00	2538 1.00 2538 1.00 2538 0 2538 1.00 1.00 2538	310 1.00 310 1.00 1.00 310 1.00 1.00 310 	267 1.00 267 1.00 267 0 267 1.00 1.00 267	254 1.00 254 1.00 254 0 254 1.00 1.00 254	137 1.00 137 0.00 0.00 0 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	373 371 1.00 1.00 373 371 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 373 371 0 0 373 371 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 373 371 1.00 1.00	53 1.00 53 1.00 1.00 53 0 53 1.00 1.00 53
Saturation Fl Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.:	ow Mo 1700 1.00 2.00 3400	odule 1700 1.00 4.00 6800	: 1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 4.00 6800	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1700 1.00 1.00 2.00 2.00 3400 3400	1700 1.00 1.00 1700
Capacity Anal Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	ysis 0.09	Modu 0.45 ****	le: 0.00	0.05	0.37	0.18 ******	0.08 ****	0.07	0.00	0.11 0.11 ****	0.03

MITIG8 - 2007 Existing CondMon Apr 30, 2007 10:51:04 Page 1-1

	U(CI Te	lemedic 20	ine / 07 Exi AN	Prime Isting 1 Peal	e LC Fa g Condi k Hour	ciliti tions	Les Pi	roject			
ICU 1	L (Los:	s as (Level O Cycle L ******	f Servength	/ice (%) Me	Computa ethod (******	tion F	Repor Volume	 t e Alter ******	native	====== =) * * * * * *	*****
Intersection	#3 SI	r 73 i	Southbo	und Ra	amps a	at Bisc	n Aver	nue				
<pre>************************************</pre>	***** 2C): 2: *****	***** 10 2 *****	******) 5 (Y+R 3 ******	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	***** (sec) <i>I</i> ! *****	****** Critica Average Level C ******	***** 1 Vol. • Delay •f Serv	***** /Cap / (se /ice: *****	****** . (X): c/veh): ******	*****	***** 0.4 xxxx:	****** 92 xx A ******
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	No: L ·	SR 73 rth Bo - T	3 South ound - R	bound Sou L -	Ramps ith Bo - T	s ound – R	Ea L -	ast Bo - T	Bison ound - R	Avenue We L -	e est Bo - T	ound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	P: 0 0	rotec Incl 0 0 0	 ted ude 0 0	 P1 0 2 (rotect Ignor 0) 0	 ced re 0 1	 Pr 0 (0	rotec Incl 0) 2	 ted ude 0 1	P1 0 2 (rotec Incl 0) 2	ted ude 0 0 0
Volumo Modulo	·											
Volume Module Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: MLF Adj: Final Vol.:	0 1.00 0 1.00 1.00 0 1.00 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 0	0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	1105 1.00 1105 1.00 1105 0 1105 1.00 1.00	0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 0	251 1.00 251 0.00 0 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0	0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 0	411 1.00 411 1.00 1.00 411 0 411 1.00 1.00	67 1.00 67 1.00 67 0 67 1.00 1.00 67 	14 1.00 14 1.00 1.00 14 0 14 1.00 1.00 1	397 1.00 397 1.00 1.00 397 1.00 1.00 397	0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 0 0
Saturation Fl Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.:	Low Ma 1700 1.00 0.00 0	odule 1700 1.00 0.00 0	: 1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 0.00 0
Capacity Anal Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	Lysis 0.00	Modu: 0.00	le: 0.00	0.33	0.00	' 0.00 ******	0.00	0.12	0.04	0.00	0.12	0.00

MITIG8 - 2007 Existing CondMon Apr 30, 2007 10:53:17 Page 1-1

	U	CI Te	lemedic 20	ine / 07 Ex: PN	Prime isting M Peak	e LC Fa g Condi x Hour	ciliti tions	les P:	roject		
ICU 1	L (Los:	s as (*****	Level O Cycle L ******	f Serv ength *****	vice (%) Me	Computa ethod (tion H Base \ *****	Report Volume	t e Alter ******	native) *******	*****
Intersection	#3 SI	R 73 :	Southbo	und Ra	amps a	at Biso	n Aver	nue *****	* * * * * * * *	******	******
Cycle (sec): Loss Time (se Optimal Cycle	ec): e: *****	10 1 1	0 5 (Y+R 9 ******	= 4 s	(sec) <i>I</i> :*****	Critica Average Level O	l Vol. Delay f Serv	/Cap / (seo /ice:	. (X): c/veh):	0 XX ********	.382 xxxx A ********
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	No: L -	SR 73 rth Bo - T	3 South ound - R	bound Sou L -	Ramps uth Bo - T	ound - R	Ea L -	ast Bo - T	Bison ound - R	Avenue West L -	Bound T - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	P1 0 0 (rotect Inclu 0 0 0	ted ude 0 0 0	P1 0 2 (rotect Ignor 0 0 0	ed ce 0 0 1	P1 0 0 (rotect Inclu 0) 2	ted ude 0 1	Prot In 2 0	ected clude 0 0 2 0 0
Volume Module											
Volume Module Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: MLF Adj: Final Vol.:	0 1.00 0 1.00 1.00 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 0 1.00 1.00	0 1.00 1.00 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 0	373 1.00 373 1.00 1.00 373 0 373 1.00 1.00 373	0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 0 1.00 1.00 0	170 1.00 170 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 0	249 1.00 249 1.00 1.00 249 0 249 1.00 1.00 249	220 1.00 220 1.00 220 0 220 1.00 1.00 220	316 5 1.00 1. 316 5 1.00 1. 1.00 1. 316 5 1.00 1. 1.00 1. 316 5	$\begin{array}{cccccc} 74 & 0 \\ 00 & 1.00 \\ 74 & 0 \\ 00 & 1.00 \\ 74 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 \\ 74 & 0 \\ 00 & 1.00 \\ 00 & 1.00 \\ 74 & 0 \\ \end{array}$
Saturation Fl Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.:	Low Mo 1700 1.00 0.00 0	odule 1700 1.00 0.00 0	: 1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 17 1.00 1. 2.00 2. 3400 34	00 1700 00 1.00 00 0.00 00 0
Capacity Anal Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	Lysis 0.00	Modu 0.00	le: 0.00	0.11	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.07	0.13	0.09 0.	17 0.00

MITIG8 - 2007 Existing CondMon Apr 30, 2007 10:51:17 Page 1-1

	U	CI Te	lemedic 20	ine / 07 Exi AN	Prime Isting 1 Peal	e LC Fa g Condi & Hour	ciliti tions	ies P:	roject			
ICU 1	L (Loss	s as (Level C Cycle L ******	f Serv ength *****	vice (%) Me	Computa ethod (******	tion F Base \ *****	Report Jolume	 t e Alter ******	native	e) *****	****
Intersection	#4 SI	r 73 i	Northbo	und Ra	amps a	at Biso	n Aver	nue				
Cycle (sec): Loss Time (se Optimal Cycle	***** 2C): 2: *****	***** 10(2) *****	* * * * * * * * 5 (Y+R 8 * * * * * * * *	* * * * * * * = 4 s	(sec) <i>I</i>	******* Critica Average Level C ******	1 Vol. Delay f Serv	/Cap / (seo /ice:	******* . (X): c/veh):	*****	0.58 xxxxx	* * * * * * * * 83 xx A * * * * * * *
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	No: L -	SR 73 rth Bo - T	3 North ound - R	bound Sou L -	Ramps ith Bo - T	s ound – R	Ea L -	ast Bo - T	Bison ound - R	Avenue We L -	st Bo T	ound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	P1 0 1 (rotect Inclu 0 0 1!	 ted ude 0 1	 Pr 0 (rotect Inclu 0 0 0	 zed ide 0 0	 Pr 0 1 (rotect Inclu 0) 2	 ted ude 0 0	 Pr 0 0	otect Inclu 0 2	 ted ude 0 0 1
Volume Module												
Volume Module Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: MLF Adj: Final Vol.:	226 1.00 226 1.00 226 0 226 1.00 1.00 226	0 1.00 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0	300 1.00 300 1.00 1.00 300 1.00 1.00 300	0 1.00 1.00 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 0	0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 0 1.00 1.00 0	0 1.00 1.00 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 0	63 1.00 63 1.00 63 0 63 1.00 1.00 63	1460 1.00 1460 1.00 1460 0 1460 1.00 1.00 1.00 1460	0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 0 0	0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 0	168 1.00 168 1.00 1.00 1.00 168 1.00 1.00 1.68	217 1.00 217 1.00 1.00 217 0 217 1.00 1.00 217
Saturation Fl Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.:	Low Mo 1700 1.00 1.28 2191	odule 1700 1.00 0.01 0	: 1700 1.00 1.71 2909	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 1.00 1700
Capacity Anal Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	Lysis 0.10 ****	Modu 0.00	le: 0.10	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.04	0.43	0.00	0.00 ****	0.05	0.13

MITIG8 - 2007 Existing CondMon Apr 30, 2007 10:53:28 Page 1-1

	U	CI Te	lemedic 20	ine / 07 Exi PN	Prime Isting 1 Peal	e LC Fa g Condi c Hour	cilit: tions	ies P:	roject			
ICU 1	L (Los:	s as (Level C Cycle I	of Serviength	/ice (%) Me	Computa ethod (tion H Base V	Report Volume	 t e Alter ******	 native	:) :****	*****
Intersection	#4 SI	R 73 I	Northbo	und Ra	amps a	at Bisc	n Aver	nue				
<pre>************************************</pre>	ec): *****	***** 10(******* 0 5 (Y+R 0 ******	= 4 s	***** (Sec) <i>I</i>] *****	****** Critica Average Level C ******	***** 1 Vol Delay 0f Serv	***** ./Cap y (sec vice: *****	******* . (X): c/veh): ******	*****	0.60 xxxxx	* * * * * * *) 9 * x B * * * * * * *
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	No: L ·	SR 73 rth Bo - T	3 North ound - R	bound Sou L -	Ramps uth Bo - T	s ound - R	Ea L -	ast Bo - T	Bison ound - R	Avenue We L -	st Bo T	ound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	P: 0 1 (rotect Inclu 0 0 1!	 ted ude 0 1	P1	rotect Inclu 0 0	 zed ide 0 0	 Pi 0 1 (rotect Inclu 0 2 2	 ted ude 0 0 0	 Pr 0 0	otect Inclu 0 2	 ted ude 0 0 1
Volume Module												
Volume Module Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: MLF Adj: Final Vol.:	110 1.00 110 1.00 1.00 1.00 110 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00	0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 0	27 1.00 27 1.00 1.00 27 0 27 1.00 1.00 27	0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00	0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 0	0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	51 1.00 51 1.00 1.00 51 1.00 1.00 51	515 1.00 515 1.00 1.00 515 0 515 1.00 1.00	0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 0 0	0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 0	779 1.00 779 1.00 1.00 779 0 779 1.00 1.00 779	845 1.00 845 1.00 1.00 845 0 845 1.00 1.00 845
Saturation Fl Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.:	Low M 1700 1.00 2.00 3400	odule 1700 1.00 0.00 0	: 1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 1.00 1700
Capacity Anal Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	Lysis 0.03 ****	Modu: 0.00	le: 0.02	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.03	0.15	0.00	0.00	0.23	0.50

UCI Telemedicine / Prime LC Facilities Project 2007 Existing Conditions AM Peak Hour Level Of Service Computation Report ICU 1 (Loss as Cycle Length %) Method (Base Volume Alternative) ***** Intersection #6 Health Sciences Road at Bison Avenue Cycle (sec): 100 Critical Vol./Cap. (X): 0.310 Loss Time (sec):5 (Y+R = 4 sec) Average Delay (sec/veh):Optimal Cycle:18Level Of Service: XXXXXX А Street Name:Health Sciences RoadBison AvenueApproach:North BoundSouth BoundEast BoundMovement:L - T - RL - T - RL - T - R Control:PermittedPermittedPermittedPermittedRights:IncludeIncludeIncludeIncludeMin. Green:000000Lanes:0010110 Volume Module: Base Vol: 10 1 28 12 3 18 133 645 4 66 343 84 Initial Bse: 10 1 28 12 3 18 133 645 4 66 343 84 PHF Volume: 10 1 28 12 3 18 133 645 4 66 343 84
 Reduct Vol:
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 <th MLF Adj: Final Vol.: 10 1 28 12 3 18 133 645 4 66 343 84 -----||------||-------|| Saturation Flow Module: Sat/Lane:170017001700170017001700170017001700Adjustment:1.001.001.001.001.001.001.001.001.001.00Lanes:0.260.020.720.800.201.001.001.001.001.001.001.001.00Final Sat.:43644122113603401700170033792117002731669 Capacity Analysis Module: Vol/Sat: 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.08 0.19 0.19 0.04 0.13 0.13 Crit Moves: **** **** **** **** ****

MITIG8 - 2007 Existing CondMon Apr 30, 2007 10:53:57 Page 1-1 UCI Telemedicine / Prime LC Facilities Project 2007 Existing Conditions PM Peak Hour Level Of Service Computation Report ICU 1 (Loss as Cycle Length %) Method (Base Volume Alternative) ***** Intersection #6 Health Sciences Road at Bison Avenue Cycle (sec): 100 Critical Vol./Cap. (X): 0.346 Loss Time (sec):5 (Y+R = 4 sec) Average Delay (sec/veh):Optimal Cycle:18Level Of Service: XXXXXX А Street Name:Health Sciences RoadBison AvenueApproach:North BoundSouth BoundEast BoundMovement:L - T - RL - T - RL - T - R Control:PermittedPermittedPermittedPermittedRights:IncludeIncludeIncludeIncludeMin. Green:000000Lanes:0010110 Volume Module: Base Vol: 2 1 63 99 1 142 20 464 1 10 611 24 Initial Bse: 2 1 63 99 1 142 20 464 1 10 611 24 PHF Volume: 2 1 63 99 1 142 20 464 1 10 611 24
 Reduct Vol:
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 <th Final Vol.: 2 1 63 99 1 142 20 464 1 10 611 24 -----||------||-------|| Saturation Flow Module: Sat/Lane:170017001700170017001700170017001700Adjustment:1.001.001.001.001.001.001.001.001.001.00Lanes:0.030.020.950.990.011.001.001.001.001.001.001.001.00Final Sat.:52261623168317170017003393717003271129 Capacity Analysis Module: Vol/Sat: 0.00 0.04 0.04 0.06 0.06 0.08 0.01 0.14 0.14 0.01 0.19 0.19 Crit Moves: **** **** **** ****

MITIG8 - 2007 Existing CondMon Apr 30, 2007 10:51:58 Page 1-1

	UC	CI Te	lemedic 20	ine / 07 Ex: AN	Prime isting M Peak	e LC Fa g Condi c Hour	cilit: tions	ies P:	roject		
ICU 1	L (Loss	===== 3 as (Level C Cycle L	f Servength	vice (%) Me	Computa ethod (tion 1 Base 1	Report Volume	 t e Alter ******	native)	*****
Intersection	#7 Pe	eltas	on Driv	e at I	Bison	Avenue	/Phys:	ical :	Science	s Road	*****
Cycle (sec): Loss Time (se Optimal Cycle	ec): e: *****	10 2 *****) 5 (Y+R 6 ******	= 4 s	(sec) <i>I</i> I ******	Critica Average Level O	l Vol Delay f Serv	./Cap y (seo vice: *****	. (X): c/veh): ******	2.0 xxxx *********	553 xxx A *******
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	Noi L -	rth Bo - T	Peltaso ound - R	n Driv Sou L -	ve uth Bo - T	ound - R	Biso Ea L -	on Ave ast Bo - T	e/Physi ound - R	cal Scienc West B L - T	ces Rd Bound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	P1 0 1 (rotect Inclu 0 0 0	 ted ude 0 1 0	Pi 0 1 (rotect Inclu 0 1	 ced ide 0 0 1	Sp: 0	lit Pl Ovl 0	 hase 0 0 1	Split F Incl 0 (0 1 0	2hase ude 0 0 0 1
Volume Module Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: MLF Adj: Final Vol.:	367 1.00 367 1.00 1.00 367 0 367 1.00 1.00 367	80 1.00 80 1.00 1.00 80 1.00 1.00 80	17 1.00 17 1.00 1.00 17 0 17 1.00 1.00 1	158 1.00 158 1.00 1.00 158 1.00 1.00 1.00	61 1.00 61 1.00 61 0 61 1.00 1.00 61	101 1.00 101 1.00 101 0 101 1.00 1.00 1	113 1.00 113 1.00 1.00 113 1.00 1.13 1.00 1.00	212 1.00 212 1.00 212 0 212 1.00 1.00 212	313 1.00 313 1.00 1.00 313 0 313 1.00 1.00	$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	1 33 1 1.00 33 1.00 1 1.00 1 33 0 1.00 4 33 0 0 4 33 0 1.00 4 33 1 1.00 4 33 1 0.00 4 33
Saturation Fl Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.:	Low Mc 1700 1.00 1.00 1700	odule 1700 1.00 0.82 1402	1700 1.00 0.18 298	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 0.35 591	1700 1.00 0.65 1109	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1700 1.00 1.00 0.29 0.71 494 1200) 1700) 1.00 _ 1.00 5 1700
Capacity Anal Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	Lysis 0.22 ****	Modu 0.06	le: 0.06	0.09	0.04	0.06	0.19	0.19	0.18	0.04 0.04	0.02

MITIG8 - 2007 Existing CondMon Apr 30, 2007 10:54:27 Page 1-1

	U(CI Te	lemedic 20	ine / 07 Ex: PN	Prime isting 4 Peal	e LC Fa g Condi < Hour	cilit: tions	ies Pi	roject			
ICU 1	L (Los:	s as (Level O Cycle L	f Serv	vice (%) Me	Computa ethod (tion I Base \	Repor Volume	t Alter:	 native)	
Intersection	#7 Pe	eltas	on Driv	e at H	Bison	Avenue	/Phys:	ical :	Science	s Road	****	*****
Cycle (sec): Loss Time (se Optimal Cycle	ec): e: *****	10) ! 3(*****) 5 (Y+R) ******	= 4 s	(sec)	Critica Average Level O ******	l Vol Delag f Serv	./Cap y (se vice: *****	. (X): c/veh):	* * * * * *	0.61 xxxxx *****	L3 <x B ******</x
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	No: L ·	rth Bo - T	Peltaso ound - R	n Driv Sou L -	ve uth Bo - T	ound - R	Biso Ea L	on Ave ast Be - T	e/Physi ound - R	cal Sc We L -	ience st Bo T	es Rd ound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	P: 0 1 (rotect Inclu 0 0 0	 ted ude 1 0	 Pi 0 1 (rotect Inclu 0) 1	 zed ude 0 1	 Spi 0	lit Pl Ovl 0	 hase 0 0 1	Spl 0 0 1	it Pł Inclu 0	 nase ude 0 1
 Volume Module Base Vol·	 2: 343	127		96	110		170		 417	74	142	130
Growth Adj: Initial Bse:	1.00 343	1.00 127 1.00	1.00 15 1.00	1.00 96	1.00 110	1.00 156 1.00	1.00 170	1.00 72	1.00 417 1.00	1.00 74 1.00	1.00 142	1.00 130 1.00
PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol:	1.00 343	1.00 127	1.00 1.00 15	1.00	1.00	1.00 1.00 156	1.00 1.00 170	1.00 1.00 72	1.00 1.00 417	1.00 74	1.00	1.00 1.00 130
Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: MLF Adj: Final Vol.:	343 1.00 1.00 343	127 1.00 1.00 127	15 1.00 1.00 15	96 1.00 1.00 96	110 1.00 1.00 110	156 1.00 1.00 156	170 1.00 1.00 170	72 1.00 1.00 72	417 1.00 1.00 417	74 1.00 1.00 74	142 1.00 1.00 142	130 1.00 1.00 130
Saturation Fl	Low Mo		 :									
Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.:	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 0.89 1520	1700 1.00 0.11 180	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 0.70 1194	1700 1.00 0.30 506	1,00 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 0.34 582	1700 1.00 0.66 1118	1,00 1.00 1,00 1700
Capacity Anal Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	Lysis 0.20 ****	Modu 0.08	le: 0.08	0.06	0.06	0.09	0.14	0.14	0.25	0.13	0.13	0.08

APPENDIX C LOS COMPUTATION REPORTS 2009

APPENDIX C1 LOS COMPUTATION REPORTS 2009 WITHOUT THE PROJECT MITIG8 - 2009 without the PMon Apr 30, 2007 10:55:33 Page 1-1

U	CI Te	lemedic 20	ine / 09 wit AN	Prime thout 1 Peal	e LC Fa the Pr < Hour	ciliti oject	ies P:	roject			
1 (Los	 [Level O	f Serv	vice (Computa	tion H	Report	 t] t o r	nativo		
*****	*****	******	*****	*****	******	******	*****	******	*****	****	******
#1 Ca	alifo: *****	rnia Av ******	enue a *****	at Uni	iversit ******	y Driv	7e *****	* * * * * * *	* * * * * *	****	* * * * * * *
ec): e: *****	10 11 *****	0 5 (Y+R 8 ******	= 4 s	(sec) <i>P</i> I	Critica Average Level C ******	l Vol. e Delay f Serv	/Cap / (sec /ice:	. (X): c/veh):	* * * * * *	0.9 xxxx:	40 xx E ******
No: L ·	Cai rth Bo - T	liforni ound - R	a Aver Sou L -	nue ith Bo - T	ound - R	Ea L -	Un ast Bo - T	niversi ound - R	ty Dri We L -	ve st B T	ound - R
P:	rotect	 ted	 Pi		 .ed	 Pi		 ted	 Pr	otec	 ted
	Incl	ude		Inclu	ıde		Inclu	ıde		Incl	ude
0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
2 (0 0	0 1	0 () ()	0 0	0 () 2	0 1	1 0	2	0 0
 >•											
33	0	69	0	0	0	0	1075	339	820	1083	0
1.06	1.06	1.06	1.06	1.06	1.06	1.06	1.06	1.06	1.06	1.06	1.06
35	0	73	0	0	0	0	1140	360	870	1149	0
1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
35	0	73	0	0	0	0	1140	360	870	1149	0
0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
35	0	73	0	0	0	0	1140	360	870	1149	0
1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
35	0	73	0	0	0	0	1140	360	870	1149	0
LOW MO	odule	1700	1700	1700	1700	1700	1700	1700	1700	1700	1700
1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00
1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	2.00	1.00
2.00 3400	0.00	1700	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	2.00 3400	1700	1700	2.00 3400	0.00
lysis	Modu	le:									
0.01	0.00	0.04	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.34	0.21	0.51	0.34	0.00
	U(1 (Loss ***** #1 Ca ***** ec): e: ***** No: L 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 1.00 1.00 35 1.00 1.00 35 1.00 1.00 0 35 1.00 1.00 0 35 1.00 1.00 0 35 1.00 1.00 0 35 1.00 1.00 1.00 35 1.00 1.00 1.00 35 1.00 1.00 1.00 35 1.00 1.00 1.00 35 1.00 1.00 1.00 35 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 35 1.00 1.0	UCI Te 1 (Loss as a ************************************	UCI Telemedic 20 Level O 1 (Loss as Cycle L ************************************	UCI Telemedicine / 2009 wit AN Level Of Serv 1 (Loss as Cycle Length ************************************	UCI Telemedicine / Prime 2009 without AM Peal Level Of Service (1 (Loss as Cycle Length %) Me ************************************	UCI Telemedicine / Prime LC Fa 2009 without the Pr AM Peak Hour Level Of Service Computa 1 (Loss as Cycle Length %) Method (************************************	UCI Telemedicine / Prime LC Faciliti 2009 without the Project AM Peak Hour Level Of Service Computation H 1 (Loss as Cycle Length %) Method (Base V ************************************	UCI Telemedicine / Prime LC Facilities P: 2009 without the Project AM Peak Hour Level Of Service Computation Report 1 (Loss as Cycle Length %) Method (Base Volume ************************************	UCI Telemedicine / Prime LC Facilities Project 2009 without the Project AM Peak Hour Level Of Service Computation Report 1(Loss as Cycle Length %) Method (Base Volume Alter ************************************	UCI Telemedicine / Prime LC Facilities Project 2009 without the Project AM Peak Hour Level Of Service Computation Report 1(Loss as Cycle Length %) Method (Base Volume Alternative ************************************	UCI Telemedicine / Prime LC Facilities Project 2009 without the Project AM Peak Hour Level Of Service Computation Report 1(Loss as Cycle Length %) Method (Base Volume Alternative) ************************************

MITIG8 - 2009 without the PMon Apr 30, 2007 10:57:26 Page 1-1

	U(CI Te	lemedic 20	ine / 09 wit PN	Prime thout 4 Peal	e LC Fa the Pr K Hour	cilit: oject	ies P	roject		
ICU 2	l (Los:	s as (Level O Cycle L	f Servength	vice (%) Me	Computa ethod (tion I Base V	Repor /olume	 t e Alter ******	native)	****
Intersection	#1 C	alifo	rnia Av	enue a	at Uni	Lversit	y Driv	<i>i</i> e			
**********	*****	*****	* * * * * * *	* * * * * *	*****	******	*****	*****	******	* * * * * * * * *	******
Cycle (sec): Loss Time (se Optimal Cycle ********	ec): e: *****	10) 6! *****) 5 (Y+R 9 ******	= 4 s	(sec) <i>I</i> ! *****	Critica Average Level C ******	Dela f Serv	./Cap y (se vice: *****	. (X): c/veh): ******	0.3 XXXX ********	361 xxx D *******
Street Name:		Ca	liforni	a Aver	nue			U	niversi	ty Drive	
Approach:	No	rth Bo	ound	Sou	ith Bo	ound	Εa	ast B	ound	West 1	Bound
Movement:	L·	- T	- R	L -	- Т	- R	L ·	- T	- R	L – T	- R
Control: Rights: Min. Green:	P:	rotect Inclu	ted ude 0	P1	rotect Inclu	 ced 1de 0	P:	rotec Incl	ted ude 0	Protection Inc.	cted Lude
Lanes:	2	0 0	0 1	0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0	2	0 1	1 0 2	0 0
Volume Module	∋:										
Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse:	130 1.06 138	0 1.06 0	665 1.06 705	0 1.06 0	0 1.06 0	0 1.06 0	0 1.06 0	1098 1.06 1165	66 1.06 70	86 98 1.06 1.0 91 104	1 0 5 1.06 1 0
User Adj: PHF Adj:	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00 1.00	1.00 1.0) 1.00) 1.00
Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol:	138 0 138	0	705 705	0	0	0	0	0 1165	0 70	0 91 104	D 0 1 0
PCE Adj: MLF Adj: Final Vol.:	1.00 1.00 138	1.00 1.00 0	1.00 1.00 705	1.00 1.00 0	1.00 1.00 0	1.00 1.00 0	1.00 1.00 0	1.00 1.00 1165	1.00 1.00 70	1.00 1.0 1.00 1.0 91 104	0 1.00 0 1.00 1 0
Saturation Fl Sat/Lane:	low M 1700	odule 1700	: 1700	1700	1700	1700	1700	1700	1700	1700 170	0 1700
Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat :	1.00 2.00 3400	1.00 0.00	1.00 1.00 1700	1.00 0.00	1.00 0.00	1.00 0.00	1.00 0.00	1.00 2.00 3400	1.00 1.00 1700	$1.00 \ 1.00$ $1.00 \ 2.00$ $1700 \ 3400$	0 1.00 0 0.00
Capacity Anal Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	lysis 0.04	Modu: 0.00	le: 0.41 ****	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.34	0.04	0.05 0.3	1 0.00

MITIG8 - 2009 without the PMon Apr 30, 2007 10:55:55 Page 1-1

	U	CI Te	lemedic 20	ine / 09 wit AN	Prime thout 4 Pea	e LC Fa the Pr k Hour	cilit: oject	ies P:	roject		
ICU 2 ************	l (Los: ***** #2 Ma	s as (***** acArt]	Level C Cycle L ****** hur Bou	of Serv ength *****	7ice (%) M(***** d at 1	Computa ethod (****** Bison A	tion H Base V *****	Report Volume	t e Alter: ******	native) *********	*****
<pre>************************************</pre>	***** 2C): 2: *****	***** 10 5 ****	******* 0 5 (Y+R 1 ******	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	***** (Sec) 2	****** Critica Average Level O ******	***** l Vol Delay f Serv	***** ./Cap y (seo vice: *****	******* . (X): c/veh):	**************************************	****** 93 xx C ******
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	No: L -	Maci rth Bo - T	Arthur ound - R	Boulev Sou L -	vard ith Bo - T	ound - R	Ea L -	ast Bo - T	Bison . ound - R	Avenue West B L - T	ound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	P1 0 2 (rotec Igno: 0 0 4	ted re 0 1	P1 0 2 (otec Ovl 0	ted 0 1	P: P: 0 2 (rotect Igno: 0 2 2	ted re 0 1	Protec Ovl 0 0 2 0 2	ted 0 0 1
Volume Module Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: MLF Adj: Final Vol.:	352 1.06 373 1.00 1.00 373 0 373 1.00 1.00 373 1.00 1.00	3411 1.06 3619 1.00 3619 0 3619 1.00 1.00 3619	128 1.06 136 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0.00	54 1.06 57 1.00 1.00 57 0 57 1.00 1.00 57	2598 1.06 2756 1.00 2756 0 2756 1.00 1.00 2756	267 1.06 283 1.00 283 0 283 1.00 1.00 283	305 1.06 324 1.00 1.00 324 0 324 1.00 1.00 324	217 1.06 230 1.00 230 0 230 1.00 1.00 230	127 1.06 135 0.00 0.00 0 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	405 180 1.06 1.06 430 191 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 430 191 0 0 430 191 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 430 191	56 1.06 59 1.00 1.00 59 0 59 1.00 1.00 59
Saturation F Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.:	low Mo 1700 1.00 2.00 3400	odule 1700 1.00 4.00 6800	: 1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 4.00 6800	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1700 1.00 1.00 2.00 2.00 3400 3400	1700 1.00 1.00 1700
Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	Uysis 0.11	Modu 0.53 ****	1e: 0.00	0.02	0.41	0.17	0.10	0.07	0.00	0.13 0.06	0.03

MITIG8 - 2009 without the PMon Apr 30, 2007 10:57:36 Page 1-1

	U	CI Tel	lemedic 20	ine / 09 wit PN	Prime thout M Peal	e LC Fa the Pr k Hour	cilit: oject	ies P:	roject		
ICU 2	1 (Los:	s as (Level C Cycle I ******	of Servength	vice (%) Me	Computa ethod (******	tion 1 Base V	Report /olume	 t e Alter ******	native)	****
Intersection	#2 Ma	acArt1 *****	nur Bou ******	levar	d at H *****	Bison A ******	venue *****	*****	* * * * * * *	****	*****
Cycle (sec): Loss Time (se Optimal Cycle	ec): e: *****	100	D 5 (Y+R 6 ******	= 4 s	(sec) <i>I</i>] *****	Critica Average Level C ******	l Vol Delag f Serv	./Cap y (sec vice: *****	. (X): c/veh): ******	0.7 xxxx	70 xxx C ******
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	No: L ·	Maci rth Bo - T	Arthur ound - R	Bouler Sou L -	vard uth Bo - T	ound - R	Ea L -	ast Bo - T	Bison ound - R	Avenue West B L - T	ound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	P: 2 (rotect Igno: 0 0 4	 ted re 0 1	P1 0 2 (rotect Ovl 0 0 4	 ted 0 0 1	P: 0 2 (rotect Igno: 0) 2	 ted re 0 1	Protec Ovl 0 0 2 0 2	ted 0 0 1
Volume Module	 e:										
Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: MLF Adj: Final Vol.:	291 1.06 309 1.00 1.00 309 0 309 1.00 1.00 309	3041 1.06 3226 1.00 3226 0 3226 1.00 1.00 3226	119 1.06 126 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0	161 1.06 171 1.00 1.00 171 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.11	2538 1.06 2693 1.00 2693 0 2693 1.00 1.00 2693	310 1.06 329 1.00 1.00 329 0 329 1.00 1.00 329 	267 1.06 283 1.00 283 0 283 1.00 1.00 283	254 1.06 269 1.00 1.00 269 0 269 1.00 1.00 269	137 1.06 145 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	373 371 1.06 1.06 396 394 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 396 394 0 0 396 394 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 396 394	53 1.06 56 1.00 56 0 56 1.00 1.00 56
Saturation F: Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.:	low Mo 1700 1.00 2.00 3400	odule 1700 1.00 4.00 6800	: 1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 4.00 6800	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1700 1.00 1.00 2.00 2.00 3400 3400	1700 1.00 1.00 1700
Capacity Ana Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	 lysis 0.09	Modu 0.47 ****	 le: 0.00	0.05	0.40	 0.19	0.08	0.08	0.00	0.12 0.12	0.03

MITIG8 - 2009 without the PMon Apr 30, 2007 10:56:06 Page 1-1

	U(CI Te	lemedic 20	ine / 09 wit	Prime thout M Peał	e LC Fa the Pr Hour	cilit: oject	ies P	roject			
ICU 1	L (Los:	s as (Level C Cycle L ******	f Servength	vice (%) Me	Computa ethod (tion H Base N	Repor /olume	t e Alter ******	native	2) *****	*****
Intersection	#3 SI	r 73	Southbo	und Ra	amps a	at Biso	n Aver	nue				
Cycle (sec): Loss Time (se Optimal Cycle	<pre> EC): EC): E: E:</pre>	***** 10 2 *****	* * * * * * * * 0 5 (Y+R 5 * * * * * * * *	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	***** Gec) <i>P</i> I *****	Critica Average Level O	1 Vol Delay f Serv	/Cap / (se //ce: //ce:	******* . (X): c/veh): ******	* * * * * * *	0.5 XXXX	******* 27 xx A ******
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	No: L ·	SR 73 rth Bo - T	3 South ound - R	bound Sou L	Ramps uth Bo - T	s ound - R	Ea L -	ast Bo - T	Bison ound - R	Avenue We L -	e est Bo - T	ound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	P: 0	rotec [.] Incl 0 0 0	ted ude 0 0 0	P: 2 (rotect Ignor 0 0 0	2ed ce 0 0 1	P1 0 0 (rotec [.] Incl 0) 2	ted ude 0 1	P1 0 2 (notec Incl 0) 2	ted ude 0 0
Volume Module	· ?:											
Base Vol: Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: MLF Adj: Final Vol.:	0 1.06 0 1.00 1.00 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 1.06 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00	0 1.06 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 0	1105 1.06 1172 1.00 1.00 1172 0 1172 1.00 1.00 1.00	0 1.06 0 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 0	251 1.06 266 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 1.06 0 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 0	411 1.06 436 1.00 436 0 436 1.00 1.00 436	67 1.06 71 1.00 1.00 71 0 71 1.00 1.00 71	14 1.06 15 1.00 1.00 15 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.5	397 1.06 421 1.00 1.00 421 1.00 1.00 421	0 1.06 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 0
Saturation Fl Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.:	Low M 1700 1.00 0.00 0	odule 1700 1.00 0.00 0	: 1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 0.00 0
Capacity Anal Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	Lysis 0.00	Modu 0.00	 le: 0.00	0.34	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.13	0.04	0.00	0.12	0.00

MITIG8 - 2009 without the PMon Apr 30, 2007 10:57:45 Page 1-1

	U	CI Te	lemedic 20	ine / 09 wit PN	Prime thout M Peał	e LC Fa the Pr Hour	ciliti oject	ies P:	roject		
ICU 1	L (Los:	s as (Level C Cycle L ******	of Servength	vice (%) Me	Computa ethod (tion H Base \ *****	Report Volume	 t e Alter ******	native)	****
Intersection	#3 SI	r 73 s	Southbo	und Ra	amps a	at Biso	n Aver	nue			
**************************************	***** 2C): 2: *****	***** 10(2(*****	* * * * * * * *) 5 (Y+R) * * * * * * * *	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	***** (sec) <i>I</i> *****	x***** Critica Average Gevel C	****** l Vol. Delay f Serv *****	<pre>/Cap / (sed /ice: /*****</pre>	******* . (X): c/veh): ******	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	******** 02 xx A ******
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	No: L -	SR 73 rth Bo - T	3 South ound - R	bound Sou L -	Ramps uth Bo - T	ound - R	Ea L -	ast Bo - T	Bison ound - R	Avenue West E L - T	ound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	P1 0 0 (rotect Inclu 0 0 0	 ted ude 0 0	P1 2 (rotect Ignor 0 0 0	2ed 2e 0 0 1	P1 0 0 (rotect Inclu 0) 2	 ted ude 0 1	Protec Incl 0 C 2 0 2	ted ude 0 0
Volume Module):										
Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: Final Vol.:	0 1.06 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 0 0	0 1.06 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00	0 1.06 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 0	373 1.06 396 1.00 1.00 396 0 396 1.00 1.00 396	0 1.06 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 0	170 1.06 180 0.00 0 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	0 1.06 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 0	249 1.06 264 1.00 264 0 264 1.00 1.00 264	220 1.06 233 1.00 233 0 233 1.00 1.00 233	316 574 1.06 1.06 335 609 1.00 1.00 335 609 0 0 335 609 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 335 609	0 1.00 1.00 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00
Saturation Fl	Low Mo	odule	 :								
Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.:	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1700 1.00 1.00 2.00 2.00 3400 3400	1700 1.00 0.00 0
Capacity Anal Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	Lysis 0.00	Modul 0.00	 le: 0.00	0.12	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.08	0.14 ****	0.10 0.18	0.00

MITIG8 - 2009 without the PMon Apr 30, 2007 10:56:16 Page 1-1

	U(CI Tel	lemedic 20	ine / 09 wit AN	Prime thout 4 Peal	e LC Fa the Pr < Hour	cilit: oject	ies P:	roject			
ICU 2	l (Los:	s as (*****	Level C Cycle I ******	of Serv ength	/ice (%) Me	 Computa ethod (******	tion 1 Base V	Report Volume	 t e Alter: ******	 native	====== ==============================	*****
Intersection	#4 SI	R 73 1	Northbo	und Ra	amps a	at Biso	n Avei	nue				
Cycle (sec): Loss Time (se Optimal Cycle	***** 2C): 2: *****	***** 10(! 3(* * * * * * * *) 5 (Y+R) * * * * * * * *	= 4 s	(Sec) 3 *****	Critica Average Level C	****** 1 Vol Delay f Serv	./Cap y (seo vice:	<pre>******* (X): c/veh): *******</pre>	* * * * * * *	0.61 XXXXX	******* 15 xx B ******
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	No: L	SR 73 rth Bo - T	3 North ound - R	lbound Sou L -	Ramps uth Bo - T	s ound – R	Ea L -	ast Bo - T	Bison . ound - R	Avenue We L -	è est Bo - T	ound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	P: P: 0 1	rotect Inclu 0 0 1!	 ude 0 1	 P1 0 (rotect Inclu 0) 0	 zed ide 0 0 0	 P: 0 1 (rotect Inclu 0) 2	 ted ude 0 0 0	 Pr 0 0	rotect Inclu 0) 2	 ted ude 0 0 1
Volume Module	 >•											
Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: MLF Adj: Final Vol.:	226 1.06 240 1.00 240 240 1.00 240 1.00 240	0 1.06 0 1.00 0 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00	300 1.06 318 1.00 1.00 318 1.00 1.00 318	0 1.06 0 1.00 0 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00	0 1.06 0 1.00 1.00 0 1.00 1.00 0	0 1.06 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 0	63 1.06 67 1.00 1.00 67 1.00 1.00 67	1460 1.06 1549 1.00 1.00 1549 0 1549 1.00 1.00 1549	0 1.06 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 1.06 0 1.00 0 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 0	168 1.06 178 1.00 1.00 178 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.78	217 1.06 230 1.00 230 0 230 1.00 1.00 230
Saturation FI Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.:	low M 1700 1.00 1.28 2191	odule 1700 1.00 0.01 0	1700 1.00 1.71 2909	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 1.00 1700
Capacity Anal Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	lysis 0.11 ****	Modul 0.00	 le: 0.11 ******	0.00	0.00	 0.00 ******	0.04	0.46	0.00	0.00	0.05	 0.14 ******

MITIG8 - 2009 without the PMon Apr 30, 2007 10:57:53 Page 1-1

	U(CI Tel	Lemedic 20	ine / 09 wit PN	Prime chout 1 Peak	e LC Fa the Pr Hour	cilit: oject	ies P:	roject			
ICU 2	Los:	I ====================================	Level O Cycle L	of Servength	/ice (%) Me	Computa ethod (tion H Base V	Report Volume	 t e Alter ******		e)	*****
Intersection	#4 SI	R 73 1	Northbo	und Ra	amps a	at Bisc	n Aver	nue				
<pre>************************************</pre>	***** ec): e: *****	***** 10(32 *****	******* 5 (Y+R 2 ******	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	sec) <i>I</i>	Critica Average Level C	1 Vol Delay f Serv	./Cap y (sec vice: *****	******* . (X): c/veh): ******	* * * * * *	0.6 XXXXX	* * * * * * * 43 *x B ** * * * * *
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	No: L -	SR 73 rth Bo - T	3 North bund - R	bound Sou L -	Ramps ith Bo - T	ound - R	Ea L -	ast Bo - T	Bison ound - R	Avenue We L -	est Bo - T	ound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	P1 P1 0 1 (rotect Inclu 0) 1!	 zed ide 0 1	P1	otect Inclu 0 0	 ide 0 0	 Pi 0 1 (rotect Inclu 0 2 2	 ted ude 0 0	 Pr 0 (otec Incl 0 2	 ted ude 0 1
Volume Module	 -											
Volume Module Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: MLF Adj: Final Vol.:	<pre> >: 110 1.06 117 1.00 1.00 1.00 117 1.00 1.00 117 1.00 1.17 1.00 117 </pre>	0 1.06 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 0	27 1.06 29 1.00 1.00 29 0 29 1.00 1.00 29	0 1.06 0 1.00 0 0 0 1.00 1.00 0	0 1.06 0 1.00 1.00 0 1.00 1.00 0	0 1.06 0 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	51 1.06 54 1.00 1.00 54 0 54 1.00 1.00 54	515 1.06 546 1.00 1.00 546 1.00 1.00 546	0 1.06 0 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 0 0	0 1.06 0 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 0	779 1.06 826 1.00 1.00 826 1.00 1.00 826	845 1.06 896 1.00 1.00 896 0 896 1.00 1.00 896
Saturation F: Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.:	low Mo 1700 1.00 2.00 3400	odule: 1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 1.00 1700
Capacity Anal Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	lysis 0.03 ****	Modul 0.00	Le: 0.02	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.03	0.16	0.00	0.00	0.24	 0.53 ****

MITIG8 - 2009 without the PMon Apr 30, 2007 10:56:25 Page 1-1 _____ UCI Telemedicine / Prime LC Facilities Project 2009 without the Project AM Peak Hour Level Of Service Computation Report ICU 1 (Loss as Cycle Length %) Method (Base Volume Alternative) Intersection #5 California Avenue at Bison Avenue Cycle (sec): 100 Critical Vol./Cap. (X): 0.692 Loss Time (sec):5 (Y+R = 4 sec) Average Delay (sec/veh):Optimal Cycle:36Level Of Service: XXXXXX B Street Name:California AvenueBison AvenueApproach:North BoundSouth BoundEast BoundWest BoundMovement:L - T - RL - T - RL - T - RL - T - R Control:ProtectedProtectedProtectedProtectedRights:IncludeIncludeIncludeIncludeMin. Green:000000Lanes:1020110 Volume Module: Base Vol: 18 11 7 57 76 55 786 721 238 11 300 61 Initial Bse: 19 12 7 60 81 58 834 765 252 12 318 65 PHF Volume:191276081588347652521231865Reduct Vol:00000000000Reduced Vol:191276081588347652521231865 MLF Adj: Final Vol.: 19 12 7 60 81 58 834 765 252 12 318 65 -----||------||-------|| Saturation Flow Module: Final Sat.: 1700 3400 1700 1700 3400 1700 1700 3400 1700 1700 2825 575 Capacity Analysis Module: Vol/Sat: 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.04 0.02 0.03 0.49 0.22 0.15 0.01 0.11 0.11 Crit Moves: **** **** **** ****

MITIG8 - 2009 without the PMon Apr 30, 2007 10:56:35 Page 1-1

	U	CI Te	lemedic 20	ine / 09 wit AN	Prime thout 4 Peal	e LC Fa the Pr < Hour	cilit: oject	ies P:	roject			
ICU 2	l (Los:	s as (Level C Cycle L ******	of Serv ength *****	/ice (%) Me	Computa ethod (******	tion 1 Base '	Repor Volume	t e Alter ******	native *****	;) ; * * * * *	*****
Intersection	#6 He *****	ealth *****	Scienc ******	es Roa *****	ad at *****	Bison ******	Avenue *****	∋ * * * * * *	******	* * * * * *	****	******
Cycle (sec): Loss Time (se Optimal Cycle	ec): e: *****	10 1 *****	0 5 (Y+R 8 ******	= 4 s	(Sec) 1 1 *****	Critica Average Level O ******	l Vol Delag f Ser	./Cap y (se vice: *****	. (X): c/veh):	* * * * * *	0.32 xxxx	26 xx A *****
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	No: L -	Hea rth Bo - T	lth Sci ound - R	ences Sou L -	Road ith Bo - T	ound - R	Ea L ·	ast Bo - T	Bison ound - R	Avenue We L -	e est Bo • T	ound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	0 (Permi Incl 0 0 1!	 tted ude 0 0	0	Permit Inclu 0 L 0	 ted ude 0 1	0	Permi Incl 0 0 1	 tted ude 0 1 0	F 1 C	Permit Inclu 0 1	tted ude 1 0
Volume Module	 -											
Volume Module Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: MLF Adj: Final Vol.:	<pre>>: 10 1.06 11 1.00 1.00 11 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.1 </pre>	1 1.06 1 1.00 1.00 1 1.00 1.00 1.00	28 1.06 30 1.00 1.00 30 1.00 1.00 30	12 1.06 13 1.00 1.00 13 1.00 1.00 1.00 13	3 1.06 3 1.00 1.00 3 1.00 1.00 3	18 1.06 19 1.00 1.00 19 1.00 1.00 1.00 19	133 1.06 141 1.00 1.00 141 1.00 1.00 1.00 141	645 1.06 684 1.00 1.00 684 0 684 1.00 1.00 684	4 1.06 4 1.00 1.00 4 0 4 1.00 1.00 4	66 1.06 70 1.00 1.00 70 1.00 1.00 70	343 1.06 364 1.00 1.00 364 0 364 1.00 1.00 364	84 1.06 89 1.00 1.00 89 0 89 1.00 1.00 89
Saturation FI Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.:	Low Mo 1700 1.00 0.26 436	odule 1700 1.00 0.02 44	: 1700 1.00 0.72 1221	1700 1.00 0.80 1360	1700 1.00 0.20 340	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 1.99 3379	1700 1.00 0.01 21	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 1.61 2731	1700 1.00 0.39 669
Capacity Anal Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	lysis 0.01	Modu 0.02 ****	 le: 0.02	0.01	0.01	0.01	0.08	0.20	 0.20	0.04	0.13	0.13

MITIG8 - 2009 without the PMon Apr 30, 2007 10:58:11 Page 1-1

	U	CI Te	lemedic 20	ine / 09 wit PN	Prime chout 4 Peal	e LC Fa the Pr K Hour	cilit: oject	ies P	roject			
ICU 1	L (Los:	s as (*****	Level O Cycle L ******	f Serv ength *****	/ice (%) Me	Computa ethod (******	tion I Base V	Repor Volum	t e Alter: ******	native	:) :****	*****
Intersection	#6 He	ealth	Scienc	es Roa	ad at	Bison	Avenue	Э				
<pre>************************************</pre>	***** ec): e: *****	***** 100 11 *****	******* D 5 (Y+R 9 ******	* * * * * * * * = 4 s	***** (Sec) 2 : *****	****** Critica Average Level C ******	Vol Dela Serv *****	***** ./Cap y (se vice: ****	******* . (X): c/veh): ******	* * * * * *	0.30 xxxxx	* * * * * * * 64 xx A * * * * * * *
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	No: L -	Heal rth Bo - T	lth Sci ound - R	ences Sou L -	Road uth Bo - T	ound - R	Ea L ·	ast B - T	Bison . ound - R	Avenue We L -	e est Bo · T	ound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	0	Permit Inclu 0 0 1!	 tted ude 0 0	 I 0 1	Permit Inclu 0 L 0	 ted ide 0 1	0	Permi Incl 0 0 1	 tted ude 0 1 0	 E 0 1 C	Permit Inclu 0 1	 tted ude 0 1 0
Volume Module	 :											
Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse:	2 1.06 2	1 1.06 1	63 1.06 67	99 1.06 105	1 1.06 1	142 1.06 151	20 1.06 21	464 1.06 492	1 1.06 1	10 1.06 11	611 1.06 648	24 1.06 25
PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol:	1.00 1.00 2 0	1.00 1.00 1 0	1.00 1.00 67 0	1.00 1.00 105 0	1.00 1.00 1 0	1.00 1.00 151 0	1.00 1.00 21 0	1.00 1.00 492 0	1.00 1.00 1 0	1.00 1.00 11 0	1.00 1.00 648 0	1.00 1.00 25 0
Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: MLF Adj: Final Vol.:	2 1.00 1.00 2	1 1.00 1.00	67 1.00 1.00 67	105 1.00 1.00 105	1 1.00 1.00	151 1.00 1.00 151	21 1.00 1.00 21	492 1.00 1.00 492	1 1.00 1.00 1	11 1.00 1.00 11	648 1.00 1.00 648	25 1.00 1.00 25
Saturation Fl Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.:	Low Mo 1700 1.00 0.03 52	odule 1700 1.00 0.02 26	: 1700 1.00 0.95 1623	1700 1.00 0.99 1683	1700 1.00 0.01 17	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 1.99 3393	1700 1.00 0.01 7	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 1.92 3271	1700 1.00 0.08 129
Capacity Anal Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	lysis 0.00	Modu 0.04 ****	le: 0.04	0.06	0.06	0.09	0.01	0.15	0.15	0.01	0.20	0.20

MITIG8 - 2009 without the PMon Apr 30, 2007 10:56:46 Page 1-1

	U	CI Te	lemedic 20	ine / 09 wit AN	Prime thout 4 Peal	e LC Fa the Pr K Hour	cilit: oject	ies P:	roject			
ICU 2	L (Los:	s as (*****	Level O Cycle L ******	f Servength	vice (%) Me	Computa ethod (tion Base \ *****	Report Volume	t Alter ******	native	======= =) * * * * * * *	*****
Intersection	#7 Pe	eltas	on Driv	e at I	Bison	Avenue	/Phys:	ical S	Science	s Road	ł	
Cycle (sec): Loss Time (se Optimal Cycle	<pre>****** > C): </pre>	***** 10(2) *****	* * * * * * * * 5 (Y+R 3 * * * * * * * *	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	****** (Sec) <i>I</i> : *****	Critica Average Level O	1 Vol Delay f Serv	./Cap y (seo vice: *****	******* . (X): c/veh):	* * * * * * *	0.58 xxxxx	******* 34 <x A ******</x
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	No: L ·	rth Bo - T	Peltaso bund - R	n Driv Sou L -	ve uth Bo - T	ound - R	Biso Ea L	on Ave ast Bo - T	e/Physi ound - R	cal So We L ·	cience est Bo - T	es Rd ound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	P: 0 1 (rotect Inclu 0 0 0	 ted ude 1 0	 Pi 0 1 (rotect Inclu 0) 1	 zed ide 0 1	 Spi 0	lit Pl Ovl 0	 nase 0 0 1	 Spi 0	Lit Pl Inclu 0 L 0	 nase ude 0 1
Volume Module):											
Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: MLF Adj: Final Vol.: Saturation FI	367 1.06 389 1.00 1.00 389 0 389 1.00 1.00 389	80 1.06 85 1.00 1.00 85 1.00 1.00 85 	17 1.06 18 1.00 1.00 18 1.00 1.00 18 	158 1.06 168 1.00 1.00 168 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.68	61 1.06 65 1.00 1.00 65 1.00 1.00 65	101 1.06 107 1.00 107 1.00 107 1.00 107	113 1.06 120 1.00 120 0 120 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00	212 1.06 225 1.00 225 0 225 1.00 1.00 225	313 1.06 332 1.00 1.00 332 0 332 1.00 1.00 332 	18 1.06 19 1.00 1.00 19 0 19 1.00 1.00 1.00 19	44 1.06 47 1.00 1.00 47 0 47 1.00 1.00 47	33 1.06 35 1.00 1.00 35 1.00 1.00 35
Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.:	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 0.82 1402	1700 1.00 0.18 298	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 0.35 591	1700 1.00 0.65 1109	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 0.29 494	1700 1.00 0.71 1206	1700 1.00 1.00 1700
Capacity Anal Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	Lysis 0.23 ****	Modu 0.06	le: 0.06	0.10	0.04	0.06	0.20	0.20	0.20	0.04	0.04	0.02
MITIG8 - 2009 without the PMon Apr 30, 2007 10:58:24 Page 1-1

	U(CI Te	lemedic 20	ine / 09 wit PN	Prime thout M Peal	e LC Fa the Pr k Hour	cilit: oject	ies Pi	roject			
ICU 2	l (Los:	s as (****	Level C Cycle I ******	f Servength	vice (%) Me	Computa ethod (******	tion I Base V	Repor Volume	t Alter ******	native) * * * * * *	*****
Intersection	#7 P	eltas	on Driv	e at I	Bison	Avenue	/Phys	ical :	Science	s Road	بال بال بال	ىلە بىلە بىلە بىلە بىلە بىلە
Cycle (sec): Loss Time (se Optimal Cycle	ec):	10 32 *****) 5 (Y+R 2 * * * * * * *	= 4 s	(sec) <i>I</i> :	Critica Average Level C ******	l Vol Delay f Serv	./Cap y (se vice: *****	. (X): c/veh): ******	****	0.64 xxxxx	47 xx B ******
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	No: L	rth Bo - T	Peltasc ound - R	n Driv Sou L -	ve uth Bo - T	ound - R	Biso Ea L	on Ave ast Be - T	e/Physi ound - R	.cal Sc: We: L -	ience st Bo T	es Rd ound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	P: 0 1	rotect Inclu 0 0 0	ted ude 1 0	Pi 0 1 (rotect Inclu 0 0 1	ted ude 0 1	Sp: 0	lit Pl Ovl 0	hase 0 0 1	Spl: 0 0 1	it Ph Inclu 0 0	nase ude 0 1
Volume Module	 2:											
Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: MLF Adj: Final Vol.:	343 1.06 364 1.00 1.00 364 1.00 1.00 364	127 1.06 135 1.00 1.00 135 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.35	15 1.06 16 1.00 1.00 16 1.00 1.00 16	96 1.06 102 1.00 1.00 102 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00	110 1.06 117 1.00 1.00 117 0 117 1.00 1.00 1.00	156 1.06 166 1.00 166 1.00 166 1.00 166	170 1.06 180 1.00 1.00 180 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00	72 1.06 76 1.00 1.00 76 1.00 1.00 76	417 1.06 442 1.00 1.00 442 0 442 1.00 1.00 442	74 1.06 79 1.00 79 0 79 0 79 1.00 79 1.00 79 1.00 79 1.00 79 1.00 79 1.00 79 0 79 1.00 79 0 79 0 79 1.00 79 1.00 79 0 79 1.00 79 0 79 1.00 79 79 1.00 79 79 1.00 79 79 1.00 79 79 1.00 79 79 1.00 79 79 79 1.00 79 79 79 79 79 79 79 79 79 79	142 1.06 151 1.00 151 0 151 1.00 1.00 151	130 1.06 138 1.00 1.00 138 1.00 1.00 138
Saturation F Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.:	low M 1700 1.00 1.00 1700	odule 1700 1.00 0.89 1520	: 1700 1.00 0.11 180	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 0.70 1194	1700 1.00 0.30 506	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1 1.00 1 0.34 0 582 1	1700 1.00 0.66 1118	1700 1.00 1.00 1700
Capacity Anal Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	lysis 0.21 ****	Modu 0.09	le: 0.09	0.06	0.07	0.10 ****	0.15	0.15	 0.26 ******	0.13 ().13 ****	0.08

APPENDIX C2 LOS COMPUTATION REPORTS 2009 WITH THE PROJECT MITIG8 - 2009 with the ProjMon Apr 30, 2007 10:58:49 Page 1-1

	UC	I Te	lemedic	ine / 2009 w AM	Prime vith t I Peal	e LC Fa the Pro K Hour	ciliti oject	ies Pi	roject		
ICU 1(Level Of Service Computation Report ICU 1(Loss as Cycle Length %) Method (Future Volume Alternative)										
Intersection	#1 Ca	lifo:	rnia Av ******	enue a *****	t Un:	iversit ******	y Driv	7e *****	* * * * * * *	* * * * * * * * * *	* * * * * * *
Cycle (sec):100Critical Vol./Cap. (X):0.946Loss Time (sec):5 (Y+R = 4 sec) Average Delay (sec/veh):xxxxxxOptimal Cycle:125Level Of Service:E									46 xx E *****		
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	Nor L -	Ca th Bo T	liforni ound - R	a Aven Sou L -	ue ith Bo - T	ound - R	Ea L -	Ur ast Bo - T	niversi bund - R	ty Drive West Ba L - T	ound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	Pr 0 2 0	otect Inclu 0	ted ude 0 1	Pr 0 0	rotect Inclu 0 0	2ed 1de 0 0 0	P1 0 0	rotect Inclu 0) 2	2ed 1de 0 0 1	Protect Inclu 0 0 1 0 2	ted ude 0 0 0
Volume Module Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: Added Vol: PasserByVol: Initial Fut: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: Final Vol.:	: 33 1.06 35 1 0 36 1.00 1.00 36 1.00 1.00 36 1.00 1.00 36 1.00 1.00 36 1.00 1.00 36 1.00 1	0 1.06 0 0 1.00 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	69 1.06 73 2 0 75 1.00 1.00 75 1.00 1.00 75 1.00 1.00 75	0 1.06 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 1.06 0 0 1.00 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 1.06 0 0 0 1.00 1.00 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 1.06 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	1075 1.06 1140 0 1140 1.00 1140 1.00 1140 1.00 1.0	339 1.06 360 363 1.00 1.00 363 0 363 1.00 1.00 363 	820 1083 1.06 1.06 870 1149 8 0 0 0 878 1149 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 878 1149 0 0 878 1149 0 0 878 1149 1.00 1.00 878 1149 1.00 1.00 878 1149 1.00 1.00 878 1149	0 1.06 0 0 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Saturation Fl Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.:	ow Mc 1700 1.00 2.00 3400	dule 1700 1.00 0.00 0	: 1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1700 1.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 1700 3400	1700 1.00 0.00 0
Capacity Anal Vol/Sat: Crit Moves: *********	ysis 0.01	Modul 0.00	Le: 0.04 ****	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.34	0.21	0.52 0.34	0.00

MITIG8 - 2009 with the ProjMon Apr 30, 2007 11:00:38 Page 1-1

	UC	CI Te	lemedic	ine / 2009 w PM	Prime vith t I Peał	e LC Fa the Pro K Hour	ciliti	ies Pi	roject		
ICU 1(Loss	as C	Level O ycle Le ******	f Serv ngth % *****	ice () Met	Computa chod (F	tion H uture	Report Volur	t ne Alte ******	rnative)	* * * * * * *
Intersection ********	#1 Ca	lifo:	rnia Av ******	enue a *****	t Uni	Lversit	y Driv	7e *****	* * * * * * *	* * * * * * * * * * *	* * * * * * *
Cycle (sec): 100 Critical Vol./Cap. (X): 0.867 Loss Time (sec): 5 (Y+R = 4 sec) Average Delay (sec/veh): xxxxxx Optimal Cycle: 71 Level Of Service: D										67 xx D ******	
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	Nor L -	Ca th B T	liforni ound - R	a Aven Sou L -	ue th Bo T	ound - R	Ea L -	Ur ast Bo - T	niversi ound - R	ty Drive West Bo L - T	ound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	Pr 0 2 0	otec Incl 0 0	 ted ude 0 0 1	 Pr 0 0	otect Inclu 0	 ced ide 0 0 0	 Pi 0 (0	rotect Inclu 0) 2	 ted ude 0 0 1	Protect Inclu 0 0 1 0 2	 ted ude 0 0 0
Volume Module Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: Added Vol: PasserByVol: Initial Fut: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: MLF Adj: Final Vol.: 	 : 130 1.06 138 2 0 140 1.00 1.00 140 1.00	0 1.06 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	665 1.06 705 7 0 712 1.00 1.00 712 0 712 1.00 1.00 712 1.00 1.00 712	0 1.06 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 1.06 0 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 1.06 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 1.06 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 0 1.00 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00	1098 1.06 1165 0 1165 1.00 1.00 1165 1.00 1.00 1.65	66 1.06 70 1 0 71 1.00 1.00 71 1.00 1.00 71 1.00 1.00 71	86 981 1.06 1.06 91 1041 3 0 0 0 94 1041 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 94 1041 0 0 94 1041 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 94 1041 1.00 1.00 94 1041	0 1.06 0 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Saturation Fl Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.:	.ow Mc 1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1700 1.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 1700 3400	1700 1.00 0.00 0
Capacity Anal Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	ysis 0.04	Modu 0.00	le: 0.42 ****	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.34	0.04 *****	0.06 0.31	0.00

MITIG8 - 2009 with the ProjMon Apr 30, 2007 10:59:11 Page 1-1

UCI Telemedicine / Prime LC Facilities Project 2009 with the Project AM Peak Hour
Level Of Service Computation Report ICU 1(Loss as Cycle Length %) Method (Future Volume Alternative) ************************************
Cycle (sec): 100 Critical Vol./Cap. (X): 0.795 Loss Time (sec): 5 (Y+R = 4 sec) Average Delay (sec/veh): xxxxxx Optimal Cycle: 51 Level Of Service: C
Street Name:MacArthur BoulevardBison AvenueApproach:North BoundSouth BoundEast BoundWest BoundMovement:L - T - RL - T - RL - T - RL - T - R
Control: Protected Protected Protected Protected Rights: Ignore Ovl Ignore Ovl Min. Green: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Lanes: 2 0 4 0 1 2 0 1 2 0 1
Volume Module: Base Vol: 352 3411 128 54 2598 267 305 217 127 405 180 56 Growth Adj: 1.06 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Saturation Flow Module: Sat/Lane: 1700 1700 1700 1700 1700 1700 1700 1700 1700 1700 Adjustment: 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 Lanes: 2.00 4.00 1.00 2.00 4.00 1.00 2.00 2.00 1.00 2.00 1.00 Final Sat.: 3400 6800 1700 3400 6800 1700 3400 3400 1700
Capacity Analysis Module: Vol/Sat: 0.11 0.53 0.00 0.02 0.41 0.17 0.10 0.07 0.00 0.13 0.06 0.04 Crit Moves: **** **** ****

MITIG8 - 2009 with the ProjMon Apr 30, 2007 11:00:48 Page 1-1

	U	CI Te	lemedic	cine / 2009 v PN	Prim vith 4 Pea	e LC Fa the Pro k Hour	cilit: ject	ies P:	roject		
ICU 1((Loss	as C ****	Level (ycle Le ******	of Servength	vice (%) Me	Computa thod (F ******	tion H uture *****	Report Volur	t ne Alte ******	rnative)	*****
Intersection	#2 Ma	acArti	hur Bou ******	levaro	1 at 1	Bison A *******	venue	*****	* * * * * * * *	*****	******
Cycle (sec): 100 Critical Vol./Cap. (X): 0.772 Loss Time (sec): 5 (Y+R = 4 sec) Average Delay (sec/veh): xxxxxx Optimal Cycle: 47 Level Of Service: C									72 .xx C ******		
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	No: L -	Mac. th B - T	Arthur ound - R	Boulev Sou L -	vard uth B - T	ound - R	Ea L -	ast Bo - T	Bison ound - R	Avenue West B L - T	ound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	P1 2 (rotec Igno 0) 4	 ted re 0 1	 P1 0 2 (otec Ovl 0) 4	 ted 0 1	 Pi 2 (rotect Igno: 0) 2	 ted re 0 1	Protec Ovl 0 0 2 0 2	 ted 0 1
Volume Module Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: Added Vol: PasserByVol: Initial Fut: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: Final Vol.: 	291 1.06 309 0 309 1.00 1.00 309 0 309 1.00 1.00 309 1.00 309 1.00 309 1.00 309 1.00 309 0 309 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	3041 1.06 3226 0 0 3226 1.00 3226 1.00 3226 1.00 1.00 3226	119 1.06 126 2 0 128 0.00 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	161 1.06 171 1 0 172 1.00 1.00 172 0 172 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.72	2538 1.06 2693 0 2693 1.00 2693 0 2693 1.00 2693 1.00 1.00 2693	310 1.06 329 0 329 1.00 1.00 329 0 329 1.00 1.00 329 	267 1.06 283 0 283 1.00 1.00 283 0 283 1.00 1.00 283 1.00	254 1.06 269 1 0 270 1.00 270 0 270 0 270 1.00 1.00 270	137 1.06 145 0.00 145 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	373 371 1.06 1.06 396 394 5 2 0 0 401 396 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 401 396 0 0 401 396 1.00 1.00 401 396 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 401 396	53 1.06 56 2 0 58 1.00 1.00 58 1.00 1.00 58 1.00 1.00 58
Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.: Capacity Anal	1700 1.00 2.00 3400 	1700 1.00 4.00 6800 Modu	1700 1.00 1.00 1700 le:	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 4.00 6800	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1700 1.00 1.00 2.00 2.00 3400 3400	1700 1.00 1.00 1700
Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	0.09	0.47 ****	0.00	0.05	0.40	0.19	0.08	0.08 ****	0.00	0.12 0.12	0.03

MITIG8 - 2009 with the ProjMon Apr 30, 2007 10:59:20 Page 1-1

	U	CI Te	lemedic	ine / 2009 v AN	Prime vith t 4 Peal	e LC Fa the Pro K Hour	cilit: ject	ies P:	roject		
ICU 1	(Loss	as C:	Level O ycle Le ******	f Serv ngth % *****	/ice (%) Met	Computa thod (F	tion H uture *****	Report Volur	t me Alte ******	ernative)	*****
Intersection ********	#3 SI	R 73	Southbo ******	und Ra *****	amps a	at Biso ******	n Aver	nue * * * * * * *	* * * * * * *	*****	******
Cycle (sec): 100 Critical Vol./Cap. (X): 0.535 Loss Time (sec): 5 (Y+R = 4 sec) Average Delay (sec/veh): xxxxxx Optimal Cycle: 25 Level Of Service: A										35 xx A ******	
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	No: L -	SR 73 rth Bo - T	3 South ound - R	bound Sou L -	Ramps ith Bo - T	s ound - R	Ea L -	ast Bo - T	Bison ound - R	Avenue West B L - T	ound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	P1 0 0 (rotec Incl 0 0 0	 ted ude 0 0	 Pr 2 (rotect Ignor 0) 0	 ced re 0 1	 P1 0 (rotect Inclu 0 2 2	 ted ude 0 1	Protect Incl 0 0 2 0 2	 ted ude 0 0 0
Volume Module Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: Added Vol: PasserByVol: Initial Fut: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: Final Vol.: Saturation FI	0 1.06 0 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 0 0 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 1.06 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 1.06 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00	1105 1.06 1172 13 0 1185 1.00 1.85 1.00 1.185 1.00 1.85	0 1.06 0 0 1.00 1.00 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 0	251 1.06 266 0.00 266 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0	0 1.06 0 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 0 1.00 1.00 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	411 1.06 436 11 0 447 1.00 447 1.00 447 1.00 1.00 447	67 1.06 71 0 0 71 1.00 1.00 71 1.00 1.00 1.00 71 1.00	14 397 1.06 1.06 15 421 1 2 0 0 16 423 1.00 1.00 16 423 0 0 16 423 1.00 1.00 16 423 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00	0 1.06 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.: Capacity Anal	1700 1.00 0.00 0 	1700 1.00 0.00 0 Modu	: 1700 1.00 0.00 0 le:	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1700 1.00 1.00 2.00 2.00 3400 3400	1700 1.00 0.00 0
Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.35	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.13 ****	0.04	0.00 0.12	0.00

MITIG8 - 2009 with the ProjMon Apr 30, 2007 11:01:00 Page 1-1

UCI Telemedicine / Prime LC Facilities Project 2009 with the Project PM Peak Hour	
Level Of Service Computation Report ICU 1(Loss as Cycle Length %) Method (Future Volume Alte: ************************************	rnative) ********
Intersection #3 SR 73 Southbound Ramps at Bison Avenue	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *
Cycle (sec): 100 Critical Vol./Cap. (X): Loss Time (sec): 5 (Y+R = 4 sec) Average Delay (sec/veh): Optimal Cycle: 20 Level Of Service:	0.405 xxxxxx A ********
Street Name:SR 73 Southbound RampsBison 2Approach:North BoundSouth BoundEast BoundMovement:L - T - RL - T - RL - T - R	Avenue West Bound L - T - R
Control: Protected Protected Protected Rights: Include Ignore Include Min. Green: 0 0 0 0 0 0 Lanes: 0 0 0 2 0 0 1 0 2 0	Protected Include 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 0
Volume Module: Base Vol: 0 0 373 0 170 0 249 220 Growth Adj: 1.06 0 <td< td=""><td>$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$</td></td<>	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
Saturation Flow Module: Sat/Lane: 1700 1700 1700 1700 1700 1700 Adjustment: 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 Lanes: 0.00 0.00 2.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 Final Sat.: 0 0 3400 0 1700 0 3400 1700	1700 1700 1700 1.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 2.00 0.00 3400 3400 0
Capacity Analysis Module: Vol/Sat: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.12 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.08 0.14 Crit Moves: **** ****	0.10 0.18 0.00

MITIG8 - 2009 with the ProjMon Apr 30, 2007 10:59:29 Page 1-1

	U	CI Te	lemedic	ine / 2009 w AN	Prime with 4 Pea	e LC Fa the Prc k Hour	cilit: ject	ies P:	roject		
Level Of Service Computation Report ICU 1(Loss as Cycle Length %) Method (Future Volume Alternative)											
Intersection *********	#4 SI	R 73 1	Northbc ******	ound Ra	amps a	at Bisc ******	n Avei	nue *****	* * * * * * *	* * * * * * * * * *	******
Cycle (sec): 100 Critical Vol./Cap. (X): 0.623 Loss Time (sec): 5 (Y+R = 4 sec) Average Delay (sec/veh): xxxxxx Optimal Cycle: 30 Level Of Service: B										523 XXX B X******	
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	No: L -	SR 7 rth B - T	3 North ound - R	ibound Soi L -	Rampa uth Bo - T	s ound - R	Ea L -	ast Bo - T	Bison ound - R	Avenue West E L - T	Bound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	P1 0 1 (rotec Incl 0 0 1!	 ted ude 0 1	 Pi 0 (rotec Incl 0 0	 ted ude 0 0	 P: 0 1 (rotec Incl 0) 2	 ted ude 0 0	Protect Incl 0 0 0 0 2	ted ude 0 0 0 1
Volume Module Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: Added Vol: PasserByVol: Initial Fut: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: Final Vol.:	226 1.06 240 0 240 1.00 1.00 240 0 240 1.00 1.00 1.00 240 1.00 240 0 240 0 240 0 0 0 240 0 0 0 240 0 0 0 240 0 0 0 240 0 0 0 240 0 0 240 0 0 0 240 0 0 0 240 0 0 240 0 0 0 240 0 0 240 0 0 240 0 0 240 0 0 240 0 0 240 0 0 240 0 0 240 0 0 240 0 0 240 0 0 240 0 0 240 0 0 240 0 0 240 0 0 240 0 0 240 0 0 240 0 0 240 0 0 240 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 1.06 0 0 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 1.00 0 0 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	300 1.06 318 5 0 323 1.00 1.00 323 1.00 1.00 323 1.00 1.00 323	0 1.06 0 0 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 1.00 0 0 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 1.06 0 0 0 1.00 1.00 0 0 1.00 0 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 1.06 0 0 1.00 1.00 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	63 1.06 67 0 0 1.00 1.00 67 1.00 1.00 1.00 67 1.00 1.00 67 1.00 1.00 67 1.00 67 0 0 67 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	1460 1.06 1549 24 0 1573 1.00 1573 0 1573 1.00 1573 1.00 1573	0 1.06 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 168 1.06 1.06 0 178 0 4 0 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0 182 0 0 0 182 1.00 1.00 0 182 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00	3 217 5 1.06 3 230 4 3 0 0 2 233 1 .00 2 233 1 .00 2 233 0 0 2 233 1 .00 2 233 1 .00 2 233 1 .00 2 233
Saturation Fl Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.: 	ow Mo 1700 1.00 1.27 2172 ysis 0.11	Ddule 1700 1.00 0.01 0 Modu 0.00	: 1700 1.00 1.72 2928 le: 0.11	1700 1.00 0.00 0 	1700 1.00 0.00 0	1700 1.00 0.00 0 	1700 1.00 1.00 1700 	1700 1.00 2.00 3400 0.46	1700 1.00 0.00 0 0.00	1700 1700 1.00 1.00 0.00 2.00 0 3400) 1700) 1.00) 1.00) 1.00) 1700 5 0.14
Crit Moves:	****	++++	******	*****	* * * * * *	* * * * * * * *	*****	****	******	****	******

MITIG8 - 2009 with the ProjMon Apr 30, 2007 11:01:42 Page 1-1

UCI Telemedicine / Prime LC Facilities Project 2009 with the Project PM Peak Hour
Level Of Service Computation Report ICU 1(Loss as Cycle Length %) Method (Future Volume Alternative) ************************************
ntersection #4 SR 73 Northbound Ramps at Bison Avenue
ycle (sec): 100 Critical Vol./Cap. (X): 0.651 oss Time (sec): 5 (Y+R = 4 sec) Average Delay (sec/veh): xxxxxx ptimal Cycle: 33 Level Of Service: B
treet Name: SR 73 Northbound Ramps Bison Avenue pproach: North Bound South Bound East Bound West Bound ovement: L - T - R L - T - R L - T - R L - T - R
ontrol: Protected Protected Protected Protected ights: Include Include Include Include in. Green: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 anes: 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 2 0 0 2 0
olume Module: 110 0 27 0 0 51 515 0 0 779 845 rowth Adj: 1.06 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
aturation Flow Module: at/Lane: 1700 1.00
apacity Analysis Module: ol/Sat: 0.03 0.00 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.03 0.16 0.00 0.00 0.25 0.53 rit Moves: **** ****

MITIG8 - 2009 with the ProjMon Apr 30, 2007 10:59:45 Page 1-1

UCI Telemedicine / Prime LC Facilities Project 2009 with the Project AM Peak Hour									
Level Of Service Computation Report ICU 1(Loss as Cycle Length %) Method (Future Volume Alternative)									
<pre>Intersection #5 California Avenue at Bison Avenue ***********************************</pre>									
Cycle (sec):100Critical Vol./Cap. (X):0.701Loss Time (sec):5 (Y+R = 4 sec) Average Delay (sec/veh):xxxxxxOptimal Cycle:37Level Of Service:C									
Street Name:California AvenueBison AvenueApproach:North BoundSouth BoundEast BoundWest BoundMovement:L - T - RL - T - RL - T - RL - T - R									
Volume Module: Base Vol: 18 11 7 57 76 55 786 721 238 11 300 61 Growth Adj: 1.06 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00									
Saturation Flow Module: Sat/Lane: 1700 1700 1700 1700 1700 1700 1700 1700									

MITIG8 - 2009 with the ProjMon Apr 30, 2007 11:01:54 Page 1-1

	UC	CI Te	lemedic	ine / 2009 v PN	Prime with t 4 Peał	e LC Fa the Pro K Hour	cilit ject	ies P:	roject			
ICU 1(****************** Intersection	Loss **** #5 Ca	as C ****	Level O ycle Le ****** rnia Av	f Serv ngth ***** enue a	vice (%) Met ***** at Bis	Computa thod (F ****** son Ave	tion uture *****	Report Volur ****	t ne Alte ******	ernativ	re) *****	*****
Cycle (sec): Loss Time (se Optimal Cycle	ec):	100 111 111	* * * * * * * * 5 (Y+R 5 * * * * * * * *	* * * * * * * * = 4 s	***** Gec) <i>I</i> ******	Critica Average Level C	***** 1 Vol Dela f Ser ****	./Cap y (sec vice: *****	******* . (X): c/veh): ******	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	0.93 xxxxx	<pre></pre>
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	Nor L -	Cal th Bo - T	liforni ound - R	a Aver Sou L -	nue uth Bo - T	ound - R	E. L	ast Bo - T	Bison ound - R	Avenue We L -	st Bo T	ound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	Pr 0 1 0	otect Inclu 0 2	 ted ude 0 1	 Pi 0 1 (rotect Inclu 0) 2	 zed ide 0 1	 P 0 1	rotect Inclu 0 0 2	 ted ude 0 1	 Pr 0 1 C	otect Inclu 0 1	 2ed 1de 1 0
Volume Module Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: Added Vol: PasserByVol: Initial Fut: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: Final Vol.:	304 1.06 323 0 323 1.00 1.00 323 0 323 1.00 1.00 323 1.00 1.00 323	89 1.06 94 0 94 1.00 1.00 94 0 94 1.00 1.00 94	13 1.06 14 0 14 1.00 1.00 14 0 14 1.00 1.4 1.00 1.4 1.00 1.4 1.00 1.4 1.00 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4	35 1.06 37 4 0 41 1.00 1.00 41 1.00 1.00 41	10 1.06 11 0 11 1.00 1.00 11 1.00 1.00 1	621 1.06 659 0 659 1.00 1.00 659 1.00 1.00 659 1.00 1.00 659	103 1.06 109 0 109 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00	420 1.06 446 10 0 456 1.00 1.00 456 1.00 1.00 1.00 456	25 1.06 27 0 27 1.00 1.00 27 0 27 1.00 1.00 27 .00 27 .00 27 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .0	9 1.06 10 0 10 1.00 1.00 10 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00	716 1.06 760 26 0 786 1.00 786 1.00 786 1.00 1.00 786	38 1.06 40 9 0 49 1.00 1.00 49 0 49 1.00 1.00 49
Saturation Fl Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.: 	.ow Mc 1700 1.00 1.00 1700 ysis 0.19 ****	dule 1700 1.00 2.00 3400 Modu 0.03	: 1700 1.00 1.00 1700 le: 0.01	1700 1.00 1.00 1700 	1700 1.00 2.00 3400	1700 1.00 1.00 1700 0.39 ****	1700 1.00 1.00 1700 	1700 1.00 2.00 3400 0.13	1700 1.00 1.00 1700 0.02	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 1.88 3199 0.25 ****	1700 1.00 0.12 201 0.25
Reduct Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: MLF Adj: Final Vol.: 	0 323 1.00 323 0w Mc 1700 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00	0 94 1.00 94 94 1700 1.00 2.00 3400 Modul 0.03	0 14 1.00 14 	0 41 1.00 41 1700 1.00 1.00 1.00 1700 0.02	0 11 1.00 1.00 11 1700 1.00 2.00 3400 0.00	0 659 1.00 659 1700 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.39 ****	0 109 1.00 1.00 109 1 1700 1.00 1.00 1700 1 0.06 ****	0 456 1.00 1.00 456 1700 1.00 2.00 3400 0.13	0 27 1.00 27 1700 1.00 1.00 1.00 1700 0.02	0 10 1.00 1.00 10 1 1700 1.00 1.00 1700 1 0.01	0 786 1.00 786 1700 1.00 1.88 3199 0.25 ****	0 49 1.00 49 1700 1.00 0.12 201 0.25

MITIG8 - 2009 with the ProjMon Apr 30, 2007 10:59:56 Page 1-1

UCI Telemedicine / Prime LC Facilities Project 2009 with the Project AM Peak Hour									
Level Of Service Computation Report ICU 1(Loss as Cycle Length %) Method (Future Volume Alternative)									
<pre>Intersection #6 Health Sciences Road at Bison Avenue ***********************************</pre>									
Cycle (sec): 100 Critical Vol./Cap. (X): 0.327 Loss Time (sec): 5 (Y+R = 4 sec) Average Delay (sec/veh): xxxxxx Optimal Cycle: 18 Level Of Service: A									
Street Name:Health Sciences RoadBison AvenueApproach:North BoundSouth BoundEast BoundWest BoundMovement:L - T - RL - T - RL - T - RL - T - R									
Control: Permitted Permitted Permitted Permitted Rights: Include Include Include Include Min. Green: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Lanes: 0 1! 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0									
Volume Module: Base Vol: 10 1 28 12 3 18 133 645 4 66 343 84 Growth Adj: 1.06 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 <td< td=""></td<>									
Saturation Flow Module: Sat/Lane: 1700 1700 1700 1700 1700 1700 1700 1700									
Capacity Analysis Module: Vol/Sat: 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.11 0.20 0.20									

MITIG8 - 2009 with the ProjMon Apr 30, 2007 11:02:05 Page 1-1

UCI Telemedicine / Prime LC Facilities Project 2009 with the Project PM Peak Hour												
ICU 1(Loss	as C	Level O ycle Le	f Serv	vice (%) Me [.]	Computa thod (F	tion H uture	Report Volu	t me Alte	rnative		
********	****	*****	* * * * * * *	* * * * * *	*****	* * * * * * *	*****	* * * * * *	* * * * * * *	*****	* * * * *	*****
Intersection *********	#6 He	ealth *****	Scienc ******	es Roa *****	ad at *****	Bison ******	Avenue *****	∋ *****	******	*****	* * * * *	******
Cycle (sec): Loss Time (se Optimal Cycle	ec): e: *****	10 1 *****	0 5 (Y+R 9 ******	= 4 s	(Sec) <u>;</u>	Critica Average Level O ******	l Vol Delay f Serv	./Cap y (seo vice: *****	. (X): c/veh): ******	*****	0.38 xxxxx *****	30 XX A ******
Street Name: Approach:	Noi	Hea th B	lth Sci ound	ences Sou	Road uth Be	ound	Ea	ast Bo	Bison ound	Avenue Wes	st Bc	ound
Movement:	L -	- т	– R	L -	- т	– R	L -	- т	– R	L -	Т	– R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:		Permi Incl 0) 1!	 tted ude 0 0 0	 I 0 1	Permi Incl 0 L 0	 tted ude 0 1		Permit Inclu 0) 1	 ude 0 1 0	 Pe 0 1 0	ermit Inclu 0 1	ted de 1 0
Volume Module	:								_		~ ~ ~	~ .
Base Vol:	2	1	63	99	1	142	20	464	1	10	611	24
Growth Adj:	1.06	1.06	1.06	1.06	1.06	1.06	1.06	1.06	1.06	1.06	1.06	1.06
Initial Bse:	2	Ţ	67	105	T	151	21	492	Ţ	11	648	25
Added Vol:	0	0	0	12	0	35	14	0	0	0	0	5
PasserByVol:	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Initial Fut:	2	1 00	6/	11/	1 00	186	35	492	1 00	1 00 7	648	30
User Adj:	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
PHF Adj:	1.00	1.00	1.00	117	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00 .	1.00	1.00
PHF VOLUME:	2	T O	07	117	T T	100	30	492	L O	11	040	30
Reduct VOI:	0	1	67	117	1	106	25	102	1	11	C 1 0	20
Reduced VOI:	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	492	1 00	1 00 '	1 00	1 00
MIE Adj:	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00 1	1 00	1 00
Final Vol ·	1.00	1.00	1.00	117	1.00	186	1.00	102	1.00	11	6/8	30
rillar vor	2	T	07	1 1 1	Т	TOO		492	± .	1	040	50
Saturation El			•••••									
Saturation ri	1700	1700	1700	1700	1700	1700	1700	1700	1700	1700	1700	1700
Adjustment.	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00 1	1 00	1 00
Lapos.	1.00	1.00	0 95	1.00	0 01	1 00	1 00	1 99	0 01	1 00 1	1 91	0.00
Final Cat .	52	20.02	1623	1685	15	1700	1700	7303 T-22	7	1700	3247	153
l				1	±J		1			1		
Capacity Anal	vsis	Modu	le:	I		1	I		I	1		I
Vol/Sat:	0.00	0.04	0.04	0.07	0.07	0.11	0.02	0.15	0.15	0.01	0.20	0.20
Crit Moves:		****	0.01	****	2.07	·•±±	****	2.20	0.10		****	0.20
**********	****	*****	******	*****	*****	******	*****	*****	******	******	* * * * *	******

MITIG8 - 2009 with the ProjMon Apr 30, 2007 11:00:05 Page 1-1

UCI Telemedicine / Prime LC Facilities Project 2009 with the Project AM Peak Hour											
ICU 1	(Loss *****	as C <u>s</u>	Level O ycle Le ******	f Serv ngth १ *****	vice (5) Met	Computa chod (F	tion H uture *****	Report Volur	: ne Alte ******	ernative)	* * * * * * *
Intersection ********	#7 Pe	ltas(****	on Driv ******	e at E *****	Bison *****	Avenue	/Physi	ical \$ *****	Science ******	s Road	* * * * * * *
Cycle (sec): Loss Time (se Optimal Cycle	ec): e: *****	10(28 ****) 5 (Y+R 8 ******	= 4 s	(sec) <i>I</i> : :	Critica Average Level C ******	l Vol. Delay f Serv	./Cap y (sec vice:	. (X): c/veh): ******	0.59 xxxxx	91 xx A ******
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	Nor L -	th Bo T	Peltaso bund - R	n Driv Sou L -	7e ith Bo - T	ound - R	Bisc Ea L -	on Ave ast Bo - T	e/Physi ound - R	.cal Science West Bo L - T	es Rd ound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	Pr 0 1 0	otect Inclu 0	 ted ude 0 1 0	 Pr 0 1 (rotect Inclu 0) 1	 ide 0 0 1	 Spl 0 1	lit Pi Ovl 0 L 0	 nase 0 0 1	Split Pl Inclu 0 0 0 1 0	 nase ude 0 0 1
Volume Module Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: Added Vol: PasserByVol: Initial Fut: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduced Vol: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: Final Vol.: Saturation FI	367 1.06 389 11 0 400 1.00 1.00 400 1.000 1.	80 1.06 85 0 0 85 1.00 1.00 85 1.00 1.00 85 1.00 0 85 1.00 1.00 85 1.00	17 1.06 18 0 0 18 1.00 1.00 18 1.00 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.00 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9	158 1.06 168 0 168 1.00 1.68 1.00 1.68 1.00 1.68	61 1.06 65 0 0 5 1.00 1.00 65 1.00 1.00 1.00 65	101 1.06 107 1 0 108 1.00 108 1.00 108 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00	113 1.06 120 0 120 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.20	212 1.06 225 0 225 1.00 1.00 225 1.00 1.00 225	313 1.06 322 2 0 334 1.00 1.00 334 1.00 1.00 334 1.00 334	18 44 1.06 1.06 19 47 0 1 0 0 19 48 1.00 1.00 19 48 1.00 1.00 19 48 1.00 1.00 19 48 1.00 1.00 19 48 1.00 1.00 19 48 1.00 1.00 19 48	33 1.06 35 0 0 35 1.00 1.00 35 1.00 1.00 35 1.00 1.00 35
Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.:	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 0.82 1402	1700 1.00 0.18 298	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 0.35 591	1700 1.00 0.65 1109	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1700 1.00 1.00 0.29 0.71 486 1214	1700 1.00 1.00 1700
Capacity Anal Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	Lysis 0.24 ****	Modul 0.06	le: 0.06	0.10	0.04	0.06	0.20	0.20	0.20 *****	0.04 0.04	0.02

MITIG8 - 2009 with the ProjMon Apr 30, 2007 11:02:19 Page 1-1

UCI Telemedicine / Prime LC Facilities Project 2009 with the Project PM Peak Hour											
ICU 1(Loss ****	as C	Level 0 ycle Le ******	f Serv ngth % *****	vice (5) Met	Computa thod (F ******	tion 1 uture *****	Report Volur	t me Alte ******	rnative) *******	*****
Intersection *********	#7 Pe	eltas	on Driv ******	e at E *****	Bison	Avenue ******	/Phys:	ical \$	Science ******	s Road ********	*****
Cycle (sec): Loss Time (se Optimal Cycle	c): : ******	10 3) 5 (Y+R 3 ******	= 4 s	(sec) <i>1</i> : :	Critica Average Level O ******	l Vol Delay f Serv	./Cap y (sec vice: *****	. (X): c/veh): ******	0.0 xxxx	551 xxx B *******
Street Name: Approach: Movement:	Nor L -	th Bo T	Peltaso ound - R	n Driv Sou L -	re ith Bo - T	ound - R	Biso Ea L	on Ave ast Bo - T	e/Physi ound - R	cal Scienc West E L - T	ces Rd Bound - R
Control: Rights: Min. Green: Lanes:	Pr 0 1 0	otect Inclu 0	 ted ude 1 0	Pr 0 1 0	otect Inclu 0 1	 ted ude 0 0 1	Spi 0	lit Ph Ovl 0 1 0	 nase 0 0 1	Split F Incl 0 (0 1 0	2hase ude 0 0 0 1
Volume Module Base Vol: Growth Adj: Initial Bse: Added Vol: PasserByVol: Initial Fut: User Adj: PHF Adj: PHF Volume: Reduced Vol: PCE Adj: Final Vol.: 	: 343 1.06 364 4 0 368 1.00 1.00 368 1.00 1.00 368 1.00 0 368	127 1.06 135 0 0 135 1.00 1.00 1.35 0 0 1.35 1.00 1.35 0.00 1.000 1.35 0.00 1.35 0.00 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.	15 1.06 16 100 16 1.00 16 1.00 16 1.00	96 1.06 102 0 102 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.02 1.00 1.00	110 1.06 117 0 117 1.00 1.00 117 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.07 1.00	156 1.06 166 160 1.00 166 1.00 166 1.00 1.00	170 1.06 180 1 1.00 1.81 1.00 1.81 1.00 1.81 1.00 1.81 1.00 1.81 1.00 1.81 1.00	72 1.06 76 1 0 77 1.00 1.00 77 1.00 1.00 77	417 1.06 442 9 0 451 1.00 451 1.00 451 1.00 1.00 451 1.00	74 142 1.06 1.06 79 151 0 0 79 151 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 79 151 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00	2 130 5 1.06 1.08 1.08 0 0 1.38 0 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Saturation F1 Sat/Lane: Adjustment: Lanes: Final Sat.:	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 0.89 1520	1700 1.00 0.11 180	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1.00 0.70 1192	1700 1.00 0.30 508	1700 1.00 1.00 1700	1700 1700 1.00 1.00 0.34 0.66 582 1118	0 1700 0 1.00 5 1.00 3 1700
Capacity Anal Vol/Sat: Crit Moves:	ysis 0.22 ****	Modul 0.09	 le: 0.09	0.06	0.07	0.10 ****	0.15	0.15	 0.27 ******	0.13 0.13	

APPENDIX D SIGNAL WARRANT ANALYSES





MAJOR STREET—TOTAL OF BOTH APPROACHES— VEHICLES PER HOUR (VPH)

*Note: 150 vph applies as the lower threshold volume for a minor-street approach with two or more lanes and 100 vph applies as the lower threshold volume for a minor-street approach with one lane.

	AM	PM
Bison Avenue	1275	1130
Health Sciences Road	39	66
Meets Warrants?	No	No





MAJOR STREET—TOTAL OF BOTH APPROACHES— VEHICLES PER HOUR (VPH)

*Note: 150 vph applies as the lower threshold volume for a minor-street approach with two or more lanes and 100 vph applies as the lower threshold volume for a minor-street approach with one lane.

	AM	PM
Bison Avenue	1275	1130
Health Sciences Road	33	242
Meets Warrants?	No	No





MAJOR STREET—TOTAL OF BOTH APPROACHES— VEHICLES PER HOUR (VPH)

*Note: 150 vph applies as the lower threshold volume for a minor-street approach with two or more lanes and 100 vph applies as the lower threshold volume for a minor-street approach with one lane.

	AM	PM
Bison Avenue	1352	1198
Health Sciences Road	42	70
Meets Warrants?	No	No





MAJOR STREET—TOTAL OF BOTH APPROACHES— VEHICLES PER HOUR (VPH)

*Note: 150 vph applies as the lower threshold volume for a minor-street approach with two or more lanes and 100 vph applies as the lower threshold volume for a minor-street approach with one lane.

	AM	PM
Bison Avenue	1352	1198
Health Sciences Road	35	257
Meets Warrants?	No	No





VEHICLES PER HOUR (VPH)

*Note: 150 vph applies as the lower threshold volume for a minor-street approach with two or more lanes and 100 vph applies as the lower threshold volume for a minor-street approach with one lane.

	AM	PM
Bison Avenue	1405	1217
Health Sciences Road	42	70
Meets Warrants?	No	No





VEHICLES PER HOUR (VPH)

*Note: 150 vph applies as the lower threshold volume for a minor-street approach with two or more lanes and 100 vph applies as the lower threshold volume for a minor-street approach with one lane.

	AM	PM
Bison Avenue	1405	1217
Health Sciences Road	47	304
Meets Warrants?	No	Yes